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Operational Highlights

Financial highlights Operational highlights
Revenve

£16.3m .,

Adjusted EBITDA*

£1 o3m .(SSv%)

Adjusted operating profit**

£0 ° 2 m (85v%)

Cash at bank

£2 06m (35v%)

Net cash (net of all lease obligations
except right of use property lease)

£1 06m (49v%)

* Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before interest,
taxation, depreciation, amortisation and
exceptional items.

** Adjusted operating profit is operating profit
before exceptional items.
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Chairman’s statement

Dear fellow shoreholder

Vanpleased 10 report that gond progress hos been
miade in the year ended 31 Moy 2023, particularly with
our markat engagemant, product developrment ond
improvemant of aperational cogability.

We wers optimistic about growing revenue inH2

£ 2023 hur shortages in the semiconductor supply
chain prevenied us from realising this important goal.
Despite this, we delivered another successive year of
profit generation with adjusted eornings before interest,
tuxotion, deprecianion, amortisation and exceptional
items (Adjusted EBITDA of £1.3m (2022: £2 8m). This
ted 10 a strengthened bolance sheet, which, coupled with
a strenger order book and improved opportunity pipeline,
provides o solid base from which to continue developing
the business to deliver long-terrn sharehalder value.

The Markets

The markets vie operatz in increasingly offer the potential
for strong growth. The recent sizeable contract win,
owarded by a leading ployer in the low eoarth orbit space
market demonstrotes the world-class capability of our
business and validates our confidence in successfully
penetrating this emerging and high growth sector. The
market is currently led by a handtul of well-known global
players, where aur technalogy is highly relevant to their
chasen solutions, bt there are numarous other disruptors
with different mission objectives, serving ¢ broad range of
end customers and rarkets,

We continue to see axciling opportunities being
daeveloped in oerospoce ond defence particuloriy given
the current geo-politicatlondscape. Governments of
westarn countries acknowledye thay have underfunded
defence spending in recent years but have reiteratad o
comnutment to remedy this. The skills required to develop
technaology salutions utiising radic fraquency ("'RF”) ore
in short supply and the mojor defence primes recognise
that resourcing their key pragromrnes will be a significant
chailenge. This cractes apportunities for Filiconic 1o
suppart and mitigate the skills gop that has deveicped.

in the tzlecommunications market, we nete recent
announcemants by both MNokia and Ericsson following a
slowdown in consurmer spending impacting thew ielecems
soles. Howevar, 5G networks ore actively being rolled

out oround the world and the leng-awairad lizencing of
E-band spe:trum in Indio has been releasad for backhoul
products. This s a market thot has o high dependence on
wireless rzchnology givan the well-established road ond
building infrastructure, raaking it difficult to offer cobled
solutions. Given the scale of rollouts, pricing con be highly
compatitive 3 the original equipment manufacturers
("CEMS) compete for rerker share. As E-band

specizum bandwidrh starts to fill, the focus will rmove to
ather frequency bands such as W-biand and O-bard.
The telecommunications morker hos historizally lad
techinalogy waves so these technological developments
will be a key forus of our own rechnolagy roadmaps.

Qur relevance to new and prospective customers and

the unique selling point we offer is our ubility to design,
develop and monufacture a turn-key solution to o
high-quality standard. We ramp production quickly

and in sufficiently large volumes bringing an ethos that
fundamentally differentiates us from our competitors who
do not have the heritage of rapid rurnaround ond lorge-
scaie manufacture,

Investing in the right oreas of the business, 1o deliver this
sustainable finoncial growth is ¢ constant balancing act.
To be successful in our chosen morkets we need to be
agile, recognising that we may need to adapt sirotegy in
respansa ta the fast-poced noture of the communicotions
technology. The dasire of our prospective custemers

in rerrestrial and spoce communication o gal, or stay,
chead of thair competitars meons wi2 Must be reseonsive
in order o thrive, Tharsfore, building ond developing

the enginesring crganisation is critical as «we seek to
davelop our technology roadmaps, undertoke custoner
developments and service the opportunity pipeline. Ropid
execution of product development with high quality
products and solutions wili remain a key focus for the
Group.

Financial performance summary

Group soles decraased inthe year by 5% 70 £16.5m
(FY2022: £17.1m).

The reduction in soies ond a waaker saies mix, with o
highar conceniraiion of revenue from price sensitive
1elscommunicanions infrastruciuce, led 1 an Adjusted
operoting profit of £0.2m {2022: £1.6rn) and operating
profitof £0.2m (2022: £2.9m).

The Group closed the year with £2.6m of cash ot bank
{2022: £4.0m} in addlition to the availobility of undrwn
working copital deit facilities in the UK (£3 Om with:
Barclays) and the USS (34.0m with Wells Farga).

The Groug's net cash position, including ol debt excep:
right of use property leases, was £1.4m af the and of the
finoncial year {2022 £3.1m}. Met cash including right of
use property baases w3 £0.3m (2022: £2.2m).

Dividend

As with pravious years, the Board continues to believe
shareholders are better served by cosh being retainad

in the business 1o fund future business developarent.
Consequantly, no dividend is proposed for the yeor (2022
£nil},

Filtronic pke Annual Report ond Accounts 2023



Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG")

We are committed ta tuilding o sustainable business for
ths future, delivaring consisient financial returns and long-
term vatue for olf our stakeholders. We formalised our
ESG strateqy in the yeor, which has been devaloped with
an emphasis on supporting the wider corporate stirategy.
Key elements include building an arganisation fit far the
future by supporting STEM skills, continuing with our
established groduate progromme, ougrented with a naw
appranticeshio initiative. We will also minimize our impact
on the environment with lower energy consusmption and
waosie. Full details of the ESQG strategy und obijectives can
be found on the Filronic webssite at attps.//filtronic.cormn/
investors/esg-strategyy’.

Outlook

The rnarkets we serva offer strong growth prospects
and vre remain conficlent, given the opportunities that
are baing generated, that we can execute ngainst

our strategic plons ond build o business for all our
sioieholdses 10 bz proud of. Key milestones have been
met against our core objectives in the year, with sironger
commercial engogement, innavative product solutions,
well-aligned iechnology roodmaps ond robust businass business.
systents, ond we therefore look: farwared to FY 2024 with

enthysiasm and excitemant,

Pictured: Morpheus X2 - High power E-band transceiver

| would hke to finish by thanking olf our stokeholders for
the ongoing suppors, and our tolented employees who
have continued 0 respond positively with exceptionat
zomrnitrnent. i is with their dedication, hard work. ond
skill that we will continue ta drve the performance of the

Jonathan Neale
Chairman

T duly 2923

Whilst the mccrs-econemic environment remaing
uncertain, we are wel equipped 16 navigarz through
it with a strongar business. We will further strengrhen
our soles ond enginasring organisations in the year 1o
copitadise on near term markel opportunities.

What we specialise in:

Mission critical Customised 300MHz to 300GHz Hybrid
communications RF Sub-systems design, manufacture manufacturing
& test services

VW

www.filtronic.com Stock Cocle: FTC
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Chief Executive's review

| am pleased to present our full year results for FY2023,
anchwith it a reflection on thalast 12 months, during
which we have made significant progress agoinst the
primary objective of creating sustainable growth in our
strategic morkets of aerospace and defence, space and
terrestrial telecommunications infrastrusture. Despite the
faltering alabal economy, the trading environrment for
Fikronic throughout the last financial year has generally
been fovourable. It was only the availobility of critical
semiconductor products in Q3 ond (4 that limited our
ability 1o maximise revenues prior 1o the financial year
end. Motwithstanding the challenges imposed by the
breakdown in the globol semiconductor supply chain,
we ended the year with revenues of £16.3m (FY2022:
£17.1m), broadly in line2 with market expeciations.

Confident of the potential for Filtronic rechnology in our
chosen sirategic markers we have continued 1o invest

in our long-term fufure by strengthening our business
development and engineering teams throughou! the year,
This increased investment is reflectad in our Adjustad
EBITDA of £1.3m (2022: £2.8m) ond cash ot bank of
£2.6m (2022: £4 Om). The inifial reiurn on this investment
is evidenced by the release of several new high-power
telecommunication infrastructure ond space products,
for which we hove already been successful in achieving
initial customer crder cormmitraent. We end the yeor

with 0 heolthy nurnber of new preduct developments

in the angineering pipeline, and o well-defined
technology reodmap aligned with customac and markat
requiremeants,

Over the last 12 months | hove seen first-hand the
strength of relotionships with Filtronic’s strategic accounts,
wihe are omongst the morket ieaders in2ach of our
cicddreszable markets. Thave been delighted with the
deveiopment of our technology rocdmaps and the
progress made in strategwe programenes that will yieh
products for the next gengration of telecommunication
backhaul communications and electronic warfara ("EW7)
solutions. | have alss been pleased with the progress
moda inopsning exciting new appiicatinns swch s our
breakthrough into the iow earth orbit (LEQ") spoce
market.

Radio fraquency (RFY) design i3 o comples and fast
developing engineering disciphing YWith our globol
ceputation, combinad with aver 45 vears of innovariva 1P
davelogment, we continue 1o ses o Qrowing number of
St cusionters wanhing (o engaga our services
he dasign angd manufacture of nest generation RF
srochisets. Our ohility fo undertok2 rapid cuting -edgs
F an, ond subsequently scale the manufacturing
of mmWavz products, 2nables custarmers to drive
paformance nad accelerate ime o morket. This
canbination of rechnical compaience ond agility is o
significant comgatitive advantage for customersin the
telecomrunication ond LEO spaca rarkers.

Sictosed: Tosnss - High verfarmanca E-band sclic srate power amphher

A strong balance shieet has enabled us 1o continue to build
on investmants made ot our Sedaefield monufacturing
site. Tha addition of state-of-the-art equipment for ropid
process and product development has significantly
enhanced cur ability to efficiently bring new products to
market in line with customers’ expesrations. The ability

ta develop enginesring prototypes and create new
manufacturing procasses without the nead 1o disrupt the
volume manufocturing fines bas greatly improved delivery
of engineering pragrammes ond eased the fransition
from prototype te: mass produciion.

Talented paople remain of the heart of our ability to
detiver leading edge produsts und future businzss
growth. We have made significont efforts this year to find
ond recruit the key skills requirad 10 reolise our growth
ambitions. Te further penetrate our strategic morkets, we
strengthened our business developmant team with the
addition of sensoned industry experts with a strong track-
record of sales delivery We have alse baen successtulin
hiring high-calibre RF engineers for our new design office
n Manchester and this teamis now specifically engaged
in addressing opportuniries in the emerging space and
telecommunication infrastructiere markat.

Customers and Morkets

Our stoted mission ot Filtronic is to drive the future of

RE microwave and mmWave communications and

we have aligned the businass to focus afforts an four
strategic verficol markets that we bafieve have gond
growth potential and o strong alignmeant with our RF
cagpabifities. We have been corzful 1o select applications

Filtronic pk Annual Report and Accounts 2023



whers we could add significant valug, drive sustoinuble
morgins, revse exishng 1P, and leverays tha investments

in our existing hybrid manufactudng copobifity, We are
also mindfui to cwoid commadity markets ond consumer
applications with low borrigrs 1o sotry thot offer lirtle ini the
wauy of RF technoiogy developaent.

Qur selected strategic growth markets ara oerospace &
dcfence pcwf;':ulorlv EW and battlefield comunications,
tzreestrial relacoms for 5G hackhaul, and gateway
crnectivity for LEQ spoce comnmunications. All of
.rhe steategic markets hava continued to investin the
developmeanrt of RF iechrnlogy over the year, with o
consistent drive towards higher pawer, lower iatency, ond
imgroved bandwidth ¢ pphusnor" whare Filtronic con
Upply know-how and producr development expertise.

The uerospace market has long been a sisady revenus
contabutor to our business and this year we have
expanded aur foctprint in the Active Elecironically
Seannzd Array (CAESA  radar markei by capturing
erail related filter design spportunitias thot position
vswell for straregic rodar programmes thot will come in
the next five years. We have conbinued to make inroacs
inte the UK deferce market with ceveral successful
Egleln nqomcnfs with Defence Science Tpchnclogy
Laborc s {"DISTL") follcaving successful de.uerv oF
ot fi «>1 bartefield communizations groductin FY202
W were successful inwion ing an udditional wo D_ﬂ L
orogrammas in Y2023 and bath of these programimes
align v closar with LUK Molls stecaregic raquirernants.

5G relecormmunication infrastruchure deployment
confinues araund the world, and criticol torue 3G
paformance is the quality end reliabiiity of high
frequenay backhaul communicotions, Filtronic’s E-band
transceivars are designad (o detiver cost-effetive,
rlti-gigabit connectiviby for mré,vl'-’r,::::ckh-?.u!n-;uv.r_n‘ks:
m gesgraphies whare requency hos besn
licenced ond individuai countries moke rhe £ -band
Fecuency avaifable for we. India ficen: sE~bund
Cigsin 70 22 cx3 paret afits long owaited 5G rofi-out
of srock: Jf ders From our lead

% '»‘*ctu 5 bw ¢ Sustaing:

a1 EE

< Mumm [
pericd of d
CONCEIns as30aic ncd with the ,.m; ! ngedh
telecon operators in india, together with Su-r(-ma WY
frean the stailed 5G roli-out in Ru-sc,.‘o i
w same crder ook derand 1o b
the long-term potantialin india rarm
2t arders foc kigh-power hxg‘) -f
maodules, private retwork E-band madules “x'v 5 [QEHe o
power amplifier solutions suggest that there cre several
inreresting adjccent rmarket apportunities for Filtronics
core telecommunication technalogy.

TheLEO space market is growing rapidly asthe costs
associoted with the lounch and dea!un ment of salelliie
technology continues to fail, Wel- Funclr..-d, giobal
corporations and cm*bi‘iousregieno! start-up componias
are racing 16 build constellanons of satelfites thor will
soalerote the delivery of broadbond services across

07

the giobe. Ultimaiely these LED nehwerks will converge
with the esiablished ierrestriol telecammunication
natwaorks ro provide high-spaed, low-latency vbiguitous
broadizond connectivity. Filtronic’s reputation as o supplier
of compact, highly integrated, ond extramely relisbie
telecomprsnication backhau! solutions has positoned us
we;!'ro respand to the aggrassive imealires demanded by
the teading players in the LEO space market, The ability
to design snd build scalakle solid state power omplifiars
"SSPAS"Y of muttiple fraquency bands enabled Filtronic 1o
win mitigl production orders for the deployment of the first
LEQ space E-band bockhaul communication lin‘- s during
the yeor, We will ook ro build on this intiol markat success
by steangthening custamier relationships and focusing on
tha dalivery of our tachnology roodmaop over the next 24
manths.

Achievements
There have been severol noiable achisvemerts over the
lost year which ser the potentiat for sustainable growth

0‘ which are as folicws:
~band SSPA modiule for
Q2 COMMLNICOToNS

arid future revenues, same

o Curfirst developmens ofan €
the market leadar in LEO &

o Secured production orders and enabled the !Uunc:h of
the Morpheus X2 E-baad tronsreiver thar more thon
daubles the rronsmission range of curcent SG bockhaut
radinlinks.

navs s2aniconductor process B we

hip developments in

o Taking u-:!vcxr:.‘aqmvf
'c'mrmf a serias of prototype ¢

2023 with promising resalis

o Wesetuwed oursecond ond third DSTL programmes
in Y2027 and continued 1o bulld our relationship o o

s 10 the UK Mol

o Eocusing on our filter design exp%rnw we sacyran]
orders us EW, gir and shipborne rade, batilefizld
COMMUNiations Gna emarging quontum computing
agplicaticns.

supphier of jurnkey RF sclutions

o Securad thres separate pre -gmm'mx }o» cus!
high-performonae E- !
neiwork applizotions associoted s
communicatons sod high-freq
plaxiforms,

Outlook
We nparcte in o period of eco A
uncartainty, but one in which our fechnolsgy s in demand,
angd the evpertise we offer s in short m,:uly Ot strcitegic
markals ad for growth and our lead
rusiomers confinue 1 invest in naxt ganeraficn RF
sotutions. Tha diss u)_ﬂ' on 15 semvconducior seeply chains
that inpacted our usinass in Fy 2023 are impraving,
ond we feel that wa now have the resources ond skill
2k =-e sary to ook forward with optimism 15 the new
‘ading period.

xR stiFls :,P drm,

zy tradhing

-~

nomic and geopolitic

Fi‘rmﬁ:ic'q core marksis ft’p‘(é’"&'en!'md: stey varticols thot
have o robust outlock and ailgr well with the need'

of lhe post-pandarmic world. Public scteiy, o
commnicatinns, O sovarsian defencs copa

www.filtronic.com Stcek Cods: FTC
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Chief Executive's review continuved

the ropid devalopment of LEQ space networks, ore well
funded secrors that resoncte with governments, investors,
and the publiz atlarge.

Businass plans for FY 2024 reflect our confidence in the
imarkats we serve to delivar long term sustainalxle growth,
We have an agen and honest culture that is prooctive and
highly mativated 1o deliver excellence in oll aspects of our
tusiness. We will further deveiop cur prospacts over the
naxt 12 months with a focus on the following activities:

o PMaximise thi2 opportunity associoted with the fast -
growing LEQ Space backhowl cormmunications
market, including bath ground station and paylood
opplicotions.

o Deveioprnent of ness genaration MMIC designs that
will enabie us to continue the evolution of our mobile
taiecom backhoul solutions.

¢ Develop aur scolable Cerus pawer armplifier
platform 1o maximise the range of power ogtions at
selecred frequency bonds required for LEQ spose
COMMUNICation inks. ’

e Champion the UK Government Ralionai
Semicondustor Strategy and pasition Filtronic as o
trusted sovereign supplier of advanced RF puckaging
solytions,

¢ Dsuelop vur manufocturing capability to adad plashc
encapsulated devizes to our portfolio of hybrids and
SiP solutions

o Selecnvely target funding from agencies ond UK
Governmant initiatives that support and underpin the
deiivery of the Filtronic technology readrmog.

o Canfinued invesiment in our marketing activitiag
including enhonced wely coment and straregic use of
sazal media piatforms for targetad marketing,

e Strangthen the soles orgamsation with the deployrment
of diract sales and businass developmant rescurce
in the UK and Westzrn Europe and 2xpand indirec:
chanpels intha USA and Eucone through distribution
and representotve networks

Our core markets

e Consolidate the return an the investment in capital
equipment by winning outsourced assembly ond test
("OSAT") opxportunities with customers who require
speciolist hybrid and plostic QFIN packaging capability.

¢ Continue 1o align our business processes and equip
our facilities to achieve the accradiiation necessary to
undertake a higher leve! of UK defence programmes.

1 am pleased with the progress that the business has
made in the last financial year and remain excited by the
poteniiol that exists at Fiitronic. Thareis anincreosing
derrand for our high-performanie products ond unique
RF design capabilities, and based on our investments

in FY2023, lbeliave we are building the IP portfalic,
resources, ond expertise necessary 10 scale the business.
The specific rnarker segrents that we hove identified for
growth continue to develop at poce and os we embark on
a new financiol year, L alizve we are well placed to deliver
tong term sharshalder value.

Richard Gibbs
Chizf Executive Officer
37 July 2023

e Aerospace & defence

‘_[—' Critical communicaiions
——
Our markets ..__L »

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Market review

Filtronic's mission is to enable the future of microwave and mmWave communications by providing

advanced radio frequency (“RF") communications equipment incarporating specialist RF design and state-
of-the art manufacturing. Filtronic have targeted three strategic markets thot are forecasting significant
investment in RF technology and have the copability to deliver sustainable business growth. These markets
include telecommunications infrastructure, aerospace & defence (radar and electronic warfare ("EW")
applications) and stratospheric and low earth orbit ("LEQ") space applications. In addition, Filtronic serves
the critical communications market in North America where it hos worked for the leading original equipment

manufacturer ("OEM”) for over 20 years.

TELECOMMUNICATI
INFRASTRUCTURE

into 1l
infrastruc

XHaulfor armraunications infy

www.filtronic.com Sioch Code FTC
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Market review continued
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Market review continued

figwer top demiplifier {TTA) rarge -
perform well I the marker, it hos
odopted by the market leader asthe - ™

Fittronic will continuee to seek and develop opportunities W and D-band. Current adjocent applications of interast
in adjocent markers whera we can levernge existing inciude low-latency ond high-performance private
jerhinoiogy and capability. particutorty thase opolicotions networks, high-speed track-to-train networks, nmWave

associated with the licanced frequency ranges of Q/V/ E/  test systems, anid quantum computing apilications.

Fittronic ple Annuol Repaort and Accounts 2023



Objective and strategy

Filtronic plc is a designer and manufacturer of advanced RF communications products supporting
strategically important market sectors including telecommunications infrastructure, space, aerospace and

defence and the legacy market of critical communications.

Speed to market Lower whole Customisation Higher Agile culture
: life costs performance

Filtroniz have baen at the forefront of RF technology Baing o trusted supplier of rechnically advanced producrs
for over 45 years, and we create valuz for our chants in markers that place high volue on quality and relicbility,
oy encbling the future of RF, microwove ond mmWave enables us to differentiote ourselves from competition
communications. We focus on markets where we hove ond deliver profitable growth and a positive return for cur
a deep understanding of the sector and the customer’s shareholders.
p H fen WWe i o . 56 desicy . L .
oAppj-cfg(fxon, :‘/c'conll_eve‘;)c:g‘e.rofu ; ’.""y':if'c;"s. egn Qur strategy is focused on providing high performance
e;g;r sk cm«j :s_u;.a,qui', piu: olio to create innovativae RF solutions from 300MHz to 300GH: focused on three

te s 3 = "B . .. .
products and sustainable revence streoms. distinct primary growth markets.
Strategic markets

Telecommunications infrastructure

Acerospace and defence

Defence

www.filtronic.com Stact Code: FTC
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Obijective and strategy continved

Product & technology strategy

Datais universol and drives everything from loptops

to cars. Moving that data arcund is tricky, especiolly as
the requirements increase. Filtronic's expertise enables
seamiess connection with incraased bandwidth, reducad
tatency and improved connectivity. We wark with global
tachnology leaders because we provide a level of
expertise they cannot get elsewhere,

Brand strategy

Filtranic has o strong brand ond reputation for innavation,
quulity, callaborotion ond world class design and
manufocturing ocross the RF spectrum, We recognise

the value of a strong brand and hove invested in the
marketingtools 10 promote and build the Filtronic brand
across our high-growth sectors.

Sustainable revenue growth

Sustainable financial growth

Organisational overview

Filtronic currently oparates from four sites, Sedgefizld,
Leeds and Manchester in the UK and Salisbury, Maryland
in the USA.

Sedgefield, UK

mmWove design, manufactyre and test

Leeds, UK

RF design and assembly for werospace ond defence and
criticol communicotions

Manchester, UK
SotCom design centre

Salishury, USA

RF assembly and rest for critical comenunications

Ohbjectives for FY2024

Nrive revenue growth in FY 2024,

« Capirclise on further conrrast wins in LEO space market.

» Continue o develop tha DS TL refationship and push to
szcure folow on ceniracts fram the initiol developraen
pr-;grc:rnv‘n:_--;,

+ Expand outsourced semiconducior assembly and fest

("OSAT Y copability to adjacent hi-reliobility mambats in o

& gasand telecorms.

Aupport the Uk Govarnmeat Mational Serniconductor

Strategy and position Filtronic as a contributor to the

sovrsign supply chain.

« Expond indirent zhannals to market For RF subzystemsin
the USA and selectsc European and Asian countries.

+ 15 Trade shaows planngd with o focus on expanding
prasence and building brand cwearenass in our strateg
rivarks)s,

Objectives for FY2024

Continua to build good moarmentum for future growth in
existing and emerging markets.

+ Continus tainvest in RED and sales ond rarketing.

« Continuz 1o invest in new technolegy and broaden our
product offaring.

« Davelep our oparationol canatality to offar new services

12 new and auisting custamers.
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Technology and innovation

for FY2C

Develop SSPA concept for the LEO ground station
apphications.

- Productisation of nexr geceration MICs with o

wracuction mask set.

« Complete qudlificaiion of glastic quod flot no-fzad
package C"QF N} with lead customer,

< Capitelise on ths tuneable filter pragrarsme 10 wWertify
lead QEM customer.

+ Davelop high poswar {x2} transceiver and SSPA prociy:t
family based on Filleonk power cornbining corcept.

+ Develop X2 ronge with Hercules foc low latency private
networks.

ves for FY2074

Turget Space Agency and UK Gaverminent funding 1o
urelervrite core 1P development activity of Ka, Q/Y and
W-band moadutes for LED payload apphizations.

zting technicues

ta baid

varticol

vz use of dicect mark

« impbarnent o new BMRP system as part of gur
procourement sleaiegy.

« Erabedihe £5G srategy inte the business.

« Crgote o high performaonge cultses withiv the operation.

« Adopt the nevs apprenticeship progresmrng to buld far

the futre,

Objaciives for FY2024

Redure anergy consumptian ond rainimise woste,
o Build skillz far thz fulureand promate SYE# in the local
CCMTRUNTY.

« Remcwve single waste plastics from our site,
» Actively promote sguaiity, diversity and inclusion in the
: YR ity :

LSS,

s
« Crzate alaarning sod devalopment culturz,
+ Iraprove corrpLaication 1 our employees.

o Scope and plos For 1ISQ27001.

www.filtronic.com Stack Code: FTC



Obijective and strategy continved

Where we operate within the RF Spectrum
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Financial review

Notwithstanding o heovy focus on top-line growth,
another successive year of profit generation
enabled further investment to achieve key strategic
objectives, despite macro-economic headwinds
and well documented industry-wide semiconductor
shortages.

Good progress continues 16 be made by the Group with
Adjusted EBITDA generation delivering £1.3m(2022:
£2.5m) for the year, infine with morket expectohons. ‘We
mMointained iINvestment into e business, particulorly in
the areos that wilt drive growth as we copitalise on the
opporiunitias within our core markats. \We are in the
fortunate position of continuing to see growth prospects
1N Qur core sectors, when many morkets are strogagling
with well documznied zconomic ond political uncertainty.
Given the elevated pipeline of new business, we will
miaintain owr focus on those thot offer a high rore of retuen
and deliver shareholder volue in the coming vear,

Revenue

Haod it not been for the widely publicised global
samiconductor component shorrages, this report would
nowve been heralding another year of revenue growth.
Having navigated the global sermiconductor component
shortage crisis exceptionolly well since the issue frst
surfaced a couple of years ago, itwas frustrating thar

a coupla of ricne component parts braught cutput of

o core praduct offering 1o cthalt in Q3 of the financial
veor. This was adirect resuit of the semiconducror
supplier priositising Guiput of mare widely consumed
parts to other markets, resulting in reschedules from the
suppiier that could not be mitigated. The conseguence
of this was an annual revenue decrease of 5% 1o

£16.3m (2022: £17.1m). During the year, solesinto the
telecommunications infrastructure markei performed
pacriculoriy well whilz we were delighted ra recgive on
order feom o morket leading player in the LEO space
market, of which ¢ subsrantial amount was reclised in
Y2023,

Ws are pleased thot the pipeline continues i build,
particularly in aerospoce and defence and the emerging
marker of spoce. A bey strategic objactive of the busingss
has been ta broaden cur customer base, and thiss
evidenced i the yeor by the decrease in the revenue
cancentrotion of our three largest customers 1o 73%
{3022 21%), whilst we niow have four (2022 three)
customers each genarating aver 107 of aur revenus and

(AR S
T e
in toial 5%,

Sales ta the telecommunizations infrosteucture market
weree parficuiarly strong this y2ar as the pacz of 5G
oackhaut rollouts cecalerated, thanks in part to the release
of E-baond specrtrum by goverriments around the world.
This ted to sales 1o this sector increasing year-on-year

by 40%. This stronger demand can, in sorne port, be
epportionzd fo inventory stocking ot our leod custamear

to encble them fo flex 1o demand reguirements if they are

successfulin the Indion market where E-band has racently
beenlicenced.

Sales of Xhaut products to other markets, including the
spaca morket, were up $725 on the prior yeor mainiy clue
1o the new custorner win in the LEQ space morker, The
contract win enabled us to deliver further growih within
our £-bond and derivotive technology products. This

is anexciting and emerging market for us, whare our
technology and expertise is highly celevant. The initiol
centroct from o major LEO playar, valued at £2.3m,

10 underga @ triol in the ground starion using E-bonad
rachnology, demonstrares the atiractiveness of our
capability. Qur ability to ramp and manufacturs ropidly
tix keep tha poce with this fast-maoving markel gives us o
competitive advaniage refutive 1o traditional supgliers to
the spoce industry.

Sales of oerospoce & defence products saw a year-on-
yeor reduction of 41%, purtly as o result of supply issues
pushing shipments inta FY 2024, but mainly due to o hiatus
in supply of an established programme that ended in the
pravious financial year. This marker rernains eritical to

cur growth plans, and despire the reduction, we conlinge
10 see contract wins for developraent wark. DSTL ic the
Mell's framework 1o 2ngage with SMEs, and we were
deligited to win two naw contracts m the year on this
plattor i with revenug Troo both programmes recognised
i the yeae,

Thelegacy products supplizdinto the critical
cemmunicotions marksl were impacted by upstream
compenent issues within the system-leval prodict This
resuitedt in g decraasz of revanus i this market of 20%,
This trend is expectad to reverse in FY 2024, with dernond
restored 1o normalised levels, which wa enficipate vall
provide an uplift in revenue ia the next finoncial yeor. The
TTA product continued to g form well, roving exceedad
aur expectenans in the prior yaar We wor more markei
share in the vear and grew cur brand profils with key
zustomer teams. We also won o nurmber of ather zontrocrs
1 this market outsicle of our lead customay, through both
our direct and indirezrsoles channels.

Operating costs and headcount

Operating costs increased by 6% inthe year ta £15.0m0
{2022: £9.4m) as overheads wers controlled tightly i

tha adrinistrative areas of the business to encbie us 1o
conrtinug investing in engineering and sales and marketing
resource which will drive business growth,

wwwifiltronic.com Stoce Code: FTC
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Financial review continued

The Group's largest overhead is salory-related costs,

representing nearly 70% of the operational cost base,
whichincreased by £0.4m (7%). Whilst maintaining
headeount at a similar leval to the prior year we did
change the mix of employees during the year with
recrvitment of erployees in revenue generating funciions

such as enginzering and business davelopment thet
genarally ottract a higher salory. These increases
were paortly offset by improvements in manufactunng
efficiencies ond further auromation of operating
processes.

The recruitment of business development resource
strengthens our direct chonnel to morker and is key 1o
zapitalising on opportunities in the high growih murkets
we operore within, Continuing the investment into
enginaering is critical and it wos plaasing 10 see that we
aot only increased the nuraber of enginears, but they bring
valuable expertise and experience, which has significantly
upskilled the feam. This enables us ta servics alarger
opportunity pipeline, increase the number of pr oduct
developments for customers and expond our technology
roaddmap 1o position us well 10 execute our strotegic glans.

Given this shift, there was a slight increase in the toral

number of employees in the Group during the year

which iz reflected in the average headcount increasing

10 125(2022:124). An anolysis of the Group's average
headcount is presented balow:

Totol heodcount 125 124

Wz arre cdanning to add further business devalopmernt
resaurcein Fi2024, to augmient aur direct access

3 market, whilsi we olso plan 1o bring in additional
engingering resource to deliver scheduled pragruramas
and accelerate new product dedivery. lovestment in our
anginesring teams is critical to sustainubla financial
growth and we plan 1o mointain this spend ¢t around 127%
e mare of revanue. This will ensure we hove the resource
in place to capitolise on growth opportunities ard keep
chead of our competitors with the latest technology.

Otirzr costs were mianaged tightly throughout the veor
with cost sovings of tO..?m realised in odministrorive
functicns.

The Group has also been highly active in gront funding
channals 1o further suppart growth initiotivas andl
inyastmeznt, Whiist other operofing income rediced
against the prior yeor, as we praviously received Covid
business support from tha U5 govarnment, we have had a
numier of successas over recent years with capital grants
ircls key pieces of rmachinery. Looking forward, we ara
stting increased effart into securing ravenue grants to

help fund our technology roadmops.

Alarge portion of our product developmient in the year
was zustorner funded which mointoined a healthy flow of
cash during the developrent phase of the enginzering
projects. However, we also invested our own money in
developing products as port of our technology rondmap,
particularly 10 develop solutions for the spoce market os
well as Morpheus X2 to give aur custormers higher power
in telecornmunications infrastructure. Consequently,

we capitalised £0.5m of developrment costs in the year.
Further commentary on thase capitalised developrnent
casts con be sean in the Research and Development
section of this review.

Adjusted EBITDA
The Group utilises an alternative performance measure
("APE) to track performance of the businzss. This APM
is Adjusted EBITDA as it measures the quality of zarnings
withaut the impact of exceptional items and non-cash
expenses such os depraciation and amortisation.
Adjusted EBITDA for the yeor wos £1.3m (2022: £2.8m)
representing o 55% decreose whilst Adjusted operating
profirwes £0.2m (2022: £1.6m) representing an 85%
decrense. This was the result of wecker gross profit

from lower revenus, ond o weaker sales mix due to

lower representarion of high margin aerospace and
defence revenue and higher reprasentation of 5G
talecarnmunications equipment which is o price sensitive
morket

The table balow shows the reconciliation of op=rating
profir delivered at £0.2m (2022: £
EBITDA.

2.0m) and to Adjusted

Taxation
A taue credit of £0.dm (2022 13 charge of £0.4m) was
recogmised inths year s o prm:o:,-:ly vrracognised
deferred tax asset was realised g:vamnﬂ directers expecr
10 utitise more of the deferred tox assatin future periods.
Tha Group also benefits from RD rax credits g given the
developmaent of new rechnalogy which lowers the amount
of texable profir
With subsiantial deferred tax ussers, including those
not1ecognised on the balance sheet, the Group will
continye to benafit from not having « tax ability for the
foresecobla future.

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023



Research and development costs (“"R&D")
Totol RRD costs in the year before capitalisotion

ond omorisation of development coste were £2.0m
(2022: £1.7rn). The Group incurred engineering costs
on a mixtyre of customer funded developments and
development of our own technology roadmag.

The Group remains committed to investing in R&D for
future growth ond cansequently meosures R&O spend
s 0 KPL Key creas of spend in the yaar included product
development for each of our key growth markets
spanning relecemmunications infrastructure, aerospace
ond defence, spauce and development of copability ot new
frequency bonds including Q, VY and W-band. The year
ahzad will see us continue 1 invast in the development of
our own strategic technology roadmap and proprietary
IP enabling us ta build long -term shareholder volue in the
years chead.

Recruitmment of RF engineers huz been on indusiry-wide
1350€ for some fime, byt we are pleased with recent
successes in attracting new ralent ta the business at each
of our three LUK engineering development sites. We will
augment this by building an orgarisation fit for the future,
maintaining our graduate receuitment scheme and
adding o new apprenticeship prograrome.

The Group capitolisesits development costs inline with
IAS 38 as set out innote 1 to the financial stotaments.

A reconciliotion of RAD coss before copitalisation and
armortisation can be seenin the table below:

(259}

(222)
03

Capital expenditure and right of use assets
Capital expenditure increased significantly in the vear,
with ¢ largs: elemaent of investment occurdng in Q4 of tha
financiol yzar. The total arrount of copiiol purchosed
was £1.5m (2022, £D.6m) with investraent made into
OF N plostic packaging equipment and enginsering

test systerns suitable for vperoting ot frequiency bands
important for sgace applications vtilising Q and V-band.

Warranty provision

Infine vith industry practice, the Group provides
warranties o customers over the quality and perfacmance
of tha products it sells. Reflecting o full risk: analysis

of current commerciol contracrs of 31 iMay 2023, the
warranty provision was £0.3m {2022: £0 1rn)

Funding and cash flow

The Group recorded a decrease in cash and cash
equivadents to £2.6m (2022: £4.0m) ot the year-end.
Cash generated from operating activities in the year wos
EY.Orm (2022 £2.3m) as Adjusied ESITOA perfarmancs
drove cash generation offser by increased warking capital
requirements,

Net cash, when inciuding all debt except property leases
ot the end of the pericd, wos £1.6m (2022: £3.1m), whilst
overall net cash including property teases was £0.3m
(2022: £2.2m).

We also have additionol cosh headroom available
through o £3.0m invoice discounting facility with Barclays
Bank ol in the UK and a $4.0m invoice foctoring facility
with Wells Fargo Bonk in the USA. Both facilities were
undrawn at 21 May 2023 (2022: undrown) and wilt need
renawing witiin 12 maonths of the dote of signing the
Annual Report.

Going concern
In assessing going concern, the Board have considered:

o The principal risks foced by the Group: which are
discussed within the Risk managernent’ section of the
Annua! Report;

o The finonziul position of the Group nzluding forecosts
and financial plons;

o The healthy cash position @i 31 May 2023 of £2.6m
{2022: £4.0m) ond the additionct headroor ovailoble
through the undrawn invoice discounting facilities arid
cverdraft (2022; undrawn);

e Global semiconductor compoanant shortages impacting
supply chains and the poreatial for customer arders to
remain unfullillzd for proloaged periods: ond

o The econamic neadwinds the world is focing with the
aotenfiol for customers to reassess their priorities, with
upportunitias postponed or curtailed.

Following the abavs coasiderations, the Diractors are

satisfied that the Groep hos adequate financial resources

1o continua in operational existance for o periad of ot least

12 months from the date of this repori. Accordingly, the

going concern basis hos been adopted in the praparation

of the Annual Repart for tha year ended 31 Moy 2023,

Michael Tyerman
Chiaf Financial Officer
31 july 2023

www.filtronic.com Steck Cocle: FTC
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Key performance indicators

The Group's management team uses various Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs") to monitor the
financial and non-financial performance of the business. Below are the measures and metrics
which the Board believes best indicate the financial performance of the Group's continuing
operations.

Revenue (€m) Adjusted EBITDA (£m) Cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities (Em)

£16.3m £1.3m £1.0m

«Q

~
M
Al

2020 2021 2022 2023 2020 2021 2022 2023 2020 20271 2022 2023

The total amount the Group arvs The Board recagnises auliusrad

fromt 2 of products ond E£8ITOA a5 o key matric of the

Smrvicos, underiving health of the business,
The Boord recognises that cash
flow frarm aperabing ucrivitas
indizates whether the Group is
uble to generote sutfeieal postive
cash Ao 1o racmtain and geos:
i3 0pTrahans, OF it My Tecuire
axterncl fundisg far finoncing.

R&D costs (£m) R&D costs as percentage

£ 2 0 m of revenue (%)

13%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2020 2021

2022 2023

The Boord recogrises thot the The 8ourd razognises that the
Group needs o invest in now Groug nesds to invest i new
products, copobiliizs and proriucts, capabilities and
jechinoicgiss o participate ino technologies 1o participate in e
rchnoiogy-driven macket and technoiogy-drivan marker and
messures the investmant made n ereosures the invesiment mads n
reseorch andd daveloprren:. rasearch and devalopmant

Filtronic plc Annual Report und Aczounts 2023



Risk management

The Board recognises strong risk management is key to our success and achievement of our
strategic objectives. A rigorous assessment of the principal risks facing the Group is regularly
undertaken with quick and effective responses taken when needed. These principal risks carry
financial, operational and compliance impacts including those that threaten the business model,
strategy, future performance, solvency and liquidity. They are identified based on the likelihood of
occurrence and the severity of impact on the Group that could result in damage to our reputation or

business performance.

Approach to managing risk

The Boord is uimately respansibie far the cvercdf risk:
management system gnd internal conirols opplied
throughout the Groug: 16 ensure a structured aond
agpropriate approaach to risk is takerin line with
strategic priorities and risk appetite. The Audit and

Risk Committee has oversight of risk manogement

and reports to the Board with its findings. The directors
recognise that risk is intwerent in any business so octively
marages rother thon eliminates risk 1o achieve business
cbiectives which includes review of the effectiveness of
these controls.

Risk managemant within the Graup is manoged by the

Risk Management Conmmittee made up predominantly

of the Senior Leadership Team including the Executive

Drrzcrors.

The teamis responsibsle for:

o idenrifying the risk and the negative and positive risk
circumstances;

Board of Directors

Audit and Risk

Committee Risk Managemant

Committec

Outsourced

internal audit 3 ]
, Funciional

risk registers

HIGH S

4
g3
i
3
a
2
1
LOW
LOwW impact
Key:
@ Market requirements @ Relionce of key customers
@ Technology @ Cost inflation
@ Supply chain @ Cyberrisk

»  Azszssing and evaluaning the litelihoad and impact
of those risks;

Reporiing the risk; and

Managing ine ey risks in gccordance with
established processes under the Groug's operational
policies end controis.

This process inchudas o regulor review of tha Group's
risk register considering existing and emerging risks,
nisk scares and mitigation octien plons prepared by
risk owners 10 manage and radyce the risk. Reporting
within the Group is structured so thet key issues can be
ascaloted ropidly thraugh the monagement 1eom to
the Board where apgropriate.

www.filtronic.com Stack Code: FTC
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Risk management continved

Managing new emerging risks

We monitor new ond ernerging risks closely. Inthe
yaar, we have not added any new risks to our risk
ragister, but we have downgradsd the risk relating
to talent retantion and acquisition as the competitive
environment for skilled employees with experience
reievant o Filtronic hos eased. Therefore, we have

removed the risk from principal risks and uncertainti2s.

Risks alsa present opportunities as well as potential
downside; the global electronic component shortoge
creatzd opportunity when cur competitors within the
critical communications morket were unable to supply

Our principal risks and uncertainties

Risk cdescription

The markets we supply into are
tims2-sensitive ond opariunilieg
may be iost if we fail 1o achieve
custorner specification or mee!
the timescales required 10 racitch
market dernand. This rmuay alse
impact an future ravenue.

For productsin the praduction
myele, techneiogy insertion is offan
mr-luirod o5 0 means of achieving
cost racuchions toimarove
product marging.

Our product competitivenass is
heavily infiuenczd by t2chnolayy
chowes ot product concept stage

: h'xr,xugy Ve \.lc-venup 3
inapprapriote s could result in
missed oppoiunities,

Ru yre 1o’ With the eapid eveluticn of

ble rnarkar may
be offected, Faluce 1 forecast
marker moyemants Corcegtly thys
Missing opoortunities o wicogly
cring praduct longevity
:.JU]J impuct on lang-hzrm
revera and profis.

product as they encountered material shortages. We
capitalised on this opportunity o3 we had mar;gofed
materiol shortagas to this market by leveraging our
balonce sheet ro buy additionol componants over and
above our own requirements.

We have mitigating plans to cover each of the risks we
ore manoging.

In the yeor chead, our priorities will focus on ensuring
we meet our engineering project timelines given the
volume of programmes we are actively managing to
support customers und develop our own technology
roodmap.

Fltronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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Risk desciiption

Dur ravenye is currently weighred
rowarcls our four largrast
cusIOmers,

The koss of ony of these
custorners, moteriol rechiction in
orders froms any such custarmes or
the tirning of custorner projects
muay hove a ratzriol adverse
effect spon Filitonic's fironcial
condition,

There i5 @ glotiad el=ctronic
component shortage irmpacting oll
sectore and compuanies relying on
ernbesdded zlecironic compaonents
due to reducad supoly and
increosed daracud. Aninalality 10
source components or exterclac
supplier lead imes may prevent
shiprrent of products to fuffil
orclers.

inflation in the UK, as meosured

§ by the Consumer Price Inde is ar

E clevated bavels, driven by broad-
based costincreases. This coulel
create s business environment
nwhich customers redirect their
spending frarm aew projects to
more pressing needs and cost
Monagpment.

| Wage infiation, :ncreased energy
costs and rising component prices
could have a directirnpact on
our undeslying cost base ancl
profitability.

www.filtronic.com Siack Codle: FTC
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Risk management continved

Risk description

Tharais a risk to the Group if
there is unauthorised access
1o, or integrity issues with, our
dota systems. This could couse
significant reputationol damage
as well s service disruptions
and potentialimpact on orders,
revenue and profit,

Risk key
0 Increased risk: @ No change O Decreused risk

Filtronle ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023



Our people
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We are extremely proud of our people and their contribution in supporting organisational performance

and strategy.

Excephional people aliow us to zreate exceptional
products ond sohstions for our cuslomers, and the markets
we serve, We are proud to have enpioyees who are just
that. Our Engineering and Operations teams are very
highly regarded by bath domestic and internationol
customers and other stakehaidlers olike.

Despite avery bucyant recruitrant market for the last
18 maonths, our workforce remains very srable; we have
an average lengrh of service of over 10 yearsand en
amployze lurnover rate of lass thon2%.

Employee Communication and Engagement

Lost year we ran our first Employee Survey with an 32%
raspondent completion rate, which yielded very positive
resuits, which wa believe, demonstrares robust employee
engogement. The process was managed by an external
consuitant ty encourage open and honest feedback. frorm
QU SMPIDYSES IN 4 QNONY MOUS enaronmeant,

The resulis highlighted sorn2 areas for improvement,
meniy ralating to communication, and we hove taken
a number of actions, in an anempt 1o address ony gops
and we will continue 1o listen 1o cur employees and act
occordingly.

On areguloe basis, management engoges with our
employess through o range of formal and informal
chunnels, including briefings and memos from the
Executive Directars, team meetings, 1-2-1', and onkine
publications via varicus saciol medio nutlets

Through our HR system we have also enobled surveys
covering key aspects of employment suzh as onbouarding
and 2quality, diversity and inclusion. Voluntary leavers are
interviewed to provide un additional rmeans of expressing
their views enabling us to analyse data to address ony
retention issues or implement suggested improvaments.

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (“EDI")

ED s embedded v our culture: procedurally ond
behaviourally from recruitment, employ2e development,
successian planning through to pay audits. We want to
refiect the lozol comrnunitias in which we operote cnd the
diversity in our workforce istargely reprasenative of this.
Fitironic has equal opportunity palicies whick form part
of the Graus core values and which ara expacted of
employees, suppliers and other stakeholders. Dur policies
and practices erphasise thz importance of freoting
pacpls ina non-discriminatory and inciusive monner
across the fulfemployment tife cycle.

This yeor we conducted o full squal oy oudit (gender and
minerity groups) and are extrernely satisfied that we ore
un equcd pay emplover.

Ourworkforce gender split is, female 37% male: 3%, The
maiority of rachnicol and manageriai positions ore held by

Please see below for o snapshot of key engagement
indicators from the survey:

males ond we have therefore sef ourselves aninternal

targat to increase fernala represantation across tazhnicol,

manageriol and leadership positions. This is a chollenging

target a3 the angineering sector is still very much maole

dominated with only 22% of engineers being ferale but

we hae so far adopred the following in ar ontempt to

redress the balance:

o ssiablished focus/support grougs for fernale
arnployees;

* improvements to communication and recruitmeant;

o refresh of the careers section on the Filironic welssite,

* more cliverse interview panels,

o suppotting wicler STEM initiatives; ancd

o closely monitoring the career progression and
promotions of women and utiiising supgorted strelch
ussignments to unleash the potential.

We are odditionaily hoping that our partnership with the

tocal University Technical College, UTC Durhior, thot

avgments our olready establichzd graducte programme,

will enable us 1o reach fernale STEM students of a nuch

zarher poisit and offer them work experience ond T level

placaments to engoge and inspire.
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Our people continued

Employee Remuneration

Qur compensation stiategy 0ims 1o attrast and retain
talent whilst promoting and rewarding sustainable
performance and contributions af el levels of the
organisation. The Bourd and Remuneration Commiittes
continuolly look to ensure that our remuneration provisions
sUppOrt our strategy and business objectives.

The market competitiveness of salaries across the
compuany is ossessad ot local or national market level,
depandant upon role, ond is reviewed annually.

In addition ta competitive solaries, we also offer a suite of
benefits including, but not limited to, employer matched
pensicn contributions plus 2%, 10 o mozimurn of 8%, long-
term incopacity benefir, 4 x base poy sum life assurance,
childcare vouchers and a cycle to work scheme.

/e love to encourage innovotion within our business, the
Technology Leadership Recogrnition Palicy oims to do

this by recognising ond rewarding innovative thinking

and professional personal devalopment. A aumber of
awards were mode in the year, under this scheme, for new
potent opplications and gronts as weli white popers and
technicol presentations. To complement this, we have also
introdluced a ‘Bright ldeos’ scheme managed through our
T-card system, to broaden the reward scope for new ideas
and continucus improvenient suggestions. Vouchers ore
presemted guarterly to employees with the best ideas.

We also lika to reword loyalty and offer an odditional
duys holiday every five years to a masimum of 15 yeors.
Afrer this, we gift o long service oword 10 our employees
rzeognising their commitrnent 1o the Company.

Current headcount metrics

Employee Share Plans

We hove share option plans designed fo align employees’
interests with the Group's performance and the interest

of our shareholders. For information on the share-based .
compansation pfons please see note 31.

UK-based employees of Filtronic ore eligible to participate
inthe Save As You Earn ("SAYE") Scheme. Options are
gronted at the closing middle market price on the day
before issue and vest after completion of o three-year
savings period.

Wellbeing

We are committed to supporting our employees,
particularly through the cost-of -living crisis, and the
additional pressure this has presented for mony.
Therefore, we have exponded our Employee Assistance
Programrme, WeCare, to include additional mental
health and financial advice for employees, as well as theic
families. Ernployees have 24/7 access to an online GP,
rnantal health counselling as well as legal, financial, and
nutritional odvice.
Wi have introduced increosed flexibility in our working
practices 1o further support employee wellbeing;

e hybrid working;

o flexible warking hours; and

o choice of operational site 10 work from,

All forrnal fle<ible working requasts hove also been
approved this year to cide work-life bolance, fomily
support (parent and carer) and pra-retiremant scole
down.

Length FY2023 FY2022
of service % % Function FY2023 FY2022
® 0-5 59 69 % %
®5-10 13 " ® Manufocturing 52 o
® 10-20 12 27 @® R&D 34 23
z 20+ M 8 @ Soles&marketing 5 4
>25 S 1 # Administration 9 12
Gender FY2023 FY2022 Nationality FY2023 FY2022
% % % %
@ Male 63 60 @ Americon 9 10
® Female 37 40 ® British 80 78

® Other 12 12
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Looking to the Future - FY2024 Priorities

Fitronic continues 10 work tawards future-praofing the
business to ensure we have the 1alent to support current
and future needs. This yaar we established o partaership
with the University Techmicol College ("UTC") Mewton
Aycliffe who run an alteractive mainstream school
curriculum, focussing solzly an STEM subjects.

What do you love most about your job?

. I have always had a passion for working on latest

; technology, as ! love learning new things. My job allows
- me to find creative ways to make it smorter, faster and
- more cost-effective.

Why were you attracted to Filtronic?

: Filtronic is an innovative leader in RF, a well-respected
* company whose technology direcﬂy impacts the daily
_lives of millions of people who indirectly rety on their
* technology. Filtronic’s mission and values are also well
. aligned with my personal attitudes and goals in life.

* 1 wonted to work for an or%omsohon that's leading the
* future of it's industry, one that doesn't stand still.

Tim Hargreaves

FMoanogement Acoouniant

Whot do you love most about your job?

27

Owr first conort of enginsanng apprentices will join in
September 202 2 ulengside our anrwol intoke of
graduates. Embedding the c:ppre_mireship prograrme 1o
a successful cutcome will be one of our key obijectives for
20324, alongside further investment in supporting STEM
actenties.

".'Clcnre A?her?on )
: Lunrl OpL ru‘.:r

How long have you worked at Filtronic?
| 1 have worked ot Filironic for over 20 yeors.
What's the best thing about your job?

l Being part of o great team that alwoys works
! well together, whether it is seeing new products
from development to full production or
meeting tight customer deodlines, | always feel
the team pulls together and provides support
from all levels.

Working with the other departments and stakeholders. Everyone at Filtronic is extremely

helpful and willing to go that extra mile.
What's a typical day look like?

replying to emails from the US, resolving any questions.

presentation for key stakeholders.

Working in Finance, you rarely have two days that are the same. The morning will start with

{ will then usually have a range of ERP development and support, key analysis of current or
historic financial data to.identify trends or project work combining mulfiple sets of dotainto a

Between these tasks, there will usually be some od hoc requests from other departments
which depending on the complexity, will also be completed during the day.

Filtronic wos really supportive in helping me become a qualified accountont, funding the
exams and offering flexibility in my working hours to fit around the course requirements.

www.filtronic.com Siocy Cads: FTC




K Thomas M

anklow.
CRF Enginger oL T

Why you were attrocted to RF

I studied a general engineering course at Durham University, specialising in electronics part woy through.
The two topics | found most interesting were Communications and Microwave engineering, both in
regord to the theory and operation but also the proctical opplications in how critical they are in modern
society. It is a field which is constantly changing and evolving, providing new challenges.

What do you love most about your job
1really enjoy the practical work, induding testing the products. For most of my first year | have been

heavily involved in build ond testing to meet both internal and external delivery requirements, an
experience | have both enjoyed and found rewarding.

Adele Pliscott

SiP Puckaging Eng

Why RF, what attracted you to this industry? O ur va l ues

RF engineering offers unique challenges, for
example, in order to support the electrical
designs, the selection of materials and
processes is critical.

Another aspect is thot further technology
advancements for RF create interesting
challenges for which | enjoy overcoming
these technical boundories.

‘Integrity - :E'xc>é ence

Why Filtronic?

Values

Filtronic is highly recognised for its RF
abilities, from the initial telephone calls |

had prior to my employment | was extremely
happy with the discussions for technical,
business, and future vision for Filtronic.

The leadership was inspiring and strong
whilst also offering my inclusion. The
marketing was active and the brand was
exciting and pushed the standards compared
to our competitors.

Behoviours
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Sustainability report

At Filtronic we have developed an ESG and sustainability strategy that works in unison with our corporate
goal to create value for our customers through technology leadership. The aim of the strategy is simple. We
will focus on deliverable ESG goals aligned with our corporate strategic targets.

Key Objectives

ERNANCE

. Provide o rbbust.cyber security

. Equality, diversity ond inclusion
("EDI) in the workplace and framework protecting the data
encourage greater gender we hold
power balonce . Comply with export controt

. Provide a great place to requirements
work f_°" our employees . Moinfain strong and enforced
enabling them fo learn and policies and procedures and
develop, crecting professional promote a strong code of

opportunities

. Engage with our employees,
keep them informed and pay
fair sataries

. Support STEM initiatives

in the local community and
provide quolity employment
for young people through
apprenticeships and
graduate recruitment

conduct and ethical behaviour
in our business

We are committed to enhancing our impect on the workd with ¢ robust and clear ESG strategy. Within each area
we've highlighted clear obyachives which air ro forus our efforts and ensuce thot we org able to rnaximise our irmpacd
by focusing on the key areos whars we son engage and influence our stakeholders. Our objectives are thouighi
through, aligned to our corporate sirategy and oligned to the UM Global Goals, so we can best position our skills and
experience to work fowards building prosperity for all. We have a clecr readmap ohead of us and we look farword 1o

delvering on our commitments to these goals,

www filtronic.com Stock Cose: FTC



Sustainability report continued

Operating our business in a way that cares for the environment and people has never been more important
thanitis today. The world is facing significant environmental and social challenges with climate change,
environmental destruction, energy availability and increased costs of living.

As a designar and manufacturer of RF rachnolagy
equiprment we are proud of our role in enabling wireless
communications. This has provided tha world with many
benefirs including reduced travel needs and enabling
remote working whilst providing social benefits of
improved communications with our family and friends.
Howevar, we recognise thot we have a part 1o ploy in
heiging to tackle the challenges facing the plonet and its
peogle roduy.

Filtronic take this responsibility serously and ore working
10 creote a sustainable business fit for the future, delivering
consistent financial returns and long-term value to our
employees, customers, suppliars, shareholders alike. A
business that embraces its environmental obligations,
providzs opportunities for its zmployees to learn and
develop whilst maintaining a healthy and safe envirnmant
and proraores STEM skills in the lozol community offering
opportunities to its people.

Filrronic 1akes these ESG respansibilities to the heort of
its business operations. In addition 1o complying with
the Quoted Companies Alliance (‘QCA") Governonce
Code, Filtronic has in pioce intfernational trademarks
and recognised accredilations for nfarmarnion Security
{IASHME Governance Gold and Cyber Essentiols Plus),
Quality Management {I50%001), Environmantal
Quality Monagement (1I5014001) and defence industry
comphance such a3 JOSCAR. Togethar, these systems
embed a strong culturz of sound, ethical values and
behaviour within the Group. Never complacent, we are
ahways steving to do more and continually improve.

Filtronic has rmade significant progress over the last year
in terms ofits ESG agarddo. Whiishwe hove been achively
operonng within o strong E5G framaveark, we had not
formally documented and published eur ESG strategy

or sei o haseline from which to maasure and rmaonage
perfarmance, nos hacd we pui in the pubilic domain the ey
Gojectivas thar matter 1o us and our siakeholdzrs.

Duyring the veor, we undertonk a revew i inform our
formalised ESG stratzgy. Thisincludad anidenhf
phase of the key issuas we waried w0 form our ¢
of the strategy and o hoseaiine measurernant from which to
aauge pacormance,

In identifying nus objectives, we were clear our frameawork
would hove ot irs core:

Identification of ESG issues

To identify the key environiantal, social and governonce
issues that are o priority for Filironic we underiook an
exercise to iclentify the ESG issues of significance to our
Group, stakeholders and industry. This resulted in 51 issues
identified and categorised us follows:

* Cavironmen:al {23)

* Scciol {22

* Governonce (18}

Prioritisation

This list wos condensad, following a review by the Senior
Leadership Team of the Group, focussing on the issues that
mattered to Fillronic, aligned to our corporate strategy ond
facused on areos where we could make on impact. The list
of 11 priority items emerged and these in turn were linked
10 the UN Sustoinable Development Goals to ensure we
were focussed on the issues thot were of global relevance
for sustainoble development. These strategic obijectives
can be sean below along with a plan for the next financiol
vear to continually improve our impact on the enviconment
ond society.

The ESG strantegy hos now been publishad ond o new
dedicated section of the Filtronic website has been created.
We would encnurage aur stakeholdens 1o iook at both the
wabsite and the brochure to understand our vision of how
we intend 1o suppoert sustainability. The brochure sets out
Filtronic’s opproach to £SG including our sirotegy ond

key objectives. The web address is https://filtronic.com/
investors/esg-strotegy/.

Ciiltronic

A sustainable business plan

thot delivers grawth for shareholders and has purpose

A sustainable organisation plan

that is fuiure focussed on how we daliver

A sustainable climate and waste plan

thot is for all ond has o positive impact in a broad sense

An ethical and values-based approach to conduct,
governance, regulation and the rule of law

thar demands integrity and ethical behaviour
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Environmental 0b|ecfrves

The Group is committed to protecting the environmert
through prevention of pollution and minimising our impoct
an noturol resources. As well os operating in compliance
with all relevant statutory and regqulctory obligotions, the
Group strives 1o implament environmental best practices
throughout aur activities and continualiy improve our
enviranmento! monoqpmmnt ystem to enhance our
environmenta! performanc As we haive now formally
documentad our E5G >ncﬂeg v, wa hove collected basedine
data of our current performiance to enable us to track and
MONitor progress improvemants,

stwe do

. fevel
g Kotion sensors on ail our lighting

100% sustainable energy
Bl ¢ Cycle-to-work schemezin ploce

W * El=crric vehicle charging points
Adopted a hybrict working policy

Remaoved foam frorm our shipping

angd timesheets

Matering and monitoring in ploce at ¢ roorm

Invested in newsr mars-efficient raachinery

NetPark and tMunchester supplied with

. packaging; replaced with cordbocird by S| e -

f o Implamented dacuSigato reduce our need . Remove smgle use ploshcs fro
to print docurnents to sign operanons :

B * Implermantad digizol systerns with workflow * Move business processes fo d:

for HR proceszes, expense monagemeni

e

The Group supports, trains and encourages its
employess ta act responsibly in off motters refating 19 the
environment,

The Group rakes account of relevant legislation and
regulotions and analyses its practices, processes and
roducts to reduce thair environrmental impaoct. We

olso work with our customers ond suppiliers to achievs

a high standard of environmentol stewardship. Filtronic
looks forword to receiving and irnplementing the UK
gowernment’s flow down to mdustry of its net-zero carbon
target which will involve measuring carbon emissions ond
mplernenting policies for carbon reduction or offsetting
the carbon that is released.

What we'll do next

document ' signoture, occounrs payoble
processmg et :

www.filtronic.com Stack Coslé: FTC
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Sustainability report continved

Social objectives

Qur core values of integrity, honesty and respect,
combined with a strong culture and an agreed set of
behaviours are criticai 10 our future development. The
'Our People’ section of this Annual Report and Accounts
sers out how we engoage with our employees, providing
opportunitizs and an environment to flourish with
everyone given an equal opgortunity. It olso covers key
social points such as employee rewards, behaviours,
culture and conduct.

Virhat we do

ED! training

policies

Value the individeal

Famaole-te-male ratio in our engineering
function is above the national average

Career davelopmant and quidance for
evaryone

Provide training ond development
programmes foe ali eolizagues
Filtronic Leadership Acadamy
Regulatory and mandotory iraining
Expertspealers

Technoiogy Leadsership Awards for pot
conferance popers and peer reviewstd

N ren

Detailed trcining needs analysis from
approsal process

200G

Regulor analysis of workforce demographics

Maon-discrininatory working proctices and

Assign an Executive spensor 1o off groduaie

Filtronic recognises thot it not only makes o difference

to its own employ2es bur also the wider communisy.

This latter point is porricularly pertinent ro our ESG
strategy 05 we can provide quality education, troining
and ernployment within the local communidy os well s
supporting local choritizs and foundations to help ouild a
sustoinoble society.

prOgressxon

e Eace u)rurJe netwarking ond industry event
aitendanc

o Comprehensive induchon process, for all new
STOIIRrS
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Fair pay and reword structure with reqular
benchmarking

Excellent benefits package including access
10 wellbeing support

Flexible working availoble

Celebrate long-term service with awards
New values embedded in the business
Town hall meetings and team meetings
T-card system for continuous improvement
and worker participation
Employvee engogement surveys

1 day paid leave given to all emplovees
undertaking charitable work
¢ Graduate recruitment

www.filtronic.com Srack Code: FTC
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Sustainability report continued

Governance objectives

Filironic have olways believed that sound governance is
fundamentalto the long-term success of the Company
and we follow the QCA Corporate Governance Code
which gives a firm foundation for our governance
structure. Having been listed on the London Stock
Exchange since 1994, the business has a robusr approach
to governance, but we can always strive for improvement.

Cyber Essentials Plus

Defence Assurance Risk Tool (“DART")

{ASME Governance Gold
Robust internal control framework
Trained personnel

Regular commwnication with an export

control expert

The Board and our monagement team will drive the ESG
agenda. We recognise that good governonce will be key
to ensuring the changes are embedded throughout the
business.

Compliance is critical to our operation, particularly as

we supply into sensitive markets such os cerospace and
defence, ond therefore strong governonce is ot the heart
of how we conduct business.

Strong Boards and Committees providing

strategic oversight and governance suppor?
Adherence to QCA Corporate Governance

cremp

Code

Strong suite of Group policies and internal
controls annually reviewed

Clearly defined and strong company vision
and culture

Maintenance of apprepriate accreditotions
and internal audits

Robust internal branding and document
control

Annual Report published each year reporting
strategic, governance and financial progress

The FY'2023 Strategic report has been reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors on 31 July 2023 and signed
onits behalf by

Michael Tyerman
Chief Financial Officer
31 July 2023
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Richard Gibbs (aged £4) : Chief Executive Officer

Appointed to the Board: 1 September 2620

Richord is an experienced director who has ted a nurmber of business operations
supplying semizonductor, RF and electronics subsystems so OEMs. Richard joined
Filiranic from Micross Compornieats, where he wos Panaging Director. Prior to his tirme
at Micross, Richord spent nine years o1 E2V Technologies, where he wes Group Sales &
Marketing Director and President of the RF Prodluct ond Hi-Reliability Semiconductors
Divisions, and 20 years with Honeywell, of which 10 years were spent monaging
Qverseus operations.

Michael Tyerman (aged 44) : Chief Finoncial Officer

Appointed to the Board: 1 April 2015

Michael jnined Filtronic in 2007 os Financial Controller of the Broadband business
and was promoted 1o the position of Group Financiol Conealler in 2009, He served
this position until his appaointment to the Board. Priar 10 joiring Filtronic, Michael held
various positions within Practer and Gamble, Huntsman and Komatsuowhich included
firne working in the Benetux and Nordic regions. Michaset is o Chertered Management
Accountant,

Non-Executive Directors

Jonathan Neale {oged 60) : Non-Executive Charrnon

Appointed to the Board: 15 November 2021

Committees:® @ ®

donathan is Chair and MNon-Executive Director of Filtronic. He also serves as o Mon-
Executive Director for the engineenng services business Contechs Holdings Lid and s
Trustee of the incorporated chority The Foundation for Szignce and Techralogy. Prior
tajoining Fiitronic, he spent seven yzars in defence electronics and electronic warfars,
10 years m cornmercial and defence aerospace with BAE systerns and 20 years with
Mcleren Graup Lid in executive positions ocross Formula 1, Automotive and Applied
Technology.

Peter (Pete) Magowan {cijeci 55) : Senior Independernt Mon-Exacutive Direcior
Appointed to the Board: 12 Mevember 2018
Committees: @ ® &

Pete was previously an early emiptoyee and main boord member of ARR Holdings,

an Esecutive of Fidelity Internationai Lid and General Fortner of Alta Berkaley

Mentire Partners. Pets’s early aperaticnal career was in sales and markering at
leading technology companies. He receivied a BSc degree in Elecirical and Electronic
Engineering from UMIST and has u Diplemain Morketing. He is also o Mon-Exazcutive
Direcior of Sclid Stare Group pls.

John Behrendt (cged 62) : Indegendant Man-Exscutive Director
Appointed to the Board: 1 January 2021
Committees: @ ® ®

Jonhn was Head of Principal investments with Eight Roadis, part of tha Fidelity natwork
of companies, from 2015 until 2020, John hos alksc held o number of leadership and

CFO for Teraview Limiied, and CFO for Alphamosaic Limited. John is a qualified
accountant with e Chartered institute of Management Accountants (CIFA),

Committee Key: @ Choirmon of Committze @ Audint @ Hominatiors ® Bamureration

W
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Governance report

Deor Sharsholder

lom plecsed 1o present the Filironic plc Governance regort
for the year endead 37 May 2023,

The Boord racognises the volue of good carporate
governance as the basis for promoting the long-term
growth and sustainability of the business. Governance
TrfQNgEmMeEnts ore reviewed on on ongoing basis 1o

ensure they ore fit for purpose and the Board continues to
consider that the Quoted Companies Alliance Corporaie
Governonce Code 2018 (“The Code”) provides tha miost
appropriote frarework for governonce for the Company's
size and compiexity, T‘mughout the yeor, we complisd
with oil priv scnoips of the Code & except for the separation of
the Compony Sacretary role which is currently undericken
by tha Chiet Financicl Officer.

The governance saciion includes the Corporote
governance statement, the Audii and Risk Committee
repor, the Nominations Commitize report and the
Diractors remunsaration report ond describes how Filtranic
hos applied the main principles of the Code during the
year. Further information on compliane can be found on
the Filtronic wabsiie al wwwfiltrenic.com/finvestors.
tamaware thot it is my responsititity to ensure thot
Fillronic has the governance fu'rungr-'rrpn‘f sinplaceto
suppor effective leadership ond promote the long-term
suceess of the Cornpany and that these arrangements ore
foliowed in prastice.

Jonathan Neale,
Chairman
37 Juby 2023

Corporate governance statement
Introduction

The Board acknowledyges the role that the ten QCA
Cods panciples hos in providing struciurg 1o the Gioup's
corperale governonce framewaork. This section explains
ave aclopsted the QCA Cods, incluting those
provisions whara wa do not currently comply.
Principle 1 - Establish a strategy and business model
whlch promotes long-term value for shareholders
plained fully within the strategis r‘-pf)' tof the Annual
Raport, our strategy is foassad araund four core areas:

¢ Telecommunications infrastructure: defeading
our Caerant position and :arge! new custormers by
ping tha E-bond roodmap to W-band with
premiym partormansa lvgf) nowal transcaivers, eotive
diplexar and SiP options based on inhowse MiMIC
cesign;

s Defence:incrensing defence project coverage with
major customers requiring RF hybrid solutions,

¢ Aerospace: lavaraging cur current ralationships to
secure o igger role in naut generation rodar design;
e

. Space position Filtronic in Spoce (MAPS/LEO) morket
by virtue of our UK manifacturing copability ond
Q-bond PA design;

Notwithstanding the challenges posed by the:
macroeconomic backdrop including inflotionary
pressures, alecteonic cormponent shortage und extendad
lend-times during the yeor, the delivery of the strotegy
continues ond remains, front ond centre, as the focus of
the Boords attention. Qur objective through the execution
of the strategy is 1o deliver sharehalder valuye and mediurn-
long term growth, As & Boord, we will ensure thot we
continug 1o chiallenge ourseives ond regularly consider
whether we are effective in delivering this abjective.

Qur business model and execusion of the strategy is
urderpinned by the governancs framawark outlined in this
section.

Principle 2 - Seek to understand and meet
shareholder needs and expectations

Great voiue is token from maintaining open ralationships
with our shareholders and the primary point of contact
in the Company for this function is the Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ"), supparted by the Chief Financial Officer
("CFO") and the Chairman.

The CEQ und CFO undertake on extensive programme
of individua! meetings with sharsholders ot least twice o
yeor. Addironally, the Chairman is avoilable to speak with
sharsholders at thear reguest. The Senior Independent
Director is oi30 ovuitabie us on olternative communication
zhanrnel for shareholders who may wish to raise any
cancerns.
Presentations are also made to analysls to prasent
the Group's results. This assists with the promaotion of
knowladge of the Group in the investment markatplaces
and also helps the disciors to undersiond the needs and
axpestatons of shareholders. The Group's website has
o dedicated investor secnon 1o assist oll shareholders.
Investors are waloome to send ony quashons or quernes fa
investorralatinns@filtronic.com

Principle 3 - Take into account wider stakeholder and
social responsibilities and their implication for long-
term success

The Group takes i1s corporate sosiol raspansibility

very seno-;s'v and is focussed on raintaining ond
stezngthamng eifactive working refationships across

o wide renge of stakehaldess including shareholders,
emplovees, tustemars ond suophers.

OQur stakeholder eNYOGEMRN! (2COGAISEs the morerialin
ond impact of our stakzholders on the cld’n—'sve'ﬂrnfﬁ the
Companyssirategy. The Saction 172 (1} Staternent and
Stakehalder engagemeant sections within the Governance
raport provida maora in formation on this

fthe Group's strategy is part built upon the
maintenonce of internal ond external relationships and
good communication with siakeholdery,

The suzcess o
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Principle 4 - Embedded objective risk management
considering both opportunities and targets
throughout the organisation
The Group faces challenges in the execurion of iis business
strategy. The Board acknowladges thot it has overall
responsibiity for the Group’s systam of internal controls,
which is designed 1o manage and mitigare rather than
elirninate risk, and to review and manitor its effectiveness.
The Audhit and Risk Commitree have been delegated
responsitility 15 oversee risk monagement, and
undertckes regular reviews of the Group's risk register
with ¢ view to:
(i} ensuring the rish: regisier is corplete, appropriate
and up e date;
(i) ensuring adequute processes are in place to detect
new or emerging risks;
(it} raviewing risk exposures and any changesio the
stoius of risks in the risk regisier,
(iv) reviswing risk moncgement ussessment and
PrOCRsEEs;
(v) reviewing risk mitigation measures and the
approgriaienass of responses to risks;
(i} reporting its findings so the Bourd.
Risk managernent, together with G robust set of systems
and internat controls ore well established warhin the
business. The Risk Management Committes, made up
of the Seniar Leodership Tearin the business, meefon o
regular busis to moirtoin ond review the nsk register.
A comprenensive biysingss planning process is also
cornplated on on annuol busis including the long-range
mhon which orz reviewed ond approved by the Board. This
ensures the rasources inthe Group ora correcily aligned
with the business strategy. In addition, the Group conducis
regutarly re-foracasts to ensure rescurces are aligned fo
the onquing needs 5f the business. During the year, the
Group's results are compaored against the business plan
which is reported monthly and discussad of each maeting
of the Boord.
Principle 5 - Maintain the board as a well-

functioning, balanced team led by the Chairman
The Board is currently comprised of:

e PMom-Exacutive Chairmuan;
o two Executive Directors: and
o o0 MNon-Erecetive Dicactors

The Mon-Erecutive Directors are regarded by the Board
as haing indegendent Non-Erecutive Directors.

The role of Company Searetary is currently undertakean
by the CFO. In complicnce with the Cade, the Boerd is
mundful of the nead to develop plons 1o separote the roles
of CFO and Campony Secretary aran oppropriate firna.

Bourd members ars alse oble 1o 1oke independant
professional advice at the Companys expanse in the
discherge of their dhuties.

There it o forma! scheduie of miarers reserved for

e Board. To enhance the Board's cornmunication

with managemeant and achieve graater opergtional
tfransparency, senior manogement fiom the sales and
marketing, operotional and engineering organisations are
periadicaily invited 10 the board meeting 1o present their
key projects ond delivarables.

Board meetings

The Board meets each month ageinst o defined reporiing
tirnetable and ot fimes in bahween the scheduled meetings
when required. Board meetings ore held oi the Group’s
operational sites to encble local monagement 1eams 1o
present aperaiinnol and strotegic programme progress
to the Board. The Board believes this arrangement

gives greater frarsparency and enhanced relationships
between the management and the Board. During the
vear, boord meenngs hove bean held in person ar the
Sedgefield, Yeadon and Manchester sites.

Directors’ attendance FY2023

The Board normally schedulas arleasr 10 meatings during
the year. Last yeor the Board met formaolly 10 fimas,

Meetings

attended
Jonothan Neale 1010
Richard Gilzbs 10/15
Mizhael Tyerman 10/16G
Pete Magowon 10/10
Jonn Behrend 10/10

Principle 6 - Ensure that between them directors
have the necessary up-to-date experience, skills and
capabilities

A1 prasent, the Roord is satisfied that its overall size and
compnsitior raflects an appropriaie bolonce of secior,
financiol and public markers skills ond expenence. The
composition of the Boord is reviewed ot least annuolly

by e Nominations Commmttee, with o view 1o ensuring

it comprises the skills necassory for executing the
Company's shrarsg

Dzrails of eoch director's skilis and experience con be
found in tha directors' biographiss section. The riemisars
o tha Boord bring a range of complemantory
zxperience from orross markats inwhich the Group
operotes.

Each member of the Board tokes responsibiliry for
mainroining their skill set, which indudas forrmaol training
and serninars, The directors bave also received briatings
and training in respact of Al rules complhance and
Mearket Abuse Regulations.

Whan nacessary, external advice is sought, onlegad, HR,
finantiol ond governance motters. The primary sources
are the Company's Momaod and the Company’s law yers.
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Governance report continued

Principle 7 - Evaluate board performance based on
clear and relevant objectives, seeking continuous
improvements
The Board carries out an evaluation of its own
performance ot the end of each financial year, reviewing
its perforrnance in that year.
The Chairman end the Cempony Secretary prepore on
avaluation questionnaire reflacting the considerations
of the corporate governance code as well as sigaiticant
events over the yaor,
The performance of the Boaord, its Commitrees, ond
indivicluat direcrors is assessed. Board members are oskad
to provide feedbuck for assessment by the Chairman
in the tirst instance ond fo the Senior Independent Non-
Exacitive Diractor, in respect of the Chairman. The
combined feedonck is discussed by the Board ond actions
agread with progress updates during the year,
As port of the Director's induction process the Company
Sacretary arranges an induction sessicn with each new
director covering such matfers as:

e Group end organisation structure,

e Filtronic’s volues ond group poices,

* anintroduchon o the AiM Rules for Companies,

o the QCACode,

e Markst Abuse Regulation (MAR™ ond the rerms of

reference for the Boards comminees.

Whera specific lraining needs are identified, including as
o result of the Boord evaluation grocess ond individuol
director appraisals, the Company will organise the
refevont raining. The Company Sacretary supports the
Chairman in oddrassing the raining and development

Principle 8 - Promote a corporate culture that is
based on ethical values and behaviours

Ar Filtconic, we bedieve in collobaration, we work with aur
technology lzadaership clients 10 sobas their comples BF,
ricrowine ond mmiava cholienges.

Our purpose and reason far being 5 te be the trusred
provicdher of innovotivi RF sobutions. innovation matters i
us, w2 wont to push the boundarias of what is possible with
RF comraunicafion.

Filttroric wre long-term pariners in oerospace and
defance, telecommunications infrastructure ardd criticod
cormmunications ard have formed portnaeships in the
arnergiog market of spoce. These effective parmacships
have grown frorm haviag a strong vailue-bosed culture,
where sltour employees are encouraged and supported
(s}

e Actwith integrity; being honest, always keeping our
rOmises,

* Be respectful o ol it is tha foundation of our culture.

Strive for excellence; it is whot our clients and

colieagues axoect and whotwe endeavour 1o

(PR
gieinjer.

The Board monitors and promaotes its carparate culture
assisted by the SUT, which includes the Heod of HR. This
team plays a vital rade in disseminoting the Company's
shared values with its employees. The SLT holds maonthly
meetings, and its members arz frequently invized to attend
seciians of the boord meeting which heips the Boord
ussess the Group's cultura on on ongoing bosis.
Principle 9 - Maintain governance structures and
processes that are fit for purpose and support good
decision making by the Board

The Board, led by the Choirman, is comminted to a high
standord of corporate governance across the Group,
recoqrising its importance in protecting shareholdars
interasts and long term succass of the Group.,

Remit of the Board

Whilst rnany doy-to-day ogerstional mattars ore
managed by the Executive Directors and SUT, other
matters, incluckog those listed below, are reservad for the
Board:

o Stratagy ond aversight of the monagement of the
Groug;

o Review of business performania and delivary of
resuits;

o Approvol of the Company and consolidated
finoncial statements;

s Approvol of major corporote iransoctions and
comnitments;

e Succession planning (appeintmeni/removal of
directors, POMRs ond the Compony Secretary);

o Approval of aliterms of referznce for the commiitzes
of thz Board:

e Review of the Group’s overall corporate govarnoncs
arrangaments includling systems of intarnal zontols
ond risk managarent; ond

o Approvol of the distribution of authority,

Committees

The Board is supporied by three comnutieas:
o Audii end Risk Commities;
¢ Remuneraiion Comnuttes; ond

o MNominanens Commities.

Cietailed writhen tarms of raference for sach commitiee
are maintained and gre ovailabla ta view on the comparny
Wwebhsite,

I addition 1o formal meerings, the Nominations
Committee and Remunaration Commiitee also meer
informatly during the year fo review ond discuss hoord
compaosition and compensation.
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Principle 10 - Communicate how the Group is
governed and is performing by maintaining a
dialogue with shareholders and other relevant
stakeholders

The Compony is committed to apen communicotion
with oll of its stakehsiders. Communication with
shareholders is driven primarily through:

s the regulotory news service ("RINS"),
e the Filtronic website;

o the Annual General Meeting; ond meetings ofrer
the Group’s interim and full yaar preliminary
occounts.

All shareholders recaive o copy of the Annual Repost
and Accounts either as hard copy or electromically
depending on shareholder preference. Copies of
historic annual reparts ond notices of general meetings
tor the last five years are available on rhe Filtronic
website, o3 are the holf-yeor results.

Engaging with our erployees healps fo ensure the
values ond culture the Board wants to promote ore
embroced throughout the Group. The Company
encourages open two-way communicotion 1o promote
innavative and collaborative working. Communication
with employees takes ploce ordinarily through town

L)
O

hall meetings ot each of the Company’'s sites, the HR
sysrern, tegm meetings, health and safety meerings
and training sessions

The longevity of our business can only be secured
through maintoining ond expanding our customer
base. Communication with customers is o priority and
is mediated through dedicated comrmaerciol managers
and dwectors, overseen by the Chief Commercial
Officer. Custamers are solicited for feedback on
products and business operations performance,
market landscape and demand trends.

Regular contact and an open-doar policy are key to
rmaintaining good and stoble relations with our supply
chain. The procurement deportnient, aided by cleor
website sections, ensures that Filtronic' s key policies
and values, or their equivalent, are adopted by the
supply chain with ait suppliers issued with the Fidtronic
Supplier Code of Conduct which includes, but is not
limited to, its pohicies on issues such os bribery, madern
slavery and conflict minerals. Engagerment with
suppliers is overseen by the Chief Operations Officer,

The group policies were reviewed by the Boord during
the year ond, as a priority for the business, were
communicated, via ranagement cascade, 1o all
employees.
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Stakeholder engagement

The Board carefully considers stakeholder interests when making decisions on strategically important
matters as the directors discharge their duties in alignment with Section 172.

Regular updates from

the executive Senior

Leadership Team ("S
‘ i

Board considerations and decisions

Given the updates from the SLT, some of the togsics
considered throughout the year are presented below
demonstroting how the Board discharged their duties:

Employees and culture

e Consideration and approval of an employse
engagamant survey 10 gat tha views of our employees
on o rongs of key issues.

* Raquested and considerad a diversity ond inclusion
report of the Group with the dedision to have regulor
updatzs given at hoard level in future,

o Considerad succession planning a1 senior lavels of the
business.

Strategy

* Considared the importance of ESG ta the iong-terns
success of the Group ond opproved the newly devised
ESG strateyy.

¢ Considered company performonce ogainst its strategy

e Considerad the technology roodmeop and required
investmant 1o undertake the developments.

o Update on new custorner scquisition, strategic
milestanses and consideration of shareholder value.

‘Direct engagement of
.Board members

Dourd v

» Consideration and approval of the £72023 intarim
report.

o Consideration and approval of the FY 2024 business
pian and long-range forecast.

Governance

s Approval of updated Group Policies mcluding o new
Business Continuity palicy ond Conflict of Inrerest policy
os well as a revised Social Media policy.

o Approval of the ESG strategy, consulting with
shareholders.

o Endarszdl o full suite of penetration tests of our cyber
environment,

e Updata from sharehoiders in reiation 1o strategy and
remuneration matters.

Filtronic ple Annual Report and Accounts 2023



The Board recognises its responsibility to take into consideration the needs and concerns of Filtronic’s key stakeholders
as part of its decision-making process. The table demonstrates how the Group engages with its stakeheiders and the

outcomes of this during the year:

Stakehakdar How we engaga

Cgni Bl The Boord receives feedbock from its customer facing
ll teamss. Eoch key acount hos adedicated account
| management who acts as “the voics of the customar”,
The Chuef Cornmazrciol Officer briafs the Board eoch
month as 10 how we are pecforming with each of our
customays,

The Executive Directors, long with senior menders of
B the sulec and enginearing teoims will stizod mestings
gl ath strategz-level influencers within cur customieds
orgrIAKation.

We zantinuolly seek oppartunities 1o colloborote ot
8 o product and technology strategy level with our key
| clients, but oll cotubaratinns are under Non-Dusclossre
B Agraernent (NDAT) ond requice direcror-level appraval.

We regularty porticipats in o wide range of trade
B chows, conferences and sympasia They play an
B impporiant rale i Our Lusiness developient plonming,.

¥ The Exacutive Cirsctors commruricate vaih employees
through commmenicaton 52:55ion5 Qinif town hall
ings 10 update thar o the periormance of e
Al progress on key imhotves. Evployessore
conpragpad 10 ook questions in o QRA s2st
8 end of the meetings.

The Groupr relies upon highly specalized skl se1s
B that coe ninceeusingly short supply We ore t
actively developing o nev tafznt managenen? i

The Exacutive Uirectons ang eecuived 1o bz sotwaly

visilale across cur sites 10 take the gulse of the busir

aned offer an apen-door o employeas who wouki
B (ke ook o questen or offar o
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Stakeholder engagement continved

How we enguage Key ouicemes

Particisation in the Company Sharesave scheme,

The Chiof Exacutive Officer and Chief Financiol Officer
hold anolyst and invastos meetings thraughout the
y20r bath on request and spacificolly following the
release of the annual and half y2ar results. Feedback
from thase meetings is shared with the Soard. Major
sharsholders ace reqularly engoged to heor their views
on g renye of issues such as stigtagy, rémuneraton
and corporate governonae,

l The Aanual Genszrol Meeting is our primary method

il of engagemant with privata iwastors along with the
Annuvol Report. We encourage invastors 1o attend
and wsk guestions they moy have, At the end of the
meeiing, the Board engage inan epen und informo!
forium with attend=es.

B The Group's Anmual Report and Azcounts is availoble
B 1o shoreholders in both hovd copy forrm and online.
All garouncemants ond presentations ore available
on tha Company s website whilstwe ofso 2ngagzon
sociol media plotforms such as Linkadin, Thace ic alsa
[l o regubi newsienars which is sent 10 those individualz
B that sigrup on the comgony websing

B The Campany's broksr, finnCaop Lid (fianCop?),
icl fings to the Boord on sharenolder
nd indepandent feadihvack from investor
. Thay viewrs are SO lgf‘i onoll market related
B (O3 O amQancemants,

tastiogs are hald with key suppliers ot both thair
scliiies and ours Thi., BASCI3 O MOV iInhimot2
ecige of i
anrilendstoc

B O Sepplier Code of Canductis flawed dowm to e
B 0 supply chob 1o 2nsyre Conn ¢ with 000t We minimise xposure to'g pplue_rrelored fisks
respansility andd good governancs colicias, 'themi to adhere 1o our Su
onduct ond ]

contracts of motenal signifcance i the (roun
tra ity el conte
rey terms being grovided 1o the Executive Directors for
approvel,

T2 Grioupairns 10 phay foir withis fiars and pay in
fire wath the comteactunl ;;\_1/1.“55“.1 EOOS,
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The Group's engagement with key stakenolder groups
ond the impact cur business operations have on the ioccd
community and the environment are considered within the
implernentstion of the Company’s Objestive and straieay
and the Systainabiiity repart.

Standards of business conduct

The Board is commirted to o cuiture of integrity and
openness The Boord 13 confident that thraugh our peopls,
our values, our policies and procasses we are fostaring the
right culture to make a pasitive impact on the business,
cur ermployzes, our custamers, suppliers, the environment
and the communities in which we operats. The Board

15 committeci 1o identifying other nweans to drive further
positive inpuacr through our producis, processes and
foremast our peaple, ali of which will corteibute 10 the
success of the business.

www.filtronic.com Stock Cocle: FTC
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Nominations Committee report

Membership

MMeetings
attended

Forenme

Deor Shareholder

| am pleased to present the Nominations Committee
Report for F2023. This year the Commitize continued
its focus on soccession planaing, including reviewing
the skills, experience and personal qualities required
for robust and sustainable leadership for the Board, its
committees, and the wider manogement team.

The Committae also tock account of the results from

the annual board performance evaluaiion exercise
conduciedin June 2022, The Cormmittez ploys o key role
in ensuring the effectiveness of the Board and its ability
tes deliver long term sucecess for the Company. As the
Chairmaon of the Committee, | review the results of this
exercise and share the feedbuck with the members of
the Board both individunlly 1o persnnalise tha feediback
and o3 o collective. Nothing significont was roised as part
of this evoluation but some improvement actions were
identifizd which are highlighted belovs:

* Agreater emphasis on the mole of diversity and
inclusion ond the important role it plays in high
performance orgonisations;

o Thedirector induction process was too focussed on
directors’ duties. In future it will b more compuany-
specific, with emphasis on the strategy and business
plan;

e Succassion planning impravernants; ond

* Keeping under review the combined role of the CFO
and Company Secrerary with a plon to decouple the
role at the appropricite tirme.

As arzsult ol this process, ihe Conwnirree commissionsd
a report from the Group's Heod of HR to review bey
raemics o help the Board establish greoter emphasis

on high performonce culture in tears, driving talent
developraent through diversity and inclusion. This topic
is now on the regular committee ogenda as we rock
progress and see how the findings are being oddrassed
and implemented.

in the year ahead, the Comauttes will continu: ro work
on succession pians far e Board and key moanagement
and 1o aversee any actians 2oming out of the board
eftectivenass quastionnaires that took ploca in hune 2073
10 ensure they are ffactively implernentad,

Jonathan Neale
Chairman, Nonunabtians Caorprmittee
37 July 2023
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Activities of the Nominations Committee during the year

The Nominations Committee discharged its responsibilities during the year by:

Activities undertcken

guidelines of the QCA code.

group and individuatly.

New appointments and induction of directors
When identifying suitable condidutes for board ond
senior exscutive appoiniments, the Commttee uses the
services of external aclvisers 1o facilitate the recruitmant
search and considers candidates on merit and against
objective criteria. The Committea recognises the volue of
a diverse boord and will consider all condidares with the
necessory copabilities in aecordunca with the Company's
policies including considarations of equality and diversity.
When o new direcior joins the Boord o full and faranal
induction process is undartoken incuding o briefing
sassion on AlM rules with cur Momad. The Company
Secretary is fosked with providing 1he new director with:

o information obout the Group inciuding boord andd
commitiee minutes aiong with board capers from ot
teast the laist sie months;

o 1he Groups pelicies, procedures ond governonce
inforrmation;

s analysis of the Company's key sharehclders and
share capital;

v guidance for directors on thair legal and reguloiory
responsibhiies in an At -quoted company;

¢ guidance on carporate governance and board
effectiveness; and

o relevont information obout the markers we opercie.
As port of the industion pracess, the new direcrar alse:
o Attends o business bricfing with the CEO and CF(;
» Has meetings with the cther members of the Senior
Leadership Teany; and
o Antends meetings with any othar emiployess thay
would like 1o see,

& Reviewed the dual role of the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in line with the

Undartook o succession phanning review of the Baoard and Senior Leadership Team.
Conducred arignrous board performance evaluation exarcise and ted the results back as
Aggread the baard effectivenszss raview stratagy.

¢ Assessed the size and composition of the Board.

¢ Revigwed und aporoved the Committee’s terms of reference.

o Cornrnissioned and considered o diversity and inclusion report.
* Reviewed compliaince with the JCA code.

Diversity and inclusion

The Committee recognises the importonce of o diverse
Board ond is mindful of the issue of boord diversity in

its succession plons. Compony policy ensures thot the
selection of directors ond, in o wider context, employses
throughout the Group, as well os opportunities i progress
and develap will be based upon a range of factors
including skills, experience, quolifications, background
and values. Thers will be no discrimination ar less
fovourable treatment of employees or job applicants in
respect of age, race, religion, gender, sexvol orientotion,
pregnancy, disability or marital status.

Board evaluation

The Nomingtions Committes undertakes on annual
evaluaticn of the Board's performance and effectivensss.
The results of the evaluotion exercise are shared with
board rembers and any recommendations are discussed
and implemented if deemed to be an irmprovement.
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Audit and Risk Committee report

Membership

DAl

Meetings
atrendoed

Roles and responsibilities of the Audit and
Risk Committee

Deor Shareholder

| om pleased io present the report of the Audit and Risk
Committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee continues to fulfil o vital
role in the Group's governonce framework, providing
independent challenge ond oversight of the accounting,
financial reporting and internal control processes,

risk management, the internal ondit activity and the
relationship with the exrarnal auditor. This report outlines
how the: Audit and Risk Committes hos discharged its
responsibilities during the year ond the key issues it has
considered in the yeaor.

Meetings are generally held immediately prior to o board
meeting 1o facilitate immediate and efficient reporting to
the Board, with additional meetings where nacessary. The
Executive Directors may ottend the meeting by invitation
whilst the gxternal auditors otrend when requestad, o3 do
the outsourced intarnal audit providers.

The Carnpony outsources its iniernal oudit aciivity 10 third
parties g3 it is not deemed appropriote given the size

of the Company o have its own internal audit function.
However, the Agdit and Risk Committee considers
annually whether there is o need for on in-house internol
oudit function 1o be established and, were it to conclude
thot this would be more appropriaie thon the current
arrangernents, would recommend this 10 the Board.

Thig yedr, the Conymirtge focussed ancontrols el ik
cyber security ond enyaged a third-parly 16 under tuke

a series of panatration tests including, but nat limited

10, external ond internal pen 1ests, a phishing exercise,
website security and wi-fi vulnerabilities. The ourcome
was very positive with anly o small numbser of minaors issues
1o remedy, damonstrating the robust system we have put
in placa.

The normal pattern of meatings follows the public
reporting ond audit cycle, with mestings io consider the
estecnal audit on; the holf year announcement and

the tult vear Anoucl Report and Aczounts, the lotter with
the external auditors’ observations and ogimions. There
are at leost wo odditional maeting in the year o review
tha internal audit thar hos token place w the year ond
consicler the key risks withun the Group, how they are
managead and raviews the adequacy of the arrangemants
to mutigate those risks.

As Chaiy of the Comimittze, t matatain ragalor dialogue
with the Chief Finoaciol Officer and hawe dicect aceess

to PricewaterhouseCoowers LLP ("PuwC"), the Company™s
axternal auditor. The Conmmittae meets segarataly o
legst once o y2ar with the esternol guditors without
orhers being present 10 fucilitote open discussion and the
opportunity 16 disCuss amy concerns,

MNext year the Committze will focus on concluding tha
tender process 10 appont a naw external ouditor angd
continue 1 monifor the Group's risk management
Sys120ns.

John Behrendt

Chasrmon, Avicht and Risk, Commitrae
37 July 2023
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Activities of the Audit and Risk Committee during the year
During the year, The Audit and Risk Comrnittee discharged its responsibilities by

Acrivities underto

* Review the Annunl Report and Azcounts, Interirn Report and interim management statements
prior 1o Board approval.

Consideration of whather the Annual Repart ond Accounts is fair, balanced ond
understandable.

Paview the external ouditors cetailed repor o the Caramitte2 an the arnual financiot
shatements.

Tesoriing .. . .o .
S =, ® Revicw of accounnng pohoies and sigrificant accounting judgements and estimates.
* Review of changes in corparate goverranze and accounting standacds and their impact.
* Review of the going concerr howis for preporahon of the financial statements includling

consideration of the Group's katest business plon and three-vecr outlack, cash flow forecast and
corresponding sensitivities on downside scenorios.

o Review of the extarnol guditors plon for the ouda of the Group's finanaal statemants, including
the identification of key nsks,

e Peview and approval of the extarnal auditor’s t2rms of engagzraent, remuneration,

independznce ond reg leiter.

Raview of the exteral auditors complionce with athical and professional guidonce on Senior

Statutory Auditor rotation,

w

o Assessment of the effectiveness of the gudit proces

Recornmendation regarding reappointment of the axtarnol ouditors.

Comenittee-onky rneeting with the Senior Staretary Auditgr,

Recommendation o uadertake a render praocess for the Fr 2024 extaraal audlis,

Review of the Grougs risk managermsnt registar,
Specific fucus anrisksin the semicanductar supply choin, cosr of §
security as well as the disk ralating 1 tihe strategi: abjestive of b

ing and woige infiation, cyiir
ning rhe customer base.

wrol system and assestmen: of the effectiveness of rhoss

v of by rishs.

Reviews of the Groups inferndl
conirols in minimising the irmpe

onandl detzrmi
ritzrral cacht seres

o Review of the need for anintervol audid fyr o whiot osgiecis of the Grouprs

operations should be sebject 1o cuisource

e Ensured cyber security was requlariy reviswed.

o Raviewed the results of the imterna! cudit unclertaken.

e Raview of the Commiteg’s terrns of refarencs.

e Recommended trairing of Markzt Abuse Rzgularion CMAR ) 10 all emypdoyess wihn have aoness

QACE senstiva intfarrnation,
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Audit and Risk Committee report continued

Key accounting matters
The following key areas of risk and judgement have been identified and considered by the Audit ond Risk Conmittee in
relation 1o the business activities and finonciol statemeants of the Group and Parent Company:

Significant issy Conmwniftee action taken

The Committee considered the judgements made in relation to the valuation methodology
adopted by management sad the model inputs used. These are set sutin note 16 1o the binancial
stotements.

The Cormrittez agraed with the jud: gements mads by rmanagement and conclsded that no
impairrnent of goodwill should be made in the finoncial statemants of the Group.

Filtronic aperates in on industry where davelopments in product technology and the bighly
custorner speafic nature of some invenrory may result in inventory becoming slaw-raoving or
obsolete. Thisin turn raay meon that invantory cannot be sold or saies prices for such inventory are
discountad 10 fess than the relevant inventory’s book value.

The Commirtze considerecl a paper from management analysing this inventory by product and
looked ar projected future usiags relafive 1 currznt iventory on hand. 1 reviewed the provision for
exzacs and obsolets iventory and ricted that the level of provision and the methodology npplled
wQ3 appropaaiz and consistent,

The Commitige considered the judgements mada in ralotion to the vatuation methodclngy
adopred by management and the rmcdel inputs used. These are set our i nore 15 fa the financial
Staternents,

Triz Cormmittes agreadd with the judgements mads by managziment ond concluded that the
imairment of the carrying value of the investenant in tha subsidiary inthe financiol statemants of
the Parent Company was necsssary.,

Risk management and internal controls the Choir of the Audit ond Risk Cammitiee ond open lines
« ond risk managernent is delegated to the Audir and of discussion with the Committee to ensure there is no

Risk Commitree olthough the ovarall responsibiliry for rhe influence by rmanagermant.

Groups's system of risk manageament and inferna! controls As part of their revizw of auditar independence, PwC hos

remains with the Board., confirmed that itis independent of the Company and

has complied with applicable ouditing standords. Pw(C
has held office as auditor for five years and therefora

the Senicr Statutory Auditor is operating in occordance
with professional guidelines of serving no longzr than five
yaars 1o maintan independznce. Howsaver, giveo this is his
fitth vear as Auditor on the engagement, it will also be his
last veor

The Group has well sstablished risk manogement and
internal contro! processes that have been develnped
since the Filtronic was formed in 1977 The Audit and
Risk: Comirnitree confirms that the effecrivenass of the
system of internal conirl, covering ol materiol cantrols
ircluding finoncial, sperational, commersicl and
corplionce canicols ond nisk managament systems,
hava been revmewsd during the yaar, Furthge details of External auditor
sk, managemant zan be fouad in ihe Risk monagement

o

Comnutiee considers that PwC has carried oui s

saztion of this Annual Report on 22 o L C
section of this Anny port on pags 21 duties as the ouditorin o diligant ond protassianct manne
Auditor independence In aissessing the auditors effectivenass, tha Commitrae:
e Aud "t ¢ —_

Both the A"“.'hg and Risk Committee and P have o Challenged the waork done by the auditor to rest

e < e & 1S 4 J -
o C"—‘-ff“-"f—“ in placa fo avoid the 'J’er"u 5 objectivity and managemsnt's aisumphions and estirnates in the key
independence baing compromised cisk arens:
The Committee perfornis it i wn assessmant of auditor e Raviewsd reports recaved from the guditer on these
independernce sotisfying itself on an annual hasis that and other matters;
suitable policies and procedure> arzin placse to sofeguard o Recoived and considerad feedback from
the auditors’ indepsndence and objectivity. This includes monagament; and
howpg "5‘.?}0"':1 to langth of ServIce, F""?‘-"S!')”PF non-audit o Hold private meetings with the cuditor thas provided
services and the axis en;e of gny conflicts of interast, the opgortunity for open diclogue and feedback
On the latrer pint, th{e Cempany has o policy of not netween the Committes and the guditor withou!

emploving anybady from the oudit firm within five years managament being present.

of their deperture. The auditor olso bos epen accass o
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Having campletad its raview, the Audit ond Risk
Committaz i satisfied thot PwC rermained effective and
independent in carrying out its resgonsibilities up 1e the
date of signing this ragort,

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Compony’s management and rhe auditor confirmed
to the Audit and Risk Committze that they wera not
avitre of any material misstatements, Having reviewsd
the reports receivad from management and the auditor,
the Committee is satisfied that the key areas ef risk and
wdgemnent have been acpropnately addressad in the
financiol staierments und that the significant assumptions
usectin determining the volue oF assets ond licbilities hove
been properly approised ond are sufficiently rotust.

Aftar careful consideration of the advice of the Audit

and Risk Committeg, the Baord hos concluded that the
2023 Annuol Report ond Accounts is feir, belanced and
understancable ond providas the nacessary informotion
for the Company's shoreholders to assess the Groups risks,
parformance, businass model and strategy.

Whistleblowing

The Group hos in place o whistleblowing policy, which sers
out the formal process by which an employee, or other
stakeholder, may, in confidence, raise concerns about
possible malproctica in financial reporting, ronduct or
other matters to on ideniifiable whistleblowing officer.

There wera no incidents or concarns rawsad for
considaration during the yeor.

Anti-bribery

The Groug has in place an onti-bribery policy, which

se13 its zero-tolerance position. Tha policy provides the
erinciplas for smployees and other stakeholders that acis
o3 guiciance on how 1o recognise and deol with issues that
moy b considered as giving rise fe brilery.

During the period there were no inciderits reported that
required consideration.

External audit tender

At the date of approval of these finanoal stamements

the Commiites has agread to initate o procass and
established a tmetable o undertaka an externat audie
tancler for the next financiol yeor to 31 Moy 2024, The
decision (¢ apEnint a new oudifor iz erpecad 1o be mods
iy the Boord in August 20235,

Orge that process is completed, o reschition for the

N
N

appointrnent of the successful audit firm will be propased
to sharehalders for approval of the forthcoming AGM, as
well as authorising the directors to determine the auditor's
remuneration.
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Directors’ remuneration report

Membership

eration Committee

Al D Ve

Dear Shareholder

Or behalf of the Board, i om pleaszd to present the
Filtronic Directors’ rerunaration report for the year

ended 31 May 2023. The report explains the work of the
Remuneration Cormmitiee during the yeor and sets gut the
payments and owards made to directors.

The Company, being listed on Al is not required to
procuse a comprehensive Directors’ remuneration report
or to submit a reruneration policy to a binding vote.
Howevear, the Board doas wish to maintain transgarency
and demnnstrate good governonce so praseots the

following remuneration report.

The Remuneration Committes is committed to structuring
the remuneration packoges of Exacutive Directors and
senior managemeant that are competitive ond enable the
Groug 1o aftroct, r2tain and motivate talented people that
con develop and execute the Group's strategy. Te promote
the long-term succass of the Compaony, the Executive
Directors incentive benefits are performance based and
eorned only subject 1o the satisfoction of performance
conditinns. These performance conditions are aligned
with the interzsts of the shareholders.

Itis hard to recoll a time when pay decisions were os
important as they ore today whether this relates to the
determination of directar salaries or protecting our
employzes from inflationory pressures. The Comimittee
is very sympathati: 1o the increasad cost of living our
employees ore under, with inflation exceeding levals
seen for some me, but racognises the pay decsions we
toke nzeds to reflect the current ond future needs of the
business.

In determining pay awords consideration wos given to
financial sustainchility, enabling the business to preduse
the raturns it needs for further investment whilst ensuring
Filtranic remains an attractive proposition 1o refain ond
afrract the talens neaded to deliver our business strategy.
Therefore, we uadertook a benchmacking exercise
against simitar businesses interrs of size and noture to
undarstond the competitive market. This resulted in solory
increasss being awarded o the Executive Directors and
key managameni ot o rote of 5%.

TheOur People section of this Annuat Report and
Accounts effers some greater insight info some of the
additionol banefits our employeas enjoy a3 well as some
of the access they get to third-party services far support
with their heolrh and wellozing.

The Committze reviewad the outcomes for the FY 2023
annual incenfive plan, recognising thot shortages of
ovailoble electronic componants were o key foctorn

the Group not achieving tha revenue targzt for ihe year.
However, the Committee derermined thar given the targer
was not achieved, there shouid be no bonus payment
made 1o porticipants in the schene.

The Commnittee olso considared the pecformance-
related banus plon to be implerrented in FY 2024, 10
ensure it ohanad with the interssts of shareholders, As the
Company exacutes enits growth plans it wos concluded
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that the revenue-based metric for the incentive scheme,
implemented in the pricr year, formed the biest metric to
assess performance against the scheme. The incentive
for FY2024 will be aworded for achieving stretching
torgers ogainst the FY2024 strategic business plon. The
Comamirtee is confident this will drive the right beharsiours
in the orgonisation to deliver long-term shareholder volug
ond uitimately increased revenue will lec:d 10 improved
levels of prafit,

Tasupport the long-ronge strategic plans and further
align tha interests of the Executiva Dirsciors ond key
management with shareholders, the Comniittee has been
assessing the success of the incumbent Emyployee Shiare
Option Plan {"ESOP*) scherne and is undertcking a review

N
J
—

10 enswre it delivers a scheme that drives growih and
vhimately shore price appreciation.

The main activities of the Corarmittee in FY202 3 gre sef aut
inthe table below: L hope you find rhis report gives a clear
account of the Comminee’s approach ond rermuneration
outcomes for the year. We are commiitted to maintaining
an open dialogue with shareholders with regards to
remuoneratian and would welcome any commenis or
corcerns, reloting 1o this repart, thot shareholders may
have.

Pete Magowan
Chairmon, Remuneration Commitiee
31 July 2023

Activities of the Remuneration Committee during the year
During the year, the Reruneration Committee discharged its responsitilities by:

Activities undertcken

iy review.

plans.

management.

staareholclers,

o Reviewsd ond approved the €

Approved the grant of share options: sader the
Qirgctors and Liey rmanagement,

» Reviewed enployes share scheme b
o Reoviewed the effectiveress of the

mniiy

e Set the remuneration for the Executive Directors and senior mamnagzenant o3 part of the anrwual

o Ausested ond approved the FY20232 bonys outcomes.

o Reviawed ond opproved the Fir 2024 pacfarmance-relatzd bonus plon ol assessad the
perforrannze eriteria remoining as a revenize boszd metric,

o Determined e parformanse rargets for the 2024 anncal bonus indine with Fittronic’s stradegic

* Appresed the geant of share aptions under the ESOP For the Exacutive Directoes anclkay

Save o5 you Earm Plan ("SAYE"} for the Executive

acirocmy aeailobiiity.

reant shars ophon scheme and its oligrimard ta the interasts of

o Considerzd and apisrcved the Aanuai Repor! and ACCounts on rernusneralion.

es terms of reference.

s Reviswesdl complicince sath the GTA code.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Details of the servica controcts currently in ploce for directors are os follows:

Name Executive service agreement appointmentdate  Key current terms Notice
period
Richard Gibbs Lppointed o the Board on 1 Septembar 2020 Bose sclory £214,456 & months

Chief Executive
Officer

Michael Tyerman  Appointed ta the Boord on 1 Aprit 2016
Chief Financiol

Annual Bonwos
Heaolthinsurance
Long-term incentives
Base salary £144,233
Annual bonus

é months

Officer Haaith insurance
Long-term incentives
Pension
Name Role Non-Executive terms of appointment date Fee Notice
period
JonathanNeale Chairman and Nominations  Appointed to the Board on 15 November 2621 £60,000 6 months
Comitiee Chairmon
Pete Magowan  Remuneraiion Committge Appginted to the Boord on 197 Movember 2018 £40,000 3 months
Chairman
JohnBehrendt  Audit and Risk Committae  Appointed 1o the Board on 1 Jonuery 2021 £40000  3months

Choirmon

Total single figure of remuneration for directors - audited
The directors’ ttol reruneration in respect of tha year under review is shown below and comgared to the pravious year,

Total remuneration

Long-term excluding pension
Salory or fee Bonus Benefits incentive contributions

£000 FY2023 Fv2522 FY2023F 2022  FY2023FY2022 FY2023 FY2022 FY2023 Y2022
Executive Directors
Richaora Gibbs 204 189 - 75 11 17 24 9 239 260
Michast Teerrnan 137 12¢ - 50 - 5 1n 3 148 134
Non-Executive Directors
Jonathon Megle” 60 33 - - - - - - 60 3
Pate Mogowan 40 a0 - - - - - 40 49
Jotn Bahrand) 40 ) - - - - - - 40 A
Rag Gotr - 25 - - - - - - 25
Total 481 452 - 125 1 22 35 12 527 A2
Janaibion Maale waos apnoniad 1o the Booard on 15 Movember 2021,

FegGaltreticad on 22 Octobar 2021
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Notes to the single figure table of remuneration for directors - audited

Taxable benefits

The Execuiive Directors are provided with private heclth insurance and life ossurance. Richard Gibbs olzo receives o
monthly poyment in lieu of a contribution to the Company pension scheme.

Incentive outcomes - FY2023

Thare was no bionus owarded relasing 1o perforrnance in FY2023.

Long-term incentives

The Executive Directors have long-term incentives as part of the Comporty's share option plan. More details relating to
this can be found on page 54 inthe Manogemaent share optien plan - audited’ section of the Directors remunerotion
repori,

Annual performance-related bonus plan - FY2024

An annual performonce-related bonus plan has beeniniroduced for the year ending 37 May 2024 which will reward the
Executive Directors and key management cash banuses tor delivering strefching ravenue torgets oligned to the F'Y 2024
business pian and achievement of personal obijectives that support the growth and development of the business.

The Executive Director con earn up to o moximun of 50% of their base solory. Pay-ouiis determined by the
Remunerution Comrnittee which has discretion to vory the tionus based on parformaonce.

Total single figure of pension benefits for directors - audited
The Executive Directors’ total pension benefits in respact of the year under review are shown below and are comparad fo

the previous yedr.
Pansion contributions

£000 FY2023 FYZ022
Michaei Tyerman 11 11
Total . 11 11

Conrribyutions were nade to the Company's defined contribution scheme.
Richard Giobs electad not io join the Cormpany’s pension scheme,

Directors’ and relevant senior management holdings of Filtronic shares - audited

Direciors are not required but are expecied w0 have holdings in the ordinary share capital of the Company.

The interests of the directors, who were serving as of 31 Moy 2023, in the Company's ordinary shares, which excludas
imrerests under the shars opton schemes, are set out below:

FY2023 Y2022
Shares Shares %

narcl Ginbs AGO,000 425,000 0.29
Michael Tyerrnon 336,478 339478 0.2%
Jonathan Heale 199,870 183,870 .19
Pete Magowan 750,000 750,000 0.2%
John Behrendt 200000 20000 0.0%
2,039,248 1,774,348 (.8%

The obove shareholdings include holdings of directors’ connected pornas.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Management share options scheme - audited
The Executive Directors who were serving ot 31 May 2027 hald the following options over the ordinary shares of the
Company:

Plan Exercise period Option price FY2023 FY2022
Richord Gibbs ESOP 25/09/2023---24/09/203C 8.00p 750,000 750,600
Richord Gibbs ESOP 24/06/2024-—23/06/203%1 11.12p 245,448 245,448
Richard Gibbs SAYE 06/05/2024—-05/11/2024 6.67g 35,622 35,622
Michoel Tyerman  ESOP 01/G3/2019—28/02/2026 5.37p 300,000 300,000
Michael Tyerman ~ ESOP 24/06/2024—-23/06/2031 11120 479,528 479,928
Michoel Tyarman  SAYE 06/05/2024—05/11/2024 6.67p 58,290 58,290

1,869,348  1,86%,348

The ESOP schame awarded to Michael Tyermaon and key monogement in 2016 awordad shore options for delivering o
significant increase in the share price, this performonce condition was met and the option vested. The ESOPs granted in
June 2027 10 Richord Gibbs, Michaal Tyerman and key management were gronted for the delivery of stretched torgets of
revenue with the options vesting ot various incrementiot increases of agreed targets.

There are no performance conditions attached o the ESOP options gronted to Richard Gibis, vesting in 2023, other than
remaining in employment with Fitironic until the gxercise period.

The Remunerotion Committee is oble to adjust the outcome ot its discretion to ensure it is fair and apprapriate, taxing into
account the overall performance of the Group.

Richard Gibbs ond Michozl Tyermen both opred to tuke part in the Cornpany’s SAYE scheme which was offered 1o ailt
employeas in May 2021.

The clasing middle market price on 31 Moy 2023 was 13p, ond on 31 Maoy 2022 i was 10p. The ranga of middle maorket
share prices duting the year ended 31 May 2023 was 16p-9p.

There were nochunges in directors interests betweaen 31 Moy 2023 and T August 2023, The Company’s regisier of
directors’ interasts, which is apen to inspection at the Registered Office, contains full details of directors’ shoreholdings.
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 May 2023.

Going concern

The Group’s business, and the factors likely to affect its
future development, performance ond position are sat out
in the Strategic report.

The revenue, trading results and cash flows are explained
in the Financial review on page 17.

After a review of forecosts including projections of
profitability and cash flows for the year to 31 May 2024
and a further two years, the directors believe that the
Group has adequate resources to continue to operate

for the foreseeable future and that it is therefore
appropriate to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the consolidated and
Company financial statements. The basis of preparation,
in note 1, provides more detail on this.

Directors and their interests
The directors of the Company during the vear, and up to
the date of signing this report, were as follows:

Executive Directors
Richard Gibbs

Michael Tyerman

Non-Executive Directors

Jonathon Neale

Pete Magowan

John Behrendt

Details of directors remuneration and interests in
the share capital of the Company are set out in the
remuneration report on page 50.

Richard Gibbs, retires by rotation, and being eligible.
offers himself for re-election ot the Annual General
Meeting.

Directors’ indemnity

The Company has in place directors’ ond officers’
liability insuronce on behalf of its directors ond officers in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.

Directors’ conflicts of interest
There are no declarations to be made under Article 182 of
the Companies Act 2006.

Financial results and dividend

The results for the yeor are set out in the income statement
on page 63. The position at the end of the year is shawn in
the balance sheet on page 65.

The dlirectors are not recommending payment of ¢
dividend (2022: £nil).

Research and development expenditure
Research and development costs in the year are set out in
the Financiol Review on page 17.

Treasury policy

The Group's treasury policy aims to manage the Group's
financial risk and to minimise the adverse effects of
fluctuations in the financial markets on the value of

the Group's financial assets and liabilities, on reported
profitability ond on the cash flows of the Group. Note 36
sets out the particular risks 1o which the Group is exposed,
and how these are managed.

Significant events and future developments

There have been no significant events since the reporting
date. The Group's future developments are disclosed in the
Strategic Report on pages 3 to 34.

Share capital

The Company's share capitol consists of 0.1p ordinary
shares. The rights and obligations attached to each share
are equal. Each share carries the right to one vote at the
Annual General Meating of the Company and carries no
right to fixed income. There are no limitations on holding
or transfer of the shares. The Board hos no powers to
issue or buy back the Company's shares, other than those
approved by the shareholders af the Annual General
Meeting held in October 2022.

Substantial shareholdings

Up te 31 May 2023, the Company had been notified.
by shareholders, in accordonce with chapter 5 of the
disclosure and transparency rules, of the veting rights
they held os shareholders of the Company. An analysis
of shareholders as ot 31 May 2023 (as disclosed by
shareholders via TR1) is set outin the table below. As ot
31 May 2023, the Company had issued share capital of
215,121,085 ordinary shares of 0.1p each.

Top Investors

Rank Investor 31 May 2023 %
1 Mark and Diana Diron 41,250,000 192
P David and Monique Newlands 25,895,109 120
3 Canaccord Genuity Group Inc. 25,866,264 12.0
4 River and Mercantile Asset Management LLP 11,333,451 4.9
5 Harwood Capital 10,000,000 47
6 Michael and Alice Bennett 7,054,761 33
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Directors’ report continuved

Corporate Governance
The Corporate governance statement can be found on

pages 36 to 39 of this annual report and accounts.

Political and charitable contributions
No contributions were made for political purposes (2022:
£nil).

The Group made charitable donations of £1.250 in the
year (2022: £100).

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
on 26 Octobear 2023 at 11amat

Plexus Building,

Thomas Wright Way,

Nerpark,

Sedgefield,

County Durham,

TS213FD,

Full detuils of the business 1o be transacted at the meeting
will be set outin the notice of the Annual General Meeting.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in
respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report and Accounts and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company luw requires the directors to prepare financiol
statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the group and the company
financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted
international accounting standards.

Under company law, directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of offairs of the group
ond company and of the profit or loss of the group for that
period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors
are required to:

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

¢ stare whether applicable UK-adopted international
accounting standards have been followed, subject to
any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

» moke judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and grudent; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
group and company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for safeguarding the

ossets of the group and company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
ond other irregularities.

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain
the group’s and company’s rransactions and disclose with

reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the group and company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance
andintegrity of the company’s website. Legislation in

the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

In the case of each director in office at the date the

directors’ report is approved:

 sofar asthe director is aware, there is no relevant
audit information of which the group's and companv’s
ouditors are unaware; and

* they have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a director in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the group's and company’s auditors are aware of that
information.

By order of the Board

e

7 —

Michael Tyerman
Chief Financial Officer
31 Julvy 2023

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023



Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Filtronic plc

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our spinion, Filtrenic plc's Group financial staterments and Campany financial statements {the “financial

stotements’)

e give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Coempany's affaics as ot 31 May 2023 and of the
Group's profit and the Group's and Company’s coash flows for the year then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in cccordonce with UK-adopted international accounting standords us applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Compuonies Act 2006; cnd

o have been prepared in accardance with the requirermeants of the Cemponies Acr 20056.

We have gudited the financiul stoternents, inchded within the Snnuol Report ond Accounts (the “Annual Report”),

which comprise: the consolidated and Campaony balonce sheets as ar 31 May 202 3; the consolidated income

siatemant, the consolidated statemant of cornprehensive incomig, the consclidated and Company cosh flow

statements, and the consolidotad and Company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the

notes to the fincincial statements, which include o description of the significant accounting palicies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in occordance with International Stondords on Auditing (UK) (1545 {(UK)") and oppliceble low.

Our responsipilities under ISAs (UK) ore further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financicl

statements section of our report. We believe thet the audit evidence we have obicined is sufficient and aporopriate ro

provide o basis for our opinion.

independence

We remoined independent of the Group in accordance with the ethicol requirements thas are relevant to aur oudit of the

financial statements in tha UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as epplicable to listed entities, and we hove

fulfillect our other ethical resconsibilities in arcardance with these requirements.

Ovur audit approach

Overview

Audit scope

o Two full scope sudit components have been identified. The audit of these two companents providad 100% coveruge
ovar the Group's revanue.

s Ail full scopz wudits were parformed by the Groug anguagernent team.

e Tasting was also performed over certoin moterial bolances in twe further components,

e Anclyticol review procadures were performed by the Groug engagerment fzom gver all out of scope components

Key audit matters
e Carrying valug of investments (parent}
¢ Carrying valus of gondwill and non-current assets {Group)

Materiality

o Overall Group materiality: £162,630 (2022: £170.000) based on 1%, of revenue.

o Overall Company materiality: £50,847 (2022: 11108.000) based on 1% of total assets.

o Performanice materiglity: £122,010 {2022: £127 000 {Group) and £44,885 (2022: £81.600) {Company).

The scope of our audit

As part of desigmng our gudit, we determined raterialiiy and assessed the risks of moteral missiatament in the financiol
stofemenis,

Key audit matters

Key audit mattees gre those raatters thot, in the auditors’ professional judgement, wers of mos: significonce in the ouddit
of the finondial srotements of the current pariod aed include the most significont assessed riske of matarial misstaterment
{whether ar not dus 10 fraud; idertified by the auditors, including those which had tha greatest effect on: the overall
audis strotegy; tha allocation of rasourcas in the audit; and directing the efforts of the angagermaent team. These maiters,
and any comments we make on the results of our procadures thereon, were addressed in the contexi of our nudit of the
financial statervants as a whole, and in forming aur opinion thereon, and we do not provide ¢ separote opinion on thase
maottars,

This is not a completz list of olf risks identified by our audit.
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Filtronic plc continved

The key audit matters below are consistent with last year.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Carrying value of investment (parent)

Refer to poge 48 (Key accointing motters) and note 15 to
the finuncial statements.

We focused on this areo due to the material investraents
bolonce held on the Company's balonce sheet ond the
judgemens required to determine whethear or not there
has bean on impairment frigger and, where there is an
impoirment trigger, the estimates required 1o 0ssess the
recoverabla amount of investnients.

The carrying valuz of the investmenr was £4,179,000,
against which on impairment chorge of £3,833,000 has
bean recognisad in the financiol yeor.

The investment ralates 1o the filter refated business linked
ta Fitronic Wireless Ltd ond Filtronic Wireless Inc.

We evaluated whethar an impairment trigger was
present in accordance with the accounting framework:
ond concluded thot it was appropriate for monagernent
to prepore an impaoirment assessment to consider the
recoverable omount, being the higher of value in use (VIL))
and fair value less cost ta selt (FVLCTS).

We obtcined managemeni’s impairment assessment,
which inciuded o VIU mode! hased on discounted

cash flows ond o FVLCTS model based on o multiple

of foracost earnings. Wa tested the inputs o the

maodezls by assessing forecast cash flows ogainst recent
performance of the filters business and comparing to
approved budgets. Wa also tested the integrity of the
mndels and their mathematiced accuracy. We obtoined
and reviewed indusiry and analyst commentary on the
future filters-related market ogoinst which to assess the
ragsonobleness of managament's assumptions, including
the multiple used in manogernent’s FVLLCTS modeal.

We deiermined thot the VI model derived o higher
recoverable amount.

We engaged with our valuation expartsin order to
rissess the discount rate pplied by reference to both

the Group's weighted average cost of capitat ond o
cemporotor Group. We challenged monagement on

ine key ossumptions in the model, including the revenus
growth, We ogreed the revenue projections to underlying
contrects and purchose arders where availoble ond
chalienged and sensitised growth where this wos not
suppartad by avaitobie evidance.

We reviewad the disclasures in the Anrual Report ond
Accounts for complionce with IFRS, parficularly in celotion
to sensitivity onalysis given an mpoirment has been
recognised.

Bosed on the procedures we performed we were abile

to abtain sufficient and appropricte audit evidence in
respect of the carrying value of the investraents bolance.

Carrying value of goodwill and non-current assets
(Group)

-

Refer 1o pugse 48 (Key accounting matters) and nore 16 1o
thz financial statemenis.

The gosdwill salance is £974,000. We focused an this
orea due to the marerial goodwill balance heid on the
consolidored bolance shesr ond the eslimotes and
judgaments required to determing racoverchile aracunt.

We considerad the corrying voluz of goodwill and rion-
current assets oy refererice to manogemernits value in use
madel, which wos bosed on discounted cash fows,

We assassed manogement's defarmination of CGlUs
ageinst ichnicol guidance and considered whether

the impairment essassment wos parformed atthe
cpprgcriate level, considering management’s own internal
reporting for manitoring of goodwill. Wi tested the inputs
1o the mode! to Boord opproved budgets, which included
snort and long-tarm geowth rates. We alse tesied the
integrity of the modzl and irs mathemoncal occuracy.
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Carrying vailue of goodwill and non-current assets

{Group) (zontinued)
We determinad thot the calculations were micst sensitive
to growth assumptions and calculoted the degras 1o
which these ossumptions would need to rnove before
any impaicment was raquired. We assessed the short-
taerm growth rate assumptions against purchase orders
and cantracts, along with ovailatle rmarket dota for the
telecommunications infrastructure sector.
We also read the disclosures provided in the financiol
statermants ragarding goodwill impoirment testing,
ond the associoted disclosure of the critical azcounting
astimetes, and found these to be appropriate.
Based on the procedures we perfarmed we were oble 1o
obtain sufficient audit evidence in respect of the carrying
value of goodwill and non-current assers.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our gudit o ensure thot we parformed enough work 10 be able to give an opinicn on the financiol
statemants as a wnole, taking into occount tha sieucture of the Group and the Company, the accounting processes and
controls, ond the industry in which they aperaie.

There were two cornpeonents which required a full scope audit of their financiol infarenation, due to their size and
contribuiion 1o the financiol rasulls of the Group. These were tha trading antity within the UK, Filtronic Breadband Limited,
ond in addition the trading entity in the UIS, Filtronic Wireless Inc.

Afl audit work supporting the Group audit opinion was performed by the PwC UK engagement team, with the exception
of the verification of physical inventory whick was performed by a PwC tecr roember in the US under diraet supervision
end review of tha Group oudit team.

Testing was also performed aver certoin material balances within the Fiitronic plc and Filtronic Wireless Limited
COrPanants,

The impact of climate risk on our audit

As part of our auditwe mode enguiries of monagemant 1o undersiand the extent of tha potenrinl impact of ciimate rish
on the Group's and Company’s financial staterments, and we remained alert whan parforming our audit procedures for
dizaiors of the impact of climote risk. Qur pracedures did not identify any materialimpact as a result of dimate risk

Ny in
an the Group's ond Company's financial statements.

Materiality

The scope of our oudit wos influsnced by cur cpplication of moteriolity. We set ceriann gquantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, legether with qualitative considerctions, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the
nature, Eming ond extent of our audit procedures on the individual finoncial stotermant line itzms and disclosuras and in

evaluoting the effact of missratements, both individually and 1y aggregate on the finonciol stataments as o whole.

Besed on our professicnal judgerment, we determined materiality for the financiol staternents os a whole o3 follows:

Financial statements - Group Financial statements - Company
Overall materiality £162,680(20622: £176.000). £59 347 (2022: £108.000).
How we determined it 1% of revenye 1% of total nssets
Rationale for benchmark applied Based upon the Group's trading We believe that as a helding
performance in the vewr, revenue Company, the most appropriare
s considared 10 be the most stable benchraark for materiolity i3 total
and appropriote banchmork in assels whichis a generally aocapted
approising financial performance, auditing benchmark.

and is o generally accepred
auditing benchmoark,
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For each component in the scope of our Group oudit, we allocoted a materinlity that is less than our overall Groug
maieriaiity. The range of materiolity cilocated across cornponents was between £59,847 and £154,546. Certain
components were audited to o local storutory oudit matariality thot wos olso less than our overall Grouo enateriality.

We use performance matericlity to reduce 1o an appropriotely low leve! the probability that the agaregate of
uncorrected ond undetected misstatements exceeds overoll moteriality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in
determining the scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of azcount bulances, classes of tronsactions
and disciosures, for exomple in determining sompie sizes. Qur performance materiality was 75% {2021: 75%) of overall
materiality, arnounting to £122,010(2022: £127,000) for the Group finoncial stotements ond £44,335 (2022: £81,600}
for the Company finoncial statements,

In determining the performarice moteriality, we considerad a number cf factors - the history of missiataments, risk
ussessment and aggregation risk and the effectivaness of contrals - and concluded thar an amount at the upper end of
our normol range was appropriote.

We agreed with those charged with governance thot we would report to them misstatements identifizd during our audit
above £8,100 (Group audit) {2022: £8,526) and £3,00C (Company audir) (202 2: £5,400) as well as misstotements below
those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Cur evoluation of the directors' assessmant of the Groug's and the Company’s obility 1o continue 10 adopt the going

concern basis of accounting inciuded:

o Assessing manogemeni’s base case and savere bus plausible downside cosh flow forecests, including challenging
management on the key assumptions underpinaing the models, which included scles forecasts. margin performance
and working capital assumprions;

¢ Considering the mitigoting actions included in the severe but plausible downside scenorio to consider whether they
reflected actions wirhin management's control, os well as any costs ossociated with implementing thess mitigating
actions;

* Raviewing historic trading results and fooking badk’ to compare tham with monagement’s origina! budget for the
relevont pericd, 1o consider monagemsni’s historical foracasting cccuracy;

» Testing the mathamatical occuracy and integrity of management's model:

o Porforming odditional sansitivity anolysis of management's severe bt plousibie case; ond

s Considering tha disclosuras provided in the financial staterments with respect te aoing concern for consistency with e
models that were subiact to audit.

Basad on the work we hove parformad, we have not identifiect any rateriol uincertainties relating to events or canditions

thoi, individally or collectivaly, may cost sigrificant doubt on the Group's and the Company's ability 1o continue as a

going concern for a period of atl2ost twelve months from when the financiol stotements are autharised for issue.

In auditing the financiol stofements, we have concluded thar the directors’ use of the going concern boses of accourding in
the preparation of the financiol statements is cppropriate. '
Howaver, because not all futira svents or conditions can be prediatad, this canclusion is not a guarantes as to the Group's
and the Company’s ability to continue as © gaing concern.

Qur responsibilities ond the responsibilities of the directors with respact to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report,

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the infarmotion in the Annual Repoart other than the financiol statements and our
aditoes raporr thereon, The directors ara responsiizle for the other information. Our opinion on the finoacial statements
daes not caver the other inforrastion and, accordingly, we do not exprass an qudit opinion o, except o the extent

orharwise explicitly stoted in this repart, any form of assurance thereon.

Ir; connection with our cudit of the financiol srarements, our respansibility is 1o read the ather information and, ia doing
50, consider whather the other infarmation is moterially inconsistent with the finonciol stadements or our krowledge
obtained in tha audit, or otharwise opgeors to be materially misstated. IFwe identify on apparent maotericd inconsistzncy
or maotevial misstarermant, we ore required to perform procadures to conclude wherher there 13 a material misstatement
of the financial staternents cr amararial misstatement of the oiher information. If, bosad on the work we have perforraed,
we conclude that there is o matenial misstatemant of this other information, we are required 1o report thay fact, We have
nothing 1o report based on these responsibilities.

With respect 1o the Srrategic raport and Dirscrors' Report, we olso considered whether the disclosures recuired by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.
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Based on our work. undertaken in the course of the cudit, the Companies Aa 2006 requires us olso 1o repart ceriain
opininns and matters as described beiow.

Strategic report and Directors’ Report

inour opinion based on rhe work nndertaken in the course of the oudit, the infarmotion givenin the Sirategic report ond
Directors' Report for the yecr endad 31 oy 2023 s consistent with the finuncial statements and hos been pregored in
accordance with applicoble legal requirements,

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company ond their eavironment abtoined in the course of
the audit, wa did not ideniify any materiol misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained rore fully in the Statement of directors’ respansibilities in respect of the financicd statements, the diractors
ore responsible for ine preparation of tha financict stoternents in accerdance with the applicable framework. and for
peing satisfied thai they give a true ond foir view, The directors are olso responsibile for such infernal control s they
derermine is necessary to enable the prepaoration of fironciol statements that are free from materiol misstaternent,
whether due to froud or arror.

In prepuaring the financial statamenits, the directors are resporisible for assessing the Groups and the Corapany’s ability
o continue os a going concern, disclosing, os opplicable, matters reiated 1o going zoncern and using the going concern
bosis of occouniing unless the direciors eithar intend ro liquidate the Group or the Comipany or 10 cease cparations, o
have no realistic olternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abost whether the financial staterments s a whole cre fres from
matericl misstotement, whether due to froud or arror, ond 1o issue an auditors’ report that includes our opirion,
Reasonable ossuranca is o high level of assurance, biutis not o guarartee thor an audit condusted in accordance with
1SAs (L) will abways detect amaterial misstotement when it exists, Misstatsments con arise from fraud or error ond ara
consiclerad material if, indivicoclly ar in the aggregaie, they could reasonably be expectad toinfluence tha economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of thase fimanciol staternenis.

inregularities, includling froud, ore instonces of non-compliance with Jows ond regulations. We design procedures inline
with cur rasponsibilities, sutlined above, 1o detact moterial missioramaenis in respect of irregularities, including fron .Jd. The
extent to which our procedures are copable of deteciing irregularities, including froud, is derailed below:,

8: 1sect ar our undarstanding of the Group and indusiry, we identified that the principal risks of non-cornpliance witki loras
e eagulations redared to employment law and neuHh and scfety renulations, ond we considered the extent to which

non-r.:omplicmce might have o marericl 2ffect on the financicl statements. We also considered those laws ard requlations

that hove o directimpact on the findncicl statements such o3 the Companies Acr 2008 and UK ard US rax legislation.

We evaluated man: vgé‘n‘.e’m's incantives and opportunities for froudulent monipulasion of the financial statemants

{including the risk of override of contrels), and determined tha! the principol risks were related to posting journat entries

to manipulars financial performance, management bios thraugh judgements and assumptions in significant acesunting

eshimates and significant ong-off or unusual transactions.. Audlit oracadures performed b y the eagagernent team

ncluded:

o Discussions with management ond these charged with governance, including consideration of kaown or suspected
INSIaNCEs 0f NOC-Ca "nphor‘.ce with lows ozw.i equiations and Froud;

o Evaluation of rnancgement’s conirols designad 1o prevent and detect fraudulent financiol reporting;

e Review of Board meeting minutes 1o identify any instances of reported froud o non-complionse with faws and
regulaiions,

» Discussions with management fo canfrm no on-going disagresments or disputes with tox authorities and no issues
idertified through the tashing of tha tax computations;

o Testing accounting estimases that we deemed to presenta risk of mararial misstatement, including assessing the datg,
methods and ossumptions applied by monagerment in the devalopment of zach estimare;

» ideniifying ond festing journal enfries using a risk-based targeting approoch for unexpartad nccournt combinatians;
ond

¢ Reviswing financiol statement disclosures and festing to supporiing documeniation, where appropnsts, to assess
complionce with applicabha laws ond .r(egulciicns.

There arg inherant limitations in the audit procedures described above. We ore less likely 10 become aware of instanzes

of non-compliance with lows and rdqulo'u_ms that are not ci nsely reloted 1o avants ancd transactions refizcted in the

V-
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Filtronic plc continved

financial statements, Also, the risk of not detecting o materiol misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
deatecting one resulting from error, os froud may involve deliberate concealment by, for exampls, forgery or intentional
misrapresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and bolonces, possibly using doto
ouditing techniques. However, it typically invalves selzcting alimited number of items for testing, rather than testing
complate populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk choracteristics. In
other cases, we will use oudit sempling to 2nable us to draw o canclusion about the population from which the sampie is
selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the oudit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website ot
www.fre.orguk/oudiforsrasponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' reparr.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has bean preparad for and anly for the Compony’s members as a body in accordunce
with Chaopter 3 of Part 16 of the Camponies Act 2006 ond for ro other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions,
accapt or gssume responsibility for any other purpose ar to any other person to whonm this report is shown or into whose

honds it Moy come save where exprassly agread by our prior consent in writing.
Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Undar the Compaonies Act 2006 we are raquired 1o repart to you if, in our opinion:

¢ wahove not obtained ali the information and explanctions we require for our audir; or

s adequate oucounting records have not baen kept by the Cormpany, or rerurns adequate for our oudit have not been
ceceived from branches not visited by us; or

e cartain disclosures of dicecrars remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e the Compory finonciol statemants are not in ogreament with the occounting records and returns

We have no excepiions 16 repart arising from this responsibility.

pz o A

Tom Yeates (Senior Statutory Auditor)

far and on beholf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chonered Accountants and Statatary Auditors
Newcastie upon Tyne

31 July 2023
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 May 2023

Group
2023 2022
Note £000 £067
Revenue 3 16,268 17,052
Adjusted earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and
exceptional items 1,270 2807
Arnornsation of intangible assets 16 (253) (273}
Dapreciation of proparny, planr oad equipment and rght of use ussels 17,13 (780) (945)
Adjusted operating profit 237 1,584
Exceptionatitemns 5 - 391
Operating profit 4 237 1,975
Finance costs 1 (231) {194)
Finance incorne 12 58 111
Profit before taxation 64 1.892
Tarctan 13 400 (424}
Profit for the year ‘ 464 1,468
Basic earnings per share 14 0.22p 0.68p
Diluted earnings per share 14 0.21p (1.68p

The profit for the year is ottributable 1o the equity shareholders of the Parent Company, Filizanic ple.

The notes on pages 7010 97 form part of these financiol staremants.
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Consolidated statement of

comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 May 2023

Group
2023 2022
Note £000 £000
Profit for the year 464 1,468
Other comprehensive income
ltems that are or may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss:
Currency tronstotion movement arising on consolidation 28 (1) 17¢
Total comprehensive income for the year 463 1,647

The totol comprehensivi income for the yeor is atiributable 1o the equity sharehclders of the Parent Camgony, Filtronic

pic.
Allincome recognised in the year was generated fram continuing operations.

The notes on poges 7010 97 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 May 2023

65

Group
2023 2022
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 16 1,774 1.495
Right of use assets 17 2,889 2,293
Property, plant and equipmaent 18 1,446 701
Deferred tax 19 1,254 858
7,363 5,357
Current assets
Inventories 20 2,778 2.598
Trade aond other receivables 21 5,335 4.479
Cash and cosh equivalents 2,610 4,006
10,723 11,083
Total assets 18,086 16,440
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 3,673 2,993
Provisions 23 364 282
Deferred income 24 164 172
Lease liabilities 25 617 540
4,818 3,987
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income 24 29 130
Lease liabilities 25 1,698 1,280
1,727 1.410
Total liabilities 6,545 5,397
Net assets 11,541 11,043
Equity
Shore capital 26 10,796 10,796
Share premium 27 11,077 11,060
Translation reserve 28 (470) (471)
Retained earnings 30 (9,862) (10.242)
11,541 11,043

Total equity

The total equity is attributable to the equity shareholders of the Porent Company, Filtronic ple.

Company number 2891064,

The notes on pages 70 to 97 form part of these financial siatements. The financial statements on pages 70 to 97 were

approved by the Boord of Directors on 31 July 2023 and signed on its behalf by

L

Michael Tyerman
Chief Finonciol Officer
37 July 2023
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Consolidated statement of
changes in equity
for the year ended 31 May 2023

Share Share  Translation Retained Totol
capitol pramium reserve earnings aquity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 Juna 2021 10,795 11,039 (650) (11,826) 9,358
Profit for the veor - - - 1,468 1,468
New shores issued 1 n - - 22
Currency translation movement arising on consolidation - - 179 - 179
Share-bused payments - - - 16 1é
Balance at 31 Mav 2022 10,796 11,060 @71 (10,342) 11,043
Profit for the year - - 464 464
New shares issued - 17 - - 17
Currency translation movement arising on consolidation - - 1 - 1
Share-based payments - - - 16 16
Balance at 31 May 2023 10,796 11,077 (470) (9,862) 11,541
Company statement of
LJ *
changes in equity
for the year ended 31 May 2023
Shore Share Retained Total
capital premium earnings equity
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 June 2021 10,795 11,039 (11,167) 10,667
Loss for the vear - - (3.434)  (3,434)
New shares issued 1 21 - 22
Share-based payments - - 16 16
Balance at 31 May 2022 10,796 11,060 {14,585) 727
Loss for the vear - - (4.500) (4,500)
New shares issued - 17 - 17
Share-based poyments - - 16 16
Balance at 31 May 2023 10,796 1,077 {19,069) 2,804

The notes on pages 70 10 97 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 May 2023

57

Group

2023 2022

£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 464 1,468
Taxation (400) 424
Finance income (58) (111)
Finance costs 231 164
Operating profit 237 1,975
Share-based payments 16 16
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ond right of use assets 780 945
Amertisation of intangible ossets 253 278
Movement in inventories (157) (27%)
Movement in trade and other receivables (833) (1,100)
Movement in trade and other payables 665 550
Movements in provisions 82 (115)
Change in deferred income (109) (10
Tox received 16 19
Net cash generated from operating activities 950 2,285
Cash flows from investing activities
Capitalisation of development costs (481) -
Acquisition of other intangible assets (51) (57
Acquisition of plont and equipment (946) (6o1)
Acquisition of right of use assets (53) (132)
Interest received 9 -
Net cash used in investing activities (1,522) (250)
Cash flows from financing activities
Interest poid (231) (194)
Repayment of bank loans - (131)
Exercise of employee share options 17 22
Repayment of principal element of lease liabilities (626) (653)
Repayment of interest-bearing berrowings - (8)
Net cash used in financing activities (840) (964)
Movement in cash and cosh equivalents (1,412) 1.07M
Currency exchange movemant 16 29
Opening cosh and cash equivalents 4,006 2,906
Closing cash and cash equivalents 2,610 4,006

The nctes on pages 70 to 97 form part of these financiat statements.
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Company balance sheet
as at 31 May 2023

Company
2023 2022
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 15 346 4179
Intongible assets 16 76 72
422 4,251
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 21 4,947 6,321
Cosh and cash equivalents 615 259
5,562 6,580
Total assets 5,984 10,831
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 3,180 3,560
Total liabilities 3,180 3,560
Net assets 2,804 7,271
Equity
Share capital 26 10,796 10,796
Shure premium 27 11,077 11,060
Retainad eurnings 30 {19,069) (14,585)
2,804 7,271

Total equity

The Company made a loss inthe year of £4,500,000 (2022: £3,434,000).
Company number 2891064,

The notes on pages 70 to 97 form part of these financial statements. The financiol statements on pages 70 to 97 were

approved by the Board of Directors on 31 July 2023 and signed on its behalf by
Michael Tyerman

Chief Financial Officer
31 July 2023
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Company cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 May 2023
Company

2023 2022

£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year (4,500) (3,434}
Finance costs - i
Opergting loss (4,500) (3,433)
Amortisation of intangible assets 19 14
Impairment of invesirients in subsidiories 3,833 2,372
Share-based payments 16 16
Movement in trade ond other receivables 1,375 1,082
Movement in irade and other payables (381) 71
Net cash generated from operating activities 362 122
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of intangible assets (23) (z&)
Net cash used in investing activities (23) {28)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceads from exercise of shore opstions 17 22
Payment of lease licbilities - {14)
interest paid - {1
Net cash generated from financing activities 17 7
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 356 131
Opening cash and cash equivalents 259 158
Closing cash and cash equivalents 615 259

The notes on poges 70 to 37 forrn port of these fincncial statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 May 2023

1

Accounting policies

Reporting entity

Filtronic plc is a public company kmited by shares registerad in England and Wales, domiciled in the United
Kingdoem, ond lisied on Al o the Londen Stock Exchangs. The principol activity of the Company is dasign,
devalopmeant and manufacture of high performance Redio Frequency ("RF7) techinology.

Basis of preparation

Tha Company and consolidated Einancial statermeitts for the year ended 31 May 2023 hove been preparced in
accordonce with UK-cdopted international accounting standards and with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006 os applicoble to companies reporting undar those standards.

The financial stataments hove been prepared under the historical cost convention except for forward foreign
exchange contracts thot are occounted for on o fair value basis.

The uccounting policies have been applied consisrently thraughout the Group.

Going concern

In accordonce with corporate governonce requirements and the statement of directors responsibilities, ond

as disclosed in the Directors’ Repart, the directors have undertaken o review of forecasts ond the Group's cash
requirements 1o consider whether it is oppropriate thot the Group continues to adupf the going contern assumption.
At 31 May 2023, the Group had cosh of bank of £2.6m and access to undrawn invoice discounting facilities of

£3 0mand $4.0min the UK and US respectively. Details of thase facilities can be found in notz 36.

As referred in the Strategic report, the Beard recognises the uncertain economic and patliticol environment that
the world foces ond has reviewed the business autlook: fo reflect this uncertainty, Cash flow forecasts have been
prepared to made} various scenarios over a three-year period based on the Group's financiol and troding position,
principal risks ond uncertainties ond sirategic plans.

A downside scenario was modelled, 1o strass-test the business, where programme curtailmant ond/or delays may
advarsely uffect forword-looking dernand to levels lower than thase initially modelled in the base cese scenorio
including raduced demand from a major customer.

A savera but plausible scenario wos olso modelind that took rhe downsidle scenario and removed o significant
contract win that the Group expeciad to convert from the outiock period.

The scenarios madelled including the savara but plousible model, demonstrare the Group has odequate cosh for the
naxt twalve months.
Therefare, the direciors continue to adopt the going concern basis fo prepare the financiol stotemant
Basis of consolidation and foreign currency translation
The financial statements consolidate the income stotements, balance sheats and cash flow statements of the
Compony and ali of irs subsidiaries
Subsichories are alt entities over which the Group has tha power 1o govern the financial and operaring policies.
Subsidicries are consolidated from the dote on which controlis transferred 1o the Group, and are not consalidated
from rhe date that coniral ceases. Infrogroup transactions and bolances are eliminatad on consolidation.
in publishing the Porent Company financiad statements here togather with the Group financiol siatements, the
> 4 s { . -~ ~ . - . . S :
Compuany hus roken advantoge of the exemptons in s402 of the Cormpanies Acr 2004 nat to prasent its individual
incorne statement and related notes that forrm part of these opproved financial staternents.
On zonsolidation, the financial statements of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than sterling are
rransiuted int sterling as follows:
» Theassets and liabilities in their balance sheets plus any goodwill are transioted ot the rate of exchanga ruling
aif the bolonce sheet dore; ond
* Theincome staternents and cash flow statements are tronslated af the overage rare of exchange each month
in the financiol year, which approximates rhe rate of exchange ruling of the date of the ransactions.

recognised in the tronsiation resarve, which is o separate coniponent of equity

The functional currancy of each Group company is the currency of the primary economic @nvironment in which

the Graup company operates. The finonciol statermnents are prezented in starding which is the funcrional and
presentational currency of the Company.

Transactions denominoted in farsign currenciss are rransiated into the funcrional currency of each Group company
at the exchonge rate ruling at the dote of the transaction. Monetory ossets and habilties denominated in foreign
currencies are transiored info the funcrional currency ot the rate of exchange ruling of the balance sheet date.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Foreign exchange gains ond losses arising on the settlement of such transactions ond tronslation of monetory assats
and babilities are recognised in the intomae sictement.

Revenue

IFRS 15 establishes principles for derarmining when and how revenus or ising fram controcts with custormers should
berecognised. Filtronic recogrises revenue whr_‘t. it transfers goods or services 1o a custemer with an amount of
consideration expected to be received in exchange for fulfilling the performance obligation with the custormer.

The Graup reviews allincome streams agoinst the requirements of IFRS 15, Manogement undertakes an assessrant

of all contracts and revenue strearns ocross the business using the five-step approach specified by IFRS 15:

1} identify the contract(s) with the customer;

2} Identify the perforrnance obligations in the contracr;

3) Determinz the iransaction price;

4) Allocara the tronsaction price To the parformance obligations in the comroc:t; and

5) Recognise ravenua when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied
In defermining the oppropriate method of recognising revenue, managernent is required to n‘c"ra judgaments
as to whether performance obligations are satishied over a period of tune or at a pointin time. For perforrmanca
ooligations that are satisfied over a period of time, judgements are made as to whether the output method or
the input merhod is more opprogriate to mecsure progress towords complete satisfaction of the performanca
obligotion. If performance obligations are not satisfied over time, the Group recognises revenue af ¢ pointin hime.
Revenue is measured ot the fair value of consideration received or receivabile for goods and services provided
or performad in the normal course of busingss net of value addad tosx or sales tox. Thz nansre of our revenue is
disclosed below:
Revenve relating to finished goods product
Soles of finished gonds product to custamers are recagnized when control oftho praduct hos transferrad to the
customer and the pecformance obligetion has been sc»hsnp:} at a peint in tirse. This is usually when hitle posses,
either on shipment or on recaipt of goods depending on the delivery tzrms of th,—‘,- customer contract. The transag e
orice is spacified in the custerner contract,
Revenue relating to non-recurring engineering ("NRE")
NRE comprises controcis 1e privide enainearing services, such os tha design and developme:-m of a product,
funded by the customer. The transacnon price of the contract is known i rom inception of ihe contraci. Each contracy
is revizwad 1o identify the number of distingt pnr.urrnom_e obligetions end the fransaction price is assigned
accordingty, usuoity by the vaitue of work serformed on on anpu mathod bosis; outputs ara typicadly milestones
within the development such s design reviews, reports and protatype nroducts. Based on the p'»rfn,rmc_mce of the
oblgations in the contract bemg maet, ravenue is recognisad over time. f relevant, onexpected loss on a contract is
recognised immediarely in thz income stotemeant,

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are those sigaificant frems which ore separciely disclosad by virtue of their size or incidence to
zrnotle o full understonding of the finoncicd results.

Current tax

Current tax is tha expectad 1ax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the yeor, using rotes znacted
or substantively enacted af the reporting dote, ond any odjushment to tax poyable in respect of previous yaors.
Investments in subsidiaries

Irsresiments in subsidiories are statad in the Compony's financiol stotements at cost less any accuraulated
impairment iosses. Investrnenis in subsidiavies are tested for impdairment whan there is anindication of impoirment.

Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the voquisition of subsidianias mr-dud@o inintangible gesets is measus
accumylated impairment losses. Gaadwill, whichs aiic h-genarating unirs, is tested for impairment
arleast annually and whan there is ar indicetion of impe sirment. The gaadwill carrying vaiug is written down o ifs
recoverable amount. Animpairmant icss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in g subsequent period.

ired ot costless

i
N
i

On disposal of a subsidiary, the aitributoble amourit of goodwill is included in the determnation of the profit or loss
oa disposal
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Notes to the financial statements continved
for the year ended 31 May 2023

1

Accounting policies (continued)
Internally-generated intangible assets
All reseorch costs are expensed as incurred.
Development costs chargeable to the custemer ore recognised as an expanse in the some period as the ossocioted
customer ravenue.
Develapment costs incurred on projects requiring product gualification tests 1o satisfy customer specifications
are generally expensed os incurred, reflecting the technicol risks ossociated with meating the resultant product
quulification tast.
Developrnent costs incurred on projects are capitalised where:
1) The technicol feasibility can be tested against relevant milesicnes;
2) The probaoble revenue streom foreseen over the life of the resuifing product can support the development; and
3) Sufficient resources cre availoble to complete the development.
These copitdiised costs are amorfised on o stroight-line bosis over the expacted life of the associoted product. The
estimatad usaful ives for the current and compuarative periods ore:
¢ Capitalised devalopment costs Tto 6 yaars
Once a naw product is in volume production, further development casts are expensed a3 they arise os they are
incurred in respoase to continual customer demand 1o enhance the product funclionslity or 1o reduce product cost.
Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are asguirad by the Group ond have firite useful ives ore measured or cost less
occumulcted amortisation and accumiloted irmpoirment Insses.
Amortisation i caleuloted over the cost of the osset fess its residuat valua.

Amortisotion is recognised in the incoms statement on o stroight-lire basis over the estimated useful lives of
intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date thot they are avuilable far use, sinca this most closely reflects
the expected paltern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the osset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
e

e Softwore licence 4105 yzars;
Amorhisation methods, usefullives and residuct values are reviewed ot each financial year end and adjusred if
oppropriate,
Irnpairment charges

The carrying arnounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other thoninveniories and deferred tas assets, ore
reviewad at each reparting date to determine whether there is ey indicaton of impairmant. if any suchindizotion
axists, then the asset’s recoverable amaount is estimated, For goodwill und intangibile assera thar hove indefinite
useful lives or that are not yet ovailable for use, the recoverable amount is astimated aach vecr atrthe same time.
The recoveroble amount of an asset or cash-ganerating unir is the greater of its valug in use and its fair volua fess
costs fo sell. In assessing value inuze, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o their present value using o
pra-rax discount rate thot reflects currant markat ussessrnents of the ime volue of money oind the risks specific 1o
the osser In gssessing the foir valua lass cost to selt (FYLCTS™, an estimated morket multiple is determined and
appshed 1o the forecost EBITDA of the cash genecating unit ("CGL).

For the purposas of impairment resting, ssets thet cannot e rested individually ore groupad together into the
smallest group of assets thar generates cash inflows from continuing use that are lorgely mdependent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of ossels {the "CGU"). For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to
which gaodwill has been ollocatect are agyregaied sc thar the level ot which impairmant is tested reflects the lowess
tevel or which goodwill is manitorad for internal reporting curposes.

.3
32

S o

¢

<

Animpairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of on osset or its CGLI exceeds ifs estirmated recoverable
coount. imporment lesses are recognised in the income statemen. Irnpairrent iosses recognised in respect of
CGUs arz ollocated first 1o reduce the carrying emount of any goodwill sllocatedto the units, and then to reduce
the carrying omounts of the ather assefs in the unit {group of units) on a pro cat basis. An impairment loss in respect
of goodwill is not raversed. In respect of other assers, impoirment iossas recogaisad in prior pariods are ossessed

at gach reporting date for any indications thot the loss has decreasad or noionger exists. Animpairment loss is
reverszd of thare hos been a change in the estirnates used 1o derermine the recoverable amaount. An impsirment loss
is reversed ordy 1o the extent that the assar's carrying amount does ror exceed the carrying amount that would hova
been determined, net of Jepreciation or amortisation, if na impairment loss had been recognised.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Right of use assets and lease liabilities

The Group ussesses whether o contract is ¢ lease at inception of the controdt. The Group recognises o right of use
asset and a corresponding lease lianility with respact to oll fease arrangements inwhich it is the lesses, except for
shart-term leases and leases of low value ossets which includes the Group's leaserl office equipment such as
printers. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payment as an operating expense on a straight-line basis

aver the term of the lease.

The iecse is inttiolly measured at the present vaiue of the isase payments thot ore not poid at the carmmencernent
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or the incremental borrowing rate. Thisis the rate when
itis not pussible to determine the interest rata in the lease and represants what we would have 1o poy for o loan of
o similar item ond term of repayment. The leoss lisbility is subsequantly increased by the interest ¢ost on the feose
and decreosed by payments made. in the event of o chonge in future lease gayments, tha leose liability will be
remaasurad and the difference recognised in the right of use asser.

The Group remeasures the lease liobility and maokes o corresponding adivstment 1o the right of use osset whenever
there has been ¢ lease payment change, the lecse contract is modified or ary other significant event.

Tha right of use usset is initiolly roeosured of cost and subsequently ot cost less occumulated depreciation and
impoirmant losses. The right of use asset is depraciated over tha sharter of the periad of the lease term and useful
life of the underlying asset. Where there is reascoable certainty the Group will purchose the asset af the end of the
iecse, the osset is depracicted over the usefullife. The depreciotion starts ot the cornmencement date of the lease,
Where property ieases contain o break aption the value of the lease liability and right of use asset recognised on
rhe bolance sheet requires judgement to determine the lease terrn. The Group recognises the full term of ihe lease,
ignoring the brack option, as invaricbly the option will not be exercised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated ot cost less aoccumuloted depraciction and less any accumuiatec
impoirmant iogses.

Depreciationis provided on a straight-line bosis over the estimated useful fives of the assers as fallows:

s Fixiures and fittings 210 Wyears
e Plani and equipment 3o W years
» Computer hardware licdvyears

Praperty, olont and equipment are tested for impairment when there is anindication of impairmen: if impenred, the
carrying values of the assels ara written down to ther recoverable ameunts.

The gain or less arising on disposal or scroppage of an asset is determined os the difference between the sales

proceeds and the corrying smount of the usser and is recagnised in mcomea.

Deferred taxation

Defzrred toxis the tox expecied 1o be pavable or recoveroble on differancas beiween the carrying amounts of
assets and liokiities in the Congolidatad Statement of Financial Position and the corresponding tax boses used in
the cornputanion of 1a<able profit and is accounied for using the staternent of financiol position kabifity methad.
Deterrad tux liabilities are genesrally recogrised for all rasoble reroporary differences and deferred tax assars are
recognised 1o the extenit thot it is prsbable that texoble profiss will e avoilable agoinst which deduciible temperary
ciiffarances con bie utilised. Such osseis and kabilities are nat racoarsed if the lemporary difference arises from the
iniriaf recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition {othar thon in o business combination] of other cszels
and kobilities in ¢ tronsaction that offacts neithar the toxable profit nore the accounting prafit.

35els is reviewed af each stutzrment of finoncial position dote and reducadi to
har sufficient toxable profits will be ovailable to allow all or part of the aszet

The carrying arnount of deferred tans
the exient thatitis ne longer probable
10 be recowred.

Daferced raxis colculated ot the tax rotes that are expected to apply in the period when the licbility is sertled or the
assat is reclized based on tax laws and rates thot have bean enociad or substantively enccted of the stotement

of financial position date. Deferred taxis charged or creditad in the incorne sratemnant, excepr when it relates 1o
items charged or credited in athar comprehensive incomie, in which case the deferred tax is olso dealtwith in other
comgrehensiva incorne. Deferred tax assets und liobilinas are offser when there is a legaolly enforczable right 1o sei
off current tox assers against current foy iotilities and when they ralote to income tases lavied by the same toxation
authority ond the Group infends 10 settie its current 1ax assers and licbilities on a net tasis,
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Notes to the financial statements continved
forthe year ended 31 May 2023

1

Accounting policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories cre stated ot the lower of cost and nat redlisable volus. Net realisoble valug is the esfimoied selling price
less estimated costs of complation and saie. Inventory, including wark in progress, costs comprise direct niateriols
only. Costis stated in the consolidated balance sheet at standard cost, revalued to actual cost, based on a first in-
firsrout basis.

Provision is made for obsolete, slow moving or defeciive moteriuis where appropriate. This is reviewad monthly.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and ather receivables ore amounts dus from custorners for goods and services performed inthe ordinory
course of business. They are initially recorded at the transaction price ond therecfter measured ot amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less an allowance for expected credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the cash flow statement and starernant of financial position, cash and cash equivolents comprise
cosh ot bonk and short-term bank deposits with an originat maturity of three months ar less.

Warranty provision

A provision is recognised in the bolance sheet when there is o present legal or constructive obligation as o rasult of
a post avent, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required tc settle the obligation and the arount
con be reliobly estimated. A warranty provision is recognised when products ore sold based on historical worranty
data. The level of warranty provision required is reviewed on o product-by-product bosis and adjusted cccordingly
in light of actual exparience.

Dilapidations and onerous leases

A provision for dilapidations and onerous lecses is recognised in the balonce sheet on alease-by-leose basis and is
pased on the Groun's best astimates of the required cost 1o settle the relevant abligations.

Grants

Capircd-basad grants, when present, are included within deferred incoma in tha balance shest and credited to the
profit and loss account over the estimated useful econormic tivas of the assets ro which they relate.

Grants that compensoie the Group for expenses incurred are recogaised in the profit orloss account as ather
ogearating income on o systematic basis in the same periods in which tha expenses ars recognised.

Financial liabiiities
Financial liabilities cornprise inferest bearing borrowings and are nitially recognised at fair voiue and subsequently
meosurad al amartized cost with any net goinz or losses, including any interast expanse, recognised in profit orloss.

Share capital
Ordinary sharas issued ore clossified os share capitol in equnty.

Dividends
intzrim dividends ora recognised in 2quity in tha finoncial yaar thay are paid. Final dividends ore recognised in
eqguty in the financial year they are approved by shareholders.

Share-based payments

Tha Group operates equity sattled share option schemes, under which shore oplions are granted fo certain
employees. The fair valuz of the share options of the dote of grant was calculatad using an option pricing model,
taking into occount the terms and conditions opplicable t the option grant. The fair valuz of the numbar of shore
stwas exnensed inthe income starement on g straight-line bass over the expected vesting
ing period, these vesting axpectations ware revised as appropricte. A cradit is made to equity
hasad payrment charga in the finonciol year,

aptions expaclad oy
pariod. At each re
equal 1o the share
Defined contribution pension schemes

Defined contribution peason schamaes are nperated for amployees. Contriutions ore racegnised s an 2xpense in
thaincome stotensent osincurrad.

Forward currency contracts

Forward currency contracts are held of foir value. The goin or loss on re-mecsurement 1o fair value is recognised
immedictely i the consalidated income statement,
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

Accounting developments ond new standards

At the date of aurhorisation of these financial staizments, new and revised standards issuad but not yet effective
are ser out heiow. Itis anticipared the adaption of these standards and interpretotions in future periods will have ro
materialimpoct on the financiod statements of the Group. These hove not been odopted in the Group's accounting
oolicies.

I

The following amendrents are effective for the financial year bbaginning 1 June 2023:

Ref Title Summary Application date (accounting

periods commencing)

451 Presentation of Financial Arendments: classification of licbilities 1 Jonuary 2023
Statements as current or non-current

Amendments: reguirement 1o disclose 1 Jonuary 2023

‘marerial’ accounting policies insiead
of significant accounting policies
Amendments: clarification of the irnpoct 1 January 2024

of post balance sheet date conditions on
the clussification of liabilities as non-current

IAS 8 Accounting policias, Arnendrments: definition of accaunting 1 Janvary 2023
changes in accounting estimates ond clarificotion of the ireatment
esitmaolas and errors of chonges in accounting estimates

IAS12  Incometoxes Arnendraents: clarificotion of how deferred 1 Jonuary 2023

tax is acecounted for on certain transactions

IASTé  Lewses Amendments: clerificotion of the meosurament 1 Jonuary 2024
of safe and leaseback fransuctions thar
qualify os sales fronsactions under IFRS 15

IFRS 17 Insurance contracts Replaces FRS 4 tnsurance coniracis’ 1 Janwaey 2023

creaba

o
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2023

2

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial starements requires the use of accounting estimates and judgements, that affect
the agplicotion of accounting policies, which are described in note 1, and reparted umounts of assets and fobilities,
income and axpenses. The directors cre required 10 make accounting estimates and judgernanss which are
confinually evoluated. They ore based on histaricel experience and other factors, including expectations and best
estimotes of the future, that are believad to be reasonoble under the ciccumstances. Actual results moy differ from
the expacted results.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key estimates concerning the future, that hove a significant effect on the financial staterents are considered
below:

Investments in subsidiaries - impairment

Investments in subsidiories are tested for impoirment by referernice ta their recoverable amount relative to their
carrying volue. In accordance with 1AS 36, recoverabia omount is determinad os the higher of valsz in use ("VIU"),
determined basad onthe expectad cash generated by the CGLi to which the investment relates and foir vaive fess
costs to sefl (FVLC TS Both models ore subject to uncertainties surcounding the EBITOA and cosh flow forecasts
peing vsed.

The sensitivity anclysis in respect of the recoverable amount of investments in subsidiaries is presenied in note 15.

Goodwili and other intangibles ~ impairment

Goodwill and other intangibles are rested for impairment by raference to the expected cash generated by the cosh
generating unit ('CGU") or group of CGUS. This is deemed 1o be the best approximation of value, but is subject to
the soma uncertaintias as the cash flow forecost being used. The forecasts comprise forecasts of revenue, material
costs and everhecd costs based on current ond onticipared market conditions that have been considerad and
approvad by the Beard. Whilsy the Group 15 able 1o monage most of its costs, significont elernents of the revenue
farecasts areinherently linked 10 global demand whera uncertainty about both the fiming and levai of growth
remains which is o key sensitivity.

Capitalised developrnent costs - impairment

Intangible ozsets include devalopment cost assets which have been reviewed for impairmant os ot the reporting
date.

Tha racoverable amount of each tachnclogy development project has been determinad basad on voiuz in use
caleulations, using cash flow projections in ling with the expectad useful economic life of each asset. The volue nuse
colculations are based on managemenr spproved risk-adiusted cash flow forecasts for each project and have been
discounted using a discount rate of 14%.

The key assumptions usad in the cosh flow projeciions relore ta revenue and gross prefit rmargin for each rechnology
ond sre based on ossurnptions shout expecred cusiomer demand which is inherently linked to the global demand
for the rechnology under development where the fiming and taval of demaond is subjecr to uncectainiy The Groug
has carvied out 1 sensitivity anolysis on the impairment 1ests of each of these proiects, using vanous reasonalsly
possible scenarios and conchi:ded there 12 be no impairmant risk.

Deferred tax asset

Tha racogaihon of deterrad rax ossets reloting 1o 1ox lossas carried forward depends on forecosts of the furure
taxable profits of the Company and its subsidiaries. The Group has assessed the recoverability of its deferrad
tax assels by reference to Board approved budgers and cash fiow forecasss. These Farzcasts require the usg of
estimates and juddgements about the Futurs parformance of the Company and its subsidiaries using the cuerent

ordar book, forecosis ond morket knowledge.

Deferred 1ax assets hove baen recagnisad within Filtranic Broadband Limited in the UK und Filtronic Wireless inc.
ircthe USA so achange o forecast customer deamand in gither of these subsidiarizs would impaoct on the amount of
detarrad tax asset recognisad. A 1% foracost reduction in the profitaility of these subsidiaries would ses defarved
tax asset recognition redice by on odditional £81,000.
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2 Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Woarranty provision

The Croup makes estimates in colculotng the warranty provision for existing commitments arising fron post events,
In estimating tha provision, the Group mckes judgements as o the quonturm ond likelihood o the liability arising.
Certain provisions require more judgernaent thon athers. in particular, the worranty provision has to 1oke account

of future ouicoraes crising fror past deliveries of products ond services. In estimating these provisions, the Group
makes use of manogement experience, precedents and any specific controct and cusromer informartion,

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies are considerad below and are the
ndgemaents that hava the most significant effect onthe amounts recognisad in the financial starements.

Development cosis

Development custs are copitolised in accordoncea with the accounting policy in note 1if it reats the criterio as par
IAS 38, Initial capitolisation of costs is based on managerment's judgement wherher the criteria of IAS 38 is satistied,
when the technological and economical feasibility is confirmed, usually when a product development projact has
reached a defined milestone and there is commercial interest in the product. As part of this judgement process,
manogearnent establish future dermand relating 1o the product, evaluote the daveloprent plans o complete the
product and estoblish where the development is positioned on the Group's technelogy readmap. The directors
apply judgement in the review of costs capitalised to derermine whether any impairment should be recognised. The
directors also apply judgement in it raview of impairment of its development costs ond ossesses this on o regular
basis to ensure that any costs shill capitalised continue 1o be commearciclly viable.

LIS
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2023

3

Segmental analysis

Operating segments

IFRS 8requires consideration of the identity of the chiel operating dacision maker (CODM’) within the Group. Inline
with the Group's internal reporting fromework und management strycture, the key strotegic ond operuting decisions
are made by the Chiaf Executive Officer, who raviews iternal monthly managament reports, budget and forecast
informarion as part of this. Accordingly, the Chief Executive Officer is deamed to ba the CODM.

The CODM has identified one operating segment within the Group as definad uncler IFRS 8. Inturn, this s the

anly reportabie segment of the Group as the entities in the Group have similor products ond services, production
orocesses and econormic characteristics. Therafore, there is no allocation of operating expenses, profit meosures or
assets and liabilitias to specific commercial markets.

Accordingly, the CODM assesses the performance of the aperoting segment on financicl information which is
measured and presented in o manner consistent with thosa in the Financiol statements by reference to Group results
against budgar,

The Group profit measures ore adjustad operaiing profit and adjusted EBITDA, both disclosed on the face of

the consoliduted income staternant, Mo differences exist between the basis of preparation of the performance
meosures used Ly ronagement and the figuresin the Group finonciad statements,

The Group has four customers representing individually over 10% of revenue eoch and in aggregate 85% of
ravenye. This is split as follows:

o Customer A - 34%(2022:23%)

o Customer8 - 229 {2027:56%)

o CustomerC - 17%(2022: 22%)

o CustomerD - 12% {2022: 0%}

Geographical information
In prasenting information on the basis of geographical segmenrs, segrment revenue is based on the geographicol
location of custorners und the noture of revenue recognised. Segment assets ore bosed on the geographical

2023 2022

Revenue by destination £000 £000
Unitad Kingdom 4,762 7,489
Europe 2,600 3421
Amaricas 5711 5,313
Rest of the waorkd 3,195 729

16,268 17,552

2023 2022

Split of non-current assets by location £000 £000
United Kingdom 6,925 5,109
Armencns 438 248

7,363 5,357

1z, goodwill and other intongibia assets

Men-current assets relate fo property, olant ond squinrment, right of use s
and deferrad rax.
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4 Operating profit
2023 2022
£000 £600

Revenue from goods and services 15,362 14,580
Revenue from non-recurring enginesring ('NRE™ projecis 906 472
Revenue 16,268 17,052
Material cost of goods sold 5992 5,645
Wages and salcries 5884 5532
Socwial security costs 623 577
Pansion costs 336 291
Share-bosed paymenis 16 14
Sraff costs 6,859 6,416
Amortisation 253 278
Depreciotion 780 945
Depreciotion, omortisation and impaoirment 1,033 1,223
Orher operating income {(187) (329)
Non-satary related exceptional terns - {397)
Other expanses 2,334 2,513
Total operating costs 10,039 9,432
Operating profit 237 1975

Davelopment cests of £481,000 wers capintised in the yaar (2022: £nil).
Other opargting income relates o grants received for plant and machinery and R&D innovation whilst R&D 1ox
credits claimed under the RDEC scheme are also recagnised in operating profit.

5 Exceptionalitems

Exceptional items are costs that are seporotaiy disclosed due to thair moterial and non-recurring noture inorder to

reflact manogement’s view of the underlying business.

Operating costs ore stated after crediting excaptional items os follows:
' 2023 z042
£000 £000
Antenna warranty - {559)
Historic cloin - {52)
- {391)

e

The antenna waorranty iterr refoted to the Group lagacy Telecoms Antenina QOperation praviously costed through
ciscontinuad operations. The warroniy period has now lapsed, and the provision was released uvnused.

A provision reloting 10 an historiz clairn was relensed unused and cradited to the income statement os it ralared 1o
the Telacoms Arrenng Operation, sold in January 2020,

K

ich

L)

o

o
i
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2023

6 Operatingitems

2023 2022
£000 £GQ0
Operating orofit is stated after charging/(crediting):
Depreciotion 780 945
Research and developrent costs in the incorne statament excluding amortisation 1,776 1,937
Amartisation of development costs 222 259
Amortisation of other intangible assets 31 19
Foreign exzhongs gain (107) (147}
7 Auditors' remuneration
The Compuany's auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The auditors’ remuneration wos os follows:
2023 2022
£000 £000
Company auditor:
Audit of the Group und Company financial statements 45 35
Comgany auditor and their associates:
Audit of subsidiaries financial stoternents puisuant to legislation 85 75
130 110
8 Employees
The average number of erployees comprised: .
2023 2022
Number Number
Manufooturing 74 78
Research ond devalopmeant 3 26
Soles 7 5
Adrainistration 13 15
125 124

Filtronic ple Annual Reporr and Accounts 2023
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9 Compensation of directors
Derails of the remunaration, pansion entitlements and share options of the individuad directors are sefoutinthe
Directors’ remuneration regort on poges 501 54. The compensation of the directors wes:

2023 2022

£000 £000

Solary or fees 481 453

Bonus - 125

Benefits n 22
Long terrmincantives 35 1

Tota! remuneration excluding pension contributicns 527 612

Pension contributions 11 11

538 623

The Sirectors’ remuneration i3 poid through ihe Company.

The schadule 5 disclosure requirerents are included in the Dirsctors' remuneration report in the table entitled Total
single figure of remuneration for directors - aucited' and the toble entidec Totel single figure of pension benefirs for
directors - audited’. The elements thot are audited ara identified as such in that report.

10 Related party transactions

Identity of related parties
Thia Compaony hos a reloted party relationship with its subsidiarias and with its directors.

Transactions with subsidiaries

The main rrensoctions between the Company and its subsidiories are managemeant administration racherges 1o ils
subsidiaries of £1,018,000 (2022: £931,000) and a royairy charge of 1% of filters product sales to Filironic Wireless
Limited of £30.000 {2622: £33

3
5,000). These intercompany transactiaons ore eliminated on consolidation,

The Conpony also acts as a centro) service to disiribute monay around the Group 16 ensure subsidiories are
adequotely fundad 1o meet obligations ane 1o invest funds from subsiciaries where surglus cash exists. The totol
figuras for these tronsachons olong with the managament and royalty charge can be seen nnnotes 21 and 22
through the movernent in the Company's infercompany receivobles ond poyables.

The omount outstanding from subsidiory uadermskings to the Company or 31 Moy 202 5 1otalled £4.9m {20
£4.3m]). Araounte owad o subsidiary underrakings by the Compony at 31 May 2023 rotalled £2.8m (21

Transactions with key management personnel
Key management personnel ara considered to be the Exe
ter these individuols is disciosed in the Directors’ remunera!

cutive Directors of the Company. The remuneration givan

N report.

11 Finance costs

2023 2022

£000 £000

intarest expense for leass crrangemants 139 127
Minimism service costs and inferast charges on invoice discounting facilinies 92 57
231 194

www.filtronic.com Stock Code: FTC



Notes to the financial statements continuved
for the year ended 31 May 2023

12 Finance income

2023 2022

£000 £00C
Revaluation of foreign currancy denorrinoted intercompany balance 49 111
Inferest raceipt on freoasury deposits 9 -

58 111
13 Taxation

2023 2022
Recognised in the income statement £000 £000
Current tax credit
Overseas taxation in the financiol year 18
Adiustment in resgpect of prior year — R&D tox credit (32) {24)
Total current tax credit (14) (24
Deferred tax {credit) /charge
Chonge of tox rote Q - {109
Qrigination and reversol of termporary differences (386) 557
Total deferred tox {credit)/charge {386) 443
Income tox {credit)/charge (400) 424
The reconciliation of the effective tax rate is as follows:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Peofir before 1axation 64 1,892
Profit bafore taxation multiplied by the avernge standard rate of corporation tax
inthe UK (20%)(2622:19%) 13 359
Uisaliowabie iterns 46 155
Deferred tax asset not recognised 30 194
Enhonced R&D 10x credii (89) (270
Adjustment in respact of pricr year R&D tax credi (32) {24}
Foreign rax not of UK rete 18 15
(Recognitinn)/derecognition of deferred 1ox asset (386) 104
Rota change of defercad tax - {109}
Taxation (400) 424

The main rats of UK corporation tax was 19% for the first 10 months of the vear, olthough the corporation 1ax rate
ncreased o 25% on 1 April 2023 for companies with profits abiove £258,0060. Consaquently, the average raie of

catporation 1as for e year was 20%. The US federal corporate tox ratais 21%.

The deferred iax assers recagnised in the yeor hove been calouloied ot the rates expected ro bein existence in the

perind of reversol,

Filtronic ple Annuol Report and Accounts 2023
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14 Earnings per share Total

Profit for the year 464 1,468

‘000 (CY

Basic weighted overage number of shares 215,121 214,72
Dilution effect of share options 1,358 864
Diluted weighted average number of shares 216,479 215,594

Basic earnings per share 0.22p 0.68p
Diluted earnings per share 0.21p 0.68p

15 Investments in subsidiaries

Company
investments in
subsidiaries
£000
Cost

At 1 June 2021, 31 May 2022 and 31 May 2023 21,110

Impairment
A1 June 2001 {14,559}
impairmerntin the vear {3,372}
A 31 Moy 2022 {16,731}
imgairment in the vear {3,833)
A131May 2023 (20,764)
Corrying amount ot 31 May 2022 4179

Carrying amount at 31 May 2023 346

The investments in subsiciaries ors assessed annually 1o determine if there is any indication that eny of ihe

investments might be impaired. The assessnent of the carrying amount s derived from tha higher of the voluz inuse
and the fair value less costs 1o sefl. Value | is determined by discounting the future cash flows generated from the
zontinuing use of the cash generoting unit (CCGLI"Y 1o which the investiment refotes whilst the fuir value less costs 1o selt

i5 the amount that a morket parricipant would pay for the asser or CGU, lass the costs of sole

The corrying amount was coicuiored using the volug in use madal which ceturned o higher carrying vialus bosed on

the following key assumptions:

» Budgersincorporating posi-tax cash flows have bean preporadtio 31 May 2024 based on post exparience, actual
operoting resulrs, known future cash flows and estimates of future cosh Hlows;

aen prepored bosed on the Company’s long -range plon together with
parpeiuity foctor has been applisd based on the year to 51
d to the perashiity cash flows; and

o Cash fiows for o further four years hova b
cost mflation and ediditional ovarhead assumptizns,
May 2028. Along-term growth Foctor of 2.2% was aopl

(=)

o Tha CGU hos o pre-tax discount rate of 14% {2022:12%) which was applied in delermining the recoveroble
omount of the unit, being the estimoted weighied average cost of capitat for the CGU,

Tha investments in subsicliaries are gssessed annuclly ro detarmune if there is any indication that ony of the
nvastments might be imgaired. At 31 May 2023 itwas wentified that the investment in the CGU responsible for RF
condilioning products would nezd 1o be impaired by £3.8m based on discounting the future cashflows following o
review of budgets. The racoverable amount of £0.7m was determined biasead on a volue-in-yse calculation which
requiras the use of key assumptions. A kay input of the recdelis the discount rate used. Therefore a +/- 1% difference

in the discount rate would impact impairment by £178.000 ¢n +1% and £210,00% ot -1%.

VW
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2023

15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Tha Company's suosidiaries orz related portias,
The subsidiories at 371 Moy 2023, which were owned by Filtranic plz, were as follows:

Country of Description of Proportion
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity held held Activity
Filtronic Broodband Limited! UK Ipordinory shares  100% Dasign and monufacture

of microwave products for
talacommunicotion systems

Filtironic Haldings UK Limited! UK Tordinary shores 100% . Holding Company
Isotek (Holdings) Limited! K 1p ordinary shares 100% Holding Company

Owned by Isotek (Holdings) Limited:

Filironic Wireless Limited’ UK ip ordinary shares 100% Designond manufocture of
filers ond related products for
telecommunication systems

Filtranic Wireless inc.? USA US$H1 ardinary shares 100% Design und manufocture of
filters and related praoducts for
telecommunicotion systerns

Owned by Filtronic Wireless Limited:

bsotek Hong Kong Holdings  Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary shares 100% Holding Company
Limirad?

Owned by Isotek Hong Kong Holdings Limited:

lsorek Tetecommunications  Ching US$350,200 100% Design and rnanuiactyre

paid in share capital of filters and related products

Suzhou Limitecl sted
for telecommunicotion systems

YPlzxus 1, NETPark, Thomas Wright Way, Sedgefieid, County Durhom TS27 3FD, United Kingdora
£ 700 Marvel Road, Solisbury, Maryland, 21201, USA

IRM 1501, C1 Grand Millennium Piaza (lower block), 181 Queen's oo Central, Hong Kong
“Suzhou Indysteic! Pork, 199 Sinegang Street, Orientol Gate Building 2, Roor 2201, Seot A172
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16 Goodwill and other intangible assets

} Group { Company
Other intangibles Software  Development Software
Goodwill (core technology) costs costs Total costs
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost

At 1 June 2021 374 10,384 323 1,015 13,196 127
Additions - - 57 E 57 23
At 31 May 2022 974 10,884 380 1,015 13,253 155
Additions - - 51 4 532 23
At 31 May 2023 974 10,884 431 1,496 13,785 178

Amortisation
At 1 June 2021 - 10,284 243 353 11,480 69
Provided in the year - . 19 255 278 14
At 31 May 2022 - 10,884 262 612 11,758 83
Provided in the vea: - - 31 222 253 19
At 31 May 2023 - 10,884 293 834 12,011 102
Carrying amountat 31 May 2022 974 - 118 403 1,495 72
Carryingamount at 31 May 2023 974 - 138 662 1,774 76

Goodwill and other intangibles relate to the acquisition of Isotek (Holdings) Limited. Goodwillis allocated to
the CGUs that were expecred to benefi from the synergies of the combination and which represents the lowesr
leval within the Group ot which the goodwill 13 monitorad for internol management purposes. The Group tests
gandwill annually for imgoirment or more fraquently if thera are indications that goadwill may be impoired.
The carrying value of intangible assers and goodwiil has basn ossassed for irmpaoirment by reference foits value
ivruse. Volue 1n use was determined by discounting the tuture cosh flaws genarated from the continuing use of the
CGUs. The colasation of the value in use was bosed on the foliowing key assurmprions:
» Budgets incorporating pre-tax cosh flows have been prepared to 31 May 2024 based on post erperience, octual
operating rasulls, known future cosh flows and estimatas of future cash flows;
o Cash flows for o furthar four years have been prepored based on the Carnpany's kang range plon together with
:ost inflation ond additional overhead ossumptions, A perpeivity factor has bean applied based on the yaar 1o
31 May 2028, Along-term growth factor of ril was applied to the perpetiity cash flows; and

o The Group's pre-iax discount rate of 14% {2022:12%) wos agolizd in determining the recoveroble amaount of the

unit, being the estimated weighted average cost of capital for the CGUs,

Bosed on the resing abave the directors do not consider any of the remaining gocdvwill o intangible assets 1 be
inpatired, evan alfowing far o raasonable degres of sensitivity io the underlying assumptions, including the discount

Qe
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Notes to the financial statements continved
for the year ended 31 May 2023

17 Right of use assets
——— Group ———| Company

Property Plantand Plant and
leases equipment Total equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
1 June 2021 1,626 1,422 3,048 -
Additions 66 512 578 -
Exchongs differences 34 4 38 -
At 31 May 2022 1,726 1,938 3,664 -
Addirions 599 579 1,178 -
Disposals {595} . {595} -
Exchonge differsnces 7 1 3 -
At 31 May 2023 1,737 2,518 4,255
Depreciation
At 1 June 2021 495 285 780 -
Providled in the vear 331 232 563 -
Exchonge differences 2 1 28 -
At 31 May 2022 853 518 1,371 -
Provided in the yeor 288 2990 578 -
Disposils {S95) - (R95) -
Exchonge differences 12 - 12 -
At 31 May 2023 558 808 1,366 -
Carrying amcuent at 537 May 2022 373 1,420 2,293 -
Carrying amount at 31 May 2023 1,179 1,710 2,889 -

The Group's lease cornmitmeanis are made up of property leases and plant and aquipment. Plant and equipment
clussifiad as a vight of use asset i financed under assat finance agreements which usually reguire the Group 1o
roake o deposit against the machinery of 20%.

The Group leases office premises ot its sites in Sedgefield, Yeadon ond Manchester in the UK, Salisbury, Marylond
inthe USA and avirtgal office spocs in Suzhou, Ching, Lenses remaining are up 1o six yzars,

in addition 10 the dapraciation charges shown in the table: above, the consolidated incame staramen: includes the
foliowing arnounts relating to leases:

2023 2022

- £000 £0CO

Intarest wxpanse {included in finance cost) 139 127
Eupense relating to viable lease poymenis notincluded infease

liabilities (included in operafing costs) 2 7

Filtronic plc Annual Report and Accounts 2023
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18 Property, plant and equipment
}

b Group { Company
Fixtures Plantand Computer Plant and
and fittings equipment hardware Total equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost ‘
At 1 June 2021 292 3,766 170 4,228 -
Additions 5 81 7 61 -
Oisposals - {3471} - (441)
Exchange differences 1 42 i 44 -
At 1 June 2022 296 3,418 178 3,892 -
Addditions 133 810 3 246
Disposols {153) ©n an {261)
Exchange differences . 7 B} 7 -
At 31 May 2023 276 4,144 164 4,584
Depreciation
Ar 1 June 2021 150 2,946 118 3,214 -
Depreciciion 31 337 14 382 -
Disposols . {441} - (447)
Exchenge differences 3 35 - 36
At 31 May 2022 182 2,877 132 3,191 -
Depreciation 38 158 & 202 -
Disposals 1153) (913 {173 {261} -
Exchange differances - & . 6
At 31 May 2023 67 2,950 121 3,138
Carrying omount ot 31 iMay 2022 114 641 48 701 -
Carrying amount at 31 May 2023 209 1,194 43 1,446
19 Deferred tax G
roup
2023 2022
£000 £000
Deferred tox assets
Opening balance 868 1,218
Originaiion /revarsal) of tas losses 559 {585)
Utilisation of o fosses 47 (30%)
{Reversal)/erigination of cagitad aliowances (128) 342
£xchange differences 2 93
Chonge of tax rate - 109

1,254 566

Deferred tax ussets withir: tha UK and the USA hove been racognised as the direciors consider that future toxabie
profits will be available against which they can be used. Future ioxable profits are determined basead on buziness
plars for indivigual subsidiaries in the Group and the reversal of temporary differences.

Deferred tox ossels are reviswed of ench reporting date and are reduced to the axfant thot itis no longer probabie
thort the reloted tax benati vall be reclised; such deductions are reversed when the peobability of future

profis improves.

www.filtronic.com S:uck Code: FTC
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Notes to the financial statements continved

for the year ended 31 May 2023

19 Deferred tax (continued)

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Deferred tax assets which have been recognised: £000 £000 £000 £0GO
Depreciotion in cdvance of capitol aliowances 287 415 - -
Tax losses carried forward 967 453 - -
1,254 368 - -

The defarred tax assers hove not been recognised where the directors consider thot it is unfikely that future taxable
profits will be availoble against which thay can be used. There is no expiry date for these unrecognised deferred rax
assers which ore reassessad at each reporting dote. These deferred tax assets ara presented below:

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Deferred tax assets which have not been recognised: £000 £QOC £000 £500
Depreciation in advance of capital ollowances 2,473 1,397 510 510
Taxlosses carried forward 15,805 15775 14,043 13,917
Shere ogtions deferrnent 80 80 80 80
18,358 17,252 14,633 14,507
20 Inventories
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 202
£000 £000 £000 £000
Row materials 3,528 3,548 -
Worlk in progress 628 531 -
Finishad gocds 426 204 - -
4,582 4,343 -
Invaniory provision (1,804) (i,745) - -
Inventories (net of provision) 2,778 2,598 -

Rew materials, consumables and changes in finishend goods and work in prograss recognised in cost of soles in the

year ameunied to £5,539,000 (2022: £5,023,000}.

The amaunt chargad to the income starement in the year in respect of were-downs of inventaries is £60,000
(2022: £195,000). The amount cradited 1o the incame sioternent in the year in respect of raversals of writa-downs of

inventories is £nil (2022 £ail)

21 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 M2
£000 £400 £000 EODG
Trade racaivablas 4,351 3512 -
Group raczivables - 4,896 6255
Other cecaivables and prepayments 984 a7 51 55
5,335 4,479 4,947 B,321

There are no provisions for boad debt. The Group recsivables in the Corpany were reviawed in the yeor for exprcted

creditlosses in eocordance with IFRS G,

Arnounts nwed 1o Group undertakings are unsecured, interest-free and puvobile on derannd.
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22 Trade and other payables Group Company
2023 20237 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £00D

Trade poyables 2,891 1,825 55 78
Groug pavables - . 2,784 2,784
Other payables and occruals 782 1,168 341 698
3,673 2,993 3,180 3,560
Amacunts owed to Groug undertakings ore unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.
23 Provisions
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2622
Warranty provision £000 £000 £000 £0C06
Opening balance 135 242 - -
L'”e"" during the year (58) i24) -
Released ynused during the yeor (60) (347) -
Charge for the yeor 300 163 -
Exchange differences - 1 -
317 135 - -

The provision for warrany relotes 1o the units sold during the last twa financial years. The provision 1s based on
estimeies made from historicol warranty daota. Factors that could imgact the warranty provision include the succs
of the Group's productivity and quality inifiatives os well as ports and lebour costs. The provision is expected to be
urilised in the next two financial years,

Group Company

2023 2022 2023 202z

Dilapidation provision £000 £000 £000 £000

Opening tolonce 147 55 - -

Used during the year (29) . - -
Released unused during the year (71) - -
Chaorge for the year - 21 -
Exchonge differences - i -
47 147 -

The Group leases physical faciiities ot its three sites in the UK ond ong in the USA with each of inese laases requiring
the site ) be restored to its onginal candition. The dilupidotion provision reflects managemenr's best estimates and
ability to measure the likely costs thot moy be incurrad restoring the building to its criginal staie Sertlernant will ba
mode on edit from egch progerty. Thers are currently ne plans 1¢ leave cny of the Groug's properties.

Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
Total provision £000 £000 £000 £000
Warranty provision 317 155 -
Dilagidarion provisian 47 147 - -
364 282 -
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Notes to the financial statements continuved
for the year ended 31 May 2023

24 Deferred income
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000

Coniract iiabilities 140 134 -
Capitat grant 24 38 - -
Total current deferred income 164 172 -
Contract liabilities - 111 - -
Copital grant 29 16 -
Total non-current deferred income 29 130 -
Total deferred income 193 302 - -

Contraztliobilities ore invoices roised in advance of NRE work completed for customers thor wili be recognised os
incoma ance the performance obligotion of the contract hos been met. The mojority of MRE controcts are invaiced
with o propurtion of the controct value upfront which is recognised os revenue, aver time, across the life of contrort
at each mitestong based on the percentage of the overall contract value achieved ot thot performance abligotion.
A copital gront of £40,000 vias owarded in the year towards the purchase of a new die ottuch machine to support
new product introductions. The grant is being amarrised over a period of four years with o ramaining life of 0.5
years.
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25 Leaseliabilities

Group

2023 3022

£000 £060

Gpening lease licbifity 1,820 2,020

MNew leases entered into during the yaar 1,126 445

Payments made during the year (765) (653}
Finance costs 139

Exchange differences (5) 8

2,315 1,820

2023 2022

£000 £000

Lecse labiiity payable inless thon o year 617 540
Current lease liabilities 617 540
Laose liobility poyable in one to five yeors 1,579 1,017
119 263

Lause liability payable in more than five yeors
Non-current lease liabilities
Total lease liabilities

1698  1.280
2,315 1,620

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
The following are the cash flows relating to the Graup's financial liobilities other than trade and arher payables, for
which there is no material difference between their carrving value and contractuat cash flows:

Carrying Contractual Less than 1-2 2-5 Qver5
value cash flows 1year years years years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Lease liobilities at 31 May 2023 2,315 2,725 777 665 1,166 117
Lease liobilities ot 31 May 2022 1,820 2,176 042 446 795 295
26 Share capital
Group and Company
Deferred shares Ordinary shares
of 10p each of 0.1peach
Number ‘000 Number ‘000 £000
At 1 June 2021 106,877 214,418 10,795
Exercise of shars ophions . 83 i
At 31 May 2022 106,877 214,798 10,796
Exercise of share options - 323 -
Ar31May 2023 106,877 215,121 10,796

All shores are allorted, called up and fully poid. Holders of the ordinary shares ars entitied to receive dividendls when
: s Y
declurzd, end ore entitled 10 one vole per share ¢t mestings of the Comporny.

Tha deferred shoras have na rights to vote of racaive dividends.
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2023

27 Share premium

(?:'oup and

000

At 1 June 2021 11,039

Exercise of shore optinns 21

At 31 May 2022 11,060

Exercise of shore options 17

At31 May 2023 11,077
28 Translationreserve

Group

£000

At1 June 2021 (650}

Currency translation movement orising on consolidation 179

At 31 May 2022 (471)

1

Currency transiation movemeni orising on consolidatinn
At 31 May 2023 (470)

The translation reserve zomprises foreign currency differences arising frorm the translation of the financicl

statements of foreign operations.

29 Dividends

The directars are not prapasing to pay o dividend for the year ended 31 May 2023(2322: £nil}.
30 Retained earnings ¢
roup Company
£000 £000
At 1 June 2021 (11,826) (11,167)
Profit/ (loss) for the year 1,488 {3,434)
Shara-bused poymants ih 15
At 31 May 2022 (10,342) (14,585)
Profit/(loss) for the year 464 {4,500}
Share-bosed payments 15 16
At 31 May 2023 (9,862) (19,069)
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31 Share options
Sharesave plans
Seven sharesave plons have been offered to amployees over the years, of the date of this report. The first six of the
schemes offerad to emiployess have now cosed. Under thase plans employees who ;oin the plon con save yp to
£500 par raonth for three yaars. The marmbears of the pluns are granted o number of share options bosed on the
amaunt they would save over the three years. At the end of the three years, the mermbers have a six-month period in
which they can esercise the share options. The scheme has an exercise price calculotzd by reference to the average
of the middle market closing price of the shares on AlM for the dadling day irnmediotely prior 1o the plan offar date.

Sharesave Plan—Scheme 7

Weighted average  Number of Weighted averoge  Nurnber of

exercise price 2023 options 2023 exercise prica 2022 ontions 2022
Outsranding at the beginning of the year 6.67p 1,898,193 - -
Granted during the year 6.67p - 5.67p 2059029
Concelled during the yeor 6.67p  (157,598) b6Tp {165,836
Exercised during the year 6.67p (22,668) b6.67p -
Outstanding at the end of the year 6.67p 1,717,927 b6Tp 1,898,193
Exercisable at the end of the year 6.67p - 6.67p -

Management incentive plons
The options granted in the year hove spaaific parformance targets otiached 1o them. The exarcise price far on
option was the middie raarket closing price of Filironic pic's ordinary shores as derived fram AlM on the dealing day

priortoissue.

The following options under this scheme were cutstanding ot 31 May 2025;
Ordinary shares of 0.1p Earliest date Lotest date
2023 2022 Date granted exercisable exercisable Exercise price
950,000 1,250,000 01/0%/2014 01/03/2017 25/02/2026 S.4p
300,000 300,000 11/64/2016 1170472017 10/G472026 B.5p
200,000 200,000 28/03/2018 28/03/2019 27/G3/2028 2.9p
- 200,000 11/02/2020 110272027 1170272030 4.3p
750,000 750,000 240972020 24/0%/2023 2470972030 S0p
2,361,760 2543574 2440672021 240672024 24/0¢/2031 11 te
181,814 - 1271072022 1271072032 12/70/203%3 i1do
4,743,574 5243574
The weighted average price of the awtstonding optons under this scheme at 31 Moy 2025 was 9 2022: 9p).

Number of share Number ¢f shure

options 2023 opiians 2022
Qutstanding ot the baginning of the year 5,243,574 3,083.3%4
Granted during the yeor 181,814 3,270,828
Cancelled during the year (381,814) {727.25%)
Exercised during the yeor {300,000) {383 373}
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,743,574 5,243,574
Exercisable ot the end of the year 1,450,000 1,750,000
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 May 2023

32

33

34

35

Share-based payments Group and
Company

2023 2022

£000 £000

Share options expense 16 16

16 16

The share qprions expense is the fair value of the share options at the date of grant spraad over the expectad
vasting period of the shore options. The fair volue of the shore options of the date of gront was measured using the
Black-Scholas model,
The inputs to the Black-~Scioles model and the weighted average foir voiue of the share options gronted during the
year were o3 follows:
Group and
Company
2023 2022
181,814 5,329,857
11.37p 9.40p
50% 50%
3.0years 3.Dyears
2.5% 0.8%
4.0p 2.5p

Number of share options granied
Weighted overage share price
Expected volatility

Expecied life

Risk-fres interest rate

Weighted overoge fair value

Expected volatility is the estimare of the volatility of the shore price over the expecied life of the share gotions.

Pension costs
Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Defired contribution schermes 336 29 42 43
Capital expenditure commit
P penditure commitments Group Company
2023 2022 2023 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Capital expenditure contraciad for at the bolonca sheet date
tut not provided in the financiol siotemants 234 39 - -
A .
nalysis of net cash TJune  Cash  Other 31May
2022 flow changes 2023
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cesh equivalents 4006  (1,412) 16 2,610
Bonk ioans . . -
Laase habilities - plant ond machinery {865 419 {S76;  (1,020)
Net cash when including all debt except property leases 3143 (993) {560) 1,590
Leasz liobiiities - property leases (257 348 (684)  (1,295)
2,128 647y (1,244) 298
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Analysis of net cash (continued)

Reconciliation of cash flow to movement in net cash )
2023 2022

£000  £000

Movement in cosh and cash equivaients (1,412) 1.071
fovement in bank loans - 131
Mevement in legse linbilities - plont ond machinery “s7n (28)

Maovemeni inlease lichilities - propertylegse (338) 428
Exchenge differences 16 29
Movement in net cash (1,891) 1,431
Opening ret cash 2,186 755
Closing net cash 295 2,186

Cash ot bank earns interest ¢t floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. There are no restrictions on the
availability of the cosh and cosh equivaients ot 31 May 2023 (2022: £nil).

IFRS 16 requirss the racogaition of property leases on the balance sheet whichis clossified as ¢ debt item.

Financialinstruments

Fair value

The carrying amount of oll the finoncial ossets and licbilities agprozimates 1o their Fair volue o3 described below.
Cosh and cash equivalents comprise bank kalances ond ban. deposits with o maturity of thrae months arless,
ivables are ofl receiveble in lass than one yecr. Trade receivables are genarally receivable within

Trade ond other rece
90 davys.

Trade and oiher payables ore ofl pavabls inless than ane veor. Trade pavables are generally payab!

days.

Altfinancialassets and liabilities are held at omortisad cost other than derivotive financial instrumants which ore held
ot fair volue.

Liquidity risk

The Group hos cash or bank of £2.6m whilst the Company hos cash at bank of £0.4m.

Cash is held an baak. deposit for varying periods from overmght 16 s months 1o ensure off liobilities con ba met s
they fall dus

The Group has access 1o o £3.0m soles invoicing focility with Barslays Benk and a 34 Ominveice factoring focilivy

with Weils Forga Bank.

Tha seles mwaicing facility with Barcioys Bank. allows the Company to boregw 701% of the W entities’ dehrors
denorminated in US dollars and sterling up 10 ¢ volue of £3.0m. The facility is dus its next formal review in Seprermber
2023, cithaugh this con be raviewedt of their discretion af any tiere,

Tha sales invoice foctoring facility with Wells Fargo Bank altows the Cornpany 10 barow 859 of the US entities
debrors denominared in LS doliars up 1o a value of 14.0m. The facility enatures on 12 July 2024 when it will be dus

_{

for renewol.
The amouni of zash ovarloble 1o the Groug and the heodream ovailable en dabst facilitios resuls in o low liguidiny risk,
Credit risk

The exposure to credit risk is imited 1o the corrying amaunt of cash and cosh enuivelents and trade and othar
ceceivables in the bolance shaa,

The credit risk related 1o cash and cash equivalenis is considerad 1o be iow due fo the cosh being held ot banks with
High credit ratings such o3 Barcloys Bank and Walls Fargo Bank.
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Notes to the financial statements continved
for the year ended 31 May 2023

36 Financial instruments {continued)

Credit risk is primarily related 1o trade receivaoles. The Group's businesses are concentrated on long-term
ralotionships with o smcll number of large and long-established OEMs. Poyment terms for trade receivables rangs
from prepayment terrrs 1 90 doys nat. Overdue recaivables are regularly monimred and oppropriate oction is
tokan 10 collect payment. Tha Group has historically incurred enly low levels of unrecoverable receivobles. Tharefore
credit risk is considered to be low.

Trade receivables includad the following anounts for the Group's largest custorers:

Group

2023 2022
£000 £000

Customer ane 1,5M 1,226
Customer two 1,105 830
970 742

Customer three
Ohher customars 705 l
4,351 3,512

The age of trade recavobles that hove not been provided for wos as follows:
Group
2023 2022
£000 £000
Mot post dug 4,347 3,487
Past due less than three months 4 25
4,351 5,512

Ne trade receivables hove been previded forin eithar FY20235 or £772022.

The Company has no trade receivables

Interast rate risk

Coshis genaratiy held on short -rerm Lank. deposits which earninterest at variable money market dzposi rates, Ar
31 May 2023, there wos Enil held on short-term deposit. The remaining cash in the Group is haid in very low intarest
rave bank accounts. Sterfing inferest rates are very icey and thecefare interast rate risk is considersd ta be low.

Theinterest rate sensitiviy of the sxoected onnual interest income/{erxoanse’ assuming o balonce on deposit or
faan of £1,000.000 s as follows.

Expected Expmctadd
annual  sonuol
interest  inferest
income expense

£000 £QOC

1.5% 15 15)
1.0% 10 (10}
05% 5 {S)
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Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign currency risk
The Group's and Company's reporting currency is sterling, which s also the Company's functional currency. The

functional currencies of the subisidiaries are sterling, 1S dollar and Chinasa yuan.
The Group's results and financiol position are affecied by fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.
The Group has generated o surplus of US dollors during the yeor due to anincreasing numbsr of projects being
supplied in US dollars. Whilst the Group aims to maintain o natural hadge, it is net adequritea to offset the exposure
on currency risk. Therafore, the Group hos used forward foreign exchange contracts to reduce the currency risk
from surplus US dollars. The nature of the Group's businesses means thera is limited visioiity of the currency
requirad in US doliars. Therefore, when forward contracts are used to reduce currency risk, they are usually only for
short periods of no maore than six months. if the US dollor were to weaken significantly, this could materially reduce
the Group's revenue ond operating profit,
There was a farward contract in ploce of 31 May 2023, the fair value of the foreign currency contract was a lichility
of £34,000(2022 : £nil),
Cashis mainly held in sterling and US dollors.
The Graup's exposure io forsign currency sk for cash and cash equivalants, trade receivables anid frade poyables
was os follows:
Group
2023 2022

EUR RMB usD EUR RM8B usD
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 €000

Cosh ond cosh equivolents 337 27 549 4 20 859
Tracde raceivables - - 3,084 - - 2,194
Trade poyobles (321) - (615) (6) - (740)
HNet exposura 16 27 3,018 (2 20 2,313

The sensitivity of the Group oparating profiz tis the US dollar o sterling exchunge rate, assuming alf orhar variables
romain consiant, is as follows:

i the US dailor hod been 1% sironger/weoker agoinst stering throughout the year ended 31 May 2023, then the
Group aperating profit would hoave been £78,000 tvgher/lower, The impact of other curranciesis notrnaterial,

Copital rnanagernent
The capitol struciure of tha Groue and Company consists of equity and dedbt. Equiry comprises ordinory share
ital and retained cornings. Debr inchudes sales mvcice financing facilities with large banks, asset finance and

fese lobilities,
The objective whan manoging copital is to safeguard the Groug’s alxlity 1o continue a3 ¢ going concern in arder 1o
maximise futura returns for sharshelders,

Casi flow is controlled by ongoing jushfication, montonng and repaorting of copiral exgenditure and reqular

monituring and reporting of operational cosls.
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Glossary

5G: Sth Generotion mobile networks

Adjusted EBITDA: EBITDA before exceptional irems

AGM Annuol Generol Meeting

AESA: Active Electronically Steered Array

Backhaul: The portion of o erarchical telecommunications network that comprises the

intermedhiote links between the cors netwaork and the small subnatworks ot
the edge of the netwaork

CAGR: Compound Average Growth Rate

CGU: Cash Generating Uit

CODM: Chief Operating Decision fMaker

CRM: Customer Relationship Management

CY: Calendar year

D-band: 130GHz 10 175GHz

DART: Defence Assurance Risk Tool

DSTL: Degortment of Science and Technology teadership

E-band: 71GHz 10 86GHz

EBITDA: Earnings Before Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amaortisation
EDL: Equality, Diversity and Irclusion

EMEA: Europe, tha Middle Eost and Africe

ERP: Ennarprise Resource Planning System

ESG: Environmenial!, Sociol and Govarnance

ESOP: tmplayee Share Oprtion Plan

ETSH: Evropean Telecommunication Standards lastitute

EW: Elactronic warfare represents the atility 10 use the eleciromagnatic

specirum - signals such as rodio, infrared or radar - 10 sense, protect ancd
commurnicate. At the same time, it con be used to deny adversaries the
ability to either disrupt or use these signals

FM: " Freguency medulation. The madulation of ¢ radio or othar wave by voriction
of its frequiency

FVLCTS: Fair value less costs to sell usad for finonanl aperaisol

FY: Fincnoinl yeor

GHG: Greenhouse Gases

GHz: Gigoherrz 1009 Hertz

Gigabit: 1079 bils

HAPS: High Alitude Psevdo-Satelitas

iP: Inteliectual Property

Ka-band: 26.5GHz - 40GHz

Ku-band: 12GHz - 168Gz

LED: Light Emithing Dinde

LEO: Low Earth Orbit

LMR: Lend Mobile Rudia

LTE: Long-Term Evolytion

MHz Megoheriz

MMIC: Monalithic Microwava intagrared Circoit

mmWoaove: Millimatre Wave

MOD: Minictry of Defernce

MRP: #aterial Requirements Planning sysiem

NDA: Hon disclosure agrasrnent

NRE: Non-recurning ergineering

NTN: Non-Terczstrial Netwaorks,

OEM: Original Equipment Manufacturer

OSAT: Outsourczd Samiconducior Assembly and Test

PA: Bower Amplifiec
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P25:

PDMR:

Q-band:

QCA:
QFN:

RAN:

RF:
SAYE:
SiP:

SLT:
SSPA:
STEM:
TTA:
UTC:
V-band:
ViU:

W-band:

Xhauk

Project 25: o suite of standards for digital mobile radic communicotions designed
for use by public sofety orgonisotians

Person dischorging manugeriol responsibility

53GHz to 50GHz

Quoted Compuonies Alliance

Quad flaf no-lead package. It is ¢ leadless packoge that cormes in small size end
offers moderate heat dissipation in printed circuit noords.

Radio aceess network. The part of o mobile nerwork that connacts end-user
devices, like smartphonias, 1o the cloud

Radia Frequency: o rote of oscillation ia the range of araund $kHz to 200GH:z
Save As You Earn

System in package. This is o number of integrared circuits enciosed in one or
maore chip carrier pockoges that may be stacked packoyge on packags

Senior Leadership raom

Solid State Power Amplifier

Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics in on educationol context
Tower Top Amplifier

University Technical College Newton Aycliffe

40GHz to 75GHz

Vialue In Use used for Financial approisa!

92GHz10 115GH:

Thie comman fiexible transport solution far future 5G networks, integrating the
fronthaul end bockhaul networks with wired ond wireless technologias in & com-
mon packet bosed transport network
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